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Audit Committee 
 
Minute of Meeting of the Audit Committee held on Thursday 16 September 2021 at 
10.30 am via Zoom. 
 
For information: A pre-meeting was held with Committee Members and 
representatives from the Student Funds Team. The Committee thanked the team for 
providing insight into how the college supports students financially.  The team provided 
an overview of the Student Funds Team including bursaries and child care.  The team 
gave some specific examples of how the college works in partnership within the local 
community, including agreeing special arrangements with child care providers for 
students. The team highlighted the challenges for some students, including 
government policy on access to housing benefit and asked for Board support in raising 
the issue with the Scottish Ministers. The discussion also highlighted the importance 
of recognising students who do not qualify for additional funding, but still require 
support. The Student Association agreed to raise this issue with the NUS. 

 
Present:  Richard Lockhart (Chair) 
   Lynne Hollis 

Colin Miller (joined at 11am) 
Julia Simpson 

       
In attendance: Jackie Galbraith (Principal and Chief Executive) 
   Alex Linkston (Chair) 

Sarah-Jane Linton (Vice Principal, Learning and Attainment) 
Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate 
Services) 
Bill Dunsmuir (Head of Information Systems and Digital 
Infrastructure) 
David Eardley (Azets, Internal Auditors) 

   Emily Purdie (Health and Safety Officer) – Item 5 
Lesley Aitkenhead (Board Governance Advisor) 
Alyce Russell (Mazars, External Auditor) 
 

1 Welcome/Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, and a special welcome to Julia Simpson 
as her first Audit Committee meeting. Sue Cook and Elaine Cook sent apologies.  The 
committee noted the absence of Seonaid Crosby and sent congratulations on the 
announcement of her new arrival. 
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2 Declarations of Interest 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 Minute of Meeting of 4 March 2021 
 

The Minute of the meeting of the Audit Committee of 23 June 2021 was 
approved as a correct record. 
 

4 Matters Arising from Minute of Meeting of 4 November 2021 
 

All actions noted as being completed or on track.  
 
5 Health and Safety 
 
 (i)  Quarterly Health and Safety Report 

 
The Health and Safety Officer presented Paper 3 which provided an overview 
of health and safety at West Lothian College from April 2021 to June 2021.  
 
The committee noted the key points, acknowledging that Covid remained the 
main theme of the report and a key priority for Health and Safety. The presenter 
highlighted the business continuity test exercise completed by Zurich involving 
members of staff and the management team. The test was used to stress the 
college’s preparation for a major incident and provided an opportunity to learn 
in a test environment. The test identified some recommendations that will be 
incorporated into business continuity plans and future tests. The committee 
discussed the H & S arrangements planned for 2021, and the delay to the 
review of policies and procedures. The committee was assured that only minor 
updates to existing policies and procedures would be required, including the 
fire assessment and did not increase the risk to the college. The delays were 
the result of additional work required for Covid, which was acknowledged as 
the priority. 
 
Action 1 H & SO:  The committee agreed the need to extend the date for 
completion on policy and procedure updates for 3 months, to ensure staff 
had adequate time to complete. The H&S Officer will update the scheduled 
plan to reflect the revised dates ahead of the next H&S Report to Audit 
Committee and confirm completion. 
 
The committee noted the work on Prevent as of benefit to staff and 
recommended completion of the mandatory training by Board Members. 
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Action 2 BGA:  The BGA will arrange for all Board Members to have 
access to mandatory training on PREVENT for completion by 31 
December 2021. 
 
The committee noted the inclusion of Student Mental Health in the report as an 
area of focus, and also noted the increase cases in Covid, which was consistent 
with figures from across Scotland.  The committee noted the exceptional work 
of the H&SO and thanked the presenter for the report. 
 

6 External Audit Strategy Memorandum 2021-21 
 

The external auditor presented Paper 4 for noting.  The presenter advised that 
the content and timeline was similar to previous external audit plans, with no 
material changes. 
 
The presenter referred to page 3, highlighting the use of remote working, the 
planned operating model for 2021-2022, and the positive ongoing engagement 
with management. 
 
The committee noted that there were no issues in meeting the required 
timetable for preparing the annual accounts, and welcomed the report as a 
good summary. 
 
The committee thanked the external auditor and noted the paper. 
 

7 Internal Audit Contract 
 

The internal audit team presented Paper 5 for approval as the proposed internal 
audit plan for 2021-22 to 2023-24. The presenter advised that the plan was the 
output of ongoing discussions with management and reflects an assessment of 
the key areas of risk. It was presented later than normal, as the previous 
meeting (23 June 2021) needed to approve the new contract with the Internal 
Audit service provider, before the plan could be prepared.   
 
The presenter highlighted the key areas of the plan and commented that it was 
a fair programme, aimed at giving added assurance to the Board, on the 
effectiveness of the key controls.   
The committee noted some minor areas of formatting, including column titles 
and use of repeat heading for future reports. 

 
The committee noted the key areas of the internal audit plan, including the 
ability to adjust activity where necessary, and approved the plan for 2021-22. 
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8 College Audit Rolling Action Plan 
 

The committee noted Paper 6 and highlighted a number of delays to meeting 
agreed dates for completion of recommendations.   
 
The Head of Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure provided further 
detail on each of the red items to provide assurance to the committee. Overall, 
these are regarded as timing issues that are all linked, rather than a material 
gap in the control environment. 
 
Item 1 and Item 2 relate to current governance arrangements and a delay to 
securing the Cyber Essential + accreditation. The CE+ review took place in July 
and identified some areas of remediation, including the removal of a server for 
Chip & Pin services, which is no longer used.   
 
The college plans to re-submit the documentation and is confident to obtain 
CE+ accreditation, following completion of the remedial actions, with support 
from an external provider, by 31st October 2021. 
 
Item 3 relates to vulnerability and penetration testing, and reflects actions to 
enhance current external threat management, including removing the use of 
USB devices. The policy covering use of USB devices will be updated, and 
confirmed at the Audit Committee on 2 December. 
 
Item 5 and 6 are linked and reflect changes to Disaster Recovery (DR) plans, 
with offsite backup being located at the council’s Whitehall Site. The college is 
in discussions with West Lothian Council on plans to relocate the council’s DR 
site. In addition, the college has developed a technical specification document 
that is required to set out the capacity needs for the next 3-5 years, to replace 
existing servers. The technical specification plan is expected to be in place by 
31 December 2021, for implementation in 2022, and will include options for the 
DR site. 
 
Item 7 relates to the recruitment of a Network Officer, which has been agreed 
and is expected to be recruited by 31 December. 
 
The committee asked if all issues noted in the audit plan were funded in the 
current budget and were given assurance that all activity, including DR and 
server activity was in the budget. 
 
The committee thanked the Head of Information Systems and Digital 
Infrastructure for insight into the audit issues. 
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9 Internal Audit Report – Review of Estates Plan 
 

The Internal Audit Team presented Paper 7 for discussion. The committee 
noted the areas of best practice in terms of estate management, and the minor 
areas for improvement. The presenter highlighted the level of senior 
management engagement in the estate management plan, including the 
involvement of external stakeholders. the points around use of SMART actions 
and importance of referencing the legislative environment were noted by the 
committee. The committee highlighted a point of accuracy in the report with 
reference to a statement from a previous outcome agreement that was no 
longer accurate. The presenter noted the error and agreed to update the report, 
removing reference to the statement. 
 
Action 3 Internal Auditor:  The Internal Auditor will update the Review of 
Estates Plan Report to ensure it is accurate reflection of the Outcome 
Agreement. 
 

10 Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure Update Presentation 
 

The Head of Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure presented Paper 7 
for information on Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure.   
 
The committee noted the report and the updates provided previously in relation 
to the Information Security and Digital Infrastructure, including progress with 
Cyber Essentials + accreditation. The presenter noted the amount of time and 
effort committed during Covid, to enable teaching material to be stored on a 
cloud server and accessed from any device, without the need for USB devices. 
 
The presenter also noted the work to develop Power BI and use for the benefit 
of the students, and the work with Dundee and Angus College to develop a 
service design for using data more effectively as a predicative tool. the 
committee noted that Power BI will be presented to the Board on 21 September 
2021. The committee discussed the need for confidential emails within the 
Board, and use of external email addresses. This was noted as a low risk, but 
further investigation will be completed on possible approaches to reduce the 
risk. 
 
Action 4 BGA:  The BGA will consider options for communication on 
confidential material with Board Members and include recommendations 
in Board Development Plan. 
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The committee confirmed that the update from the Head of information Systems 
and Digital Infrastructure provided in Paper 7 provided sufficient information 
and insight into matters of cyber security, which was an action raised at the 
Board Strategy Day and included in the Board Development Plan. 
 
The Audit Committee agreed to provide updates to the Board on matters arising 
from this committee in relation to cyber security and to recommend the action 
in the Board Development Plan is closed. The Chair thanked the Head of 
Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure and the report was noted. 

 
11 Sector Update 
 

The internal auditors highlighted an issue which was reported externally, that 
may be of interest in terms of lessons learned. The committee noted the issue, 
and agreed that it may provide some useful insight for investigation. The 
external auditors had no further update to add. 
 
Action 5 The Principal:  The Principal advise the committee of any 
potential lessons learned for the college. 
 
The committee noted the update and thanked the audit teams.  

 
10 AOB 
 

No additional matters of business were noted. 
 

11 Review of Meeting, development plan and supporting papers 
 
 Committee members discussed the papers, presentations and meeting and 

commented on the quality of papers and updates provided. No material points 
were raised and all key actions were captured in the meeting. 

 
12 Date of Next meeting 
 
 2 December 2021 
 

Signed …………………………………………………. 
  Chair, Audit Committee 
 
Date  ………………………………………………… 
 



Agenda Item 1.4

Paper 2

Date:  2 December 2021

Board/Committee Meeting Ref Source Action Owner Priority Target Date Status Update

Audit 04-Mar-21 A1 Annual Health & Safety Report To amend future reports to show the last 5 years annual data for trend purposes H&SO 2 30-May-21 Completed

Audit 04-Mar-21 A2
Info Systems & Digital 

Infrastructure Update

To invite the data scientist and the information systems manager to a future board in order to deliver a 

short presentation
IS&DI 2 01-Sep-21 Completed

Presentation by the Info Systems and Digital Infrastructure Team at 

September Board

Audit 04-Mar-21 A3 Strategic Risk Register
To have the risk register as a standing agenda item at the Board meetings as a discussion paper and ensure 

assurances were given from the Committees that they are satisfied with the risk mitigations
BGA 1 30-May-21 Completed

Strategic Risk Register is standaing agenda item, at each committee 

and Board.

Audit 04-Mar-21 A4 AOB To ensure that Sector Update is a standing item on the audit agenda BGA 2 30-May-21 Completed

Audit 16-Sep-21 A7 Internal Audit - Estates Plan
The Internal Auditor will update the Review of Estates Plan Report to ensure it is accurate reflection of the 

Outcome Agreement.
Internal Auditor 2 30-Nov-21 Completed Report updated.

Audit 16-Sep-21 A5 Health & Safety Report

The committee agreed the need to extend the date for completion on policy and procedure updates for 3 

months, to ensure staff had adequate time to complete.  The H&S Officer will update the scheduled plan to 

reflect the revised dates ahead of the next H&S Report to Audit Committee and confirm completion.

H&SO 2 28-Mar-22 On Track

H&SO confirmed that Fire Risk Assessment has been completed.  

Updates to the H&S Policy & Procedures remain on track and an 

update will be included in the next H&S Report in February 2022.

Audit 16-Sep-21 A6 Health & Safety Report

The BGA will arrange for all Board Members to have access to mandatory training on PREVENT for 

completion by 31 December 2021. BGA 2 31-Dec-21 On Track
BGA will create a copy of Mandatory Training for Board Members in 

Moodle, to enable access.

Audit 16-Sep-21 A8 Board Development Plan
The BGA will consider options for communication on confidential material with Board Members and 

include recommendations in Board Development Plan.
BGA 2 31-Dec-21 On Track

BGA is investigating possible changes to the log-on for Moodle, that 

will enable Non-Executive (with external email addresses) to access 

sensitive information more securely.  All sensitive documents will be 

password protected.

Audit 16-Sep-21 A9 Sector Update
The Principal will advise the committee of any potential lessons learned for the college from recent 

external incident (fraud).
Princ 2 30-Nov-21 On Track

ACTION:  For Attention

West Lothian College

Matters Arising - Audit Committee- Action Tracker

Strictly Private Confidential
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Audit Committee 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE’S ANNUAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

The Financial Memorandum between the college and the Scottish Funding 
Council states that the Audit Committee must produce an annual report for the 
Board of Governors. 

 A draft report is attached to this paper. 
 
Action 
 
The committee is invited to discuss and approve the report for the year ended 
31 July 2021. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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Audit Committee  
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS  
 
Period: Year ended 31 July 2021 
 
1 Introduction 
 
 In complying with the duties of the Audit Committee, as expressed in its 

Terms of Reference, the committee has met over the year, to consider 
the annual financial statements, health and safety reports, review the 
financial and other control systems and strategic risk register and to 
consider significant relevant reports from the Scottish Funding Council 
and other bodies. 

 
 What follows is a summary for the year, and the committee’s opinion on: 
 

i)   Audit Committee Administrative Matters 
ii) Internal Audit 
iii) External Audit 
iv) Other Relevant Matters 

 
2 Audit Committee Administrative Matters 
 
 The previous Audit Committee Report to the Board of Governors was 

submitted in 2019 and covered the year 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020. 
 
 During 2020-21, membership of the Audit Committee was as follows:  
 

Sue Cook Chair 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Simon Ashpool Member 01/08/20- 01/07/21 
Colin Millar Member 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Richard Lockhart  Member 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Lynne Hollis  Member 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Jeremy Miles* Member 04/03/21 - 19/06/21 

*Did not attend an Audit Committee meeting 
 

The Principal and Chair of the Board of Governors also attended 
meetings, although not members. The Secretary to the Board also 
attended meetings.    
 

3 Internal Audit 
 

3.1 The college’s internal audit service was provided by Azets.  
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 The fees for the internal audit work contained in the accounts 
was £37,000.   

 As a result of the Covid restrictions in place during 2019-20 five 
days were carried forward to 2020-21 which increased the total 
number of days to 54.   

 
 3.2 During the period August 2020-July 2021 the following areas were 

reviewed: 
 

(1) Core Financial Systems 
(2)     Estates Plan 
(3)     Cyber Security 
(4)     Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery 

 
  The reports identified areas for improvement and a rolling action 

plan has been produced by the college to ensure that these  
  improvements are made.  
 
  3.3  Risk Workshop 
   

At a virtual risk workshop held in March 2021 and facilitated by 
Azets, the Board of Governors discussed risk appetite and agreed 
a risk tolerance level for each strategic risk in the risk register.   

.  
3.4   Board Effectiveness Review 

 
A Board effectiveness review was also undertaken by Azets 
against agreed aspects of the Code of Good Governance for 
Scotland’s Colleges. An action plan has been produced to take 
forward recommendations from the review. 
 

  3.5   Tender 2020-21 
 

As this was the final year of the contract with Azets, a mini-
competition under the Advanced Procurement for Universities 
and Colleges (APUC) Framework for Internal Audit Services was 
undertaken during 2020-21. 
 
The outcome of the exercise was Azets secured the highest score 
and the Board of Governors approved the re-appointment of Azets 
from 1 September 2021 for a period of 35 months with the option of 
two 12-month extensions.  
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3.6    Summary of Grades 
 

The table below provides a summary of grades over the last three 
years.   
 
Grade* 5 4 3 2 1 Total 
2020-21 0 0 1 11 0 12 
2019-20 0 0 0 3 0 3 
2018-19 0 0 0 8 1 9 
 
*Grade Definition 
 
5 - Very high risk exposure: Major concerns requiring immediate 

Board attention. 
4 - High risk exposure: Absence/failure of significant key controls. 
3 - Moderate risk exposure: Not all key control procedures are 

working effectively. 
2 - Limited risk exposure: Minor control procedures are not in 

place/not working effectively. 
1 - Efficiency/housekeeping point. 

 
4 External Audit 
 

4.1 The college’s external audit service is provided by Mazars, as 
appointed by Audit Scotland, for a five-year period commencing 
2017. This is the fourth year of the external audit service being 
provided by Mazars.   

  
 Although the college does not appoint Mazars, the Audit Committee 

continues to monitor the scope and quality of their work.   
 
4.2  The fees for the period, as contained in the accounts, were 

£15,000. 
 
4.3 Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2021. 

 
The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the 
year of £1,742,000 (2020 - deficit of £1,599,000), with total 
comprehensive income surplus of £2,593,000 (2020 - deficit of 
£5,005,000). The total comprehensive income in 2021 recorded an 
actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of £4,335,000 (2020 - 
loss of £5,895,000).   
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After transfer of £495,000 from the revaluation reserve, the 
cumulative deficit on the Income and Expenditure account 
decreased by £3,088,000 from £20,546,000 deficit to £17,458,000 
deficit. 
 
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £265,000 for 
holiday pay accrual, £2,211,000 for voluntary agreed PFI 
termination loan, £3,523,000 for early retirement provisions, 
£12,093,000 for defined benefit pension obligations, off-set by 
surplus £633,000 for trading activities (see Note 16). 

 
The college is reporting net total liabilities of £9,920,000 in its 
balance sheet, which is due to the reclassification of deferred 
Government Grant as deferred income within creditors and 
allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more 
than one year as appropriate and the actuarial gain in respect of 
Pension Schemes. 

 
4.4   Mazars will provide an unqualified Audit Report. However, one          

emphasis of matter statement is contained in the audit opinion.            
The valuation of land and building contains a material uncertainty   
valuation clause due to the impact of Covid. This clause does not 
invalidate the valuation. 

 
5 Risk Management 
 

The college is required to implement policies and procedures concerning 
risk management.   
 
At the September 2020 meeting of the Board of Governors, the Board 
agreed that each committee would have ownership of the risks aligned 
with their remit.    

 
This meant that all risks in relation to: 

 
• Digital infrastructure was reviewed quarterly by Audit Committee. 
• Estates, Financial and HR and People Development were reviewed 

quarterly by Finance and General Purposes Committee 
• Learning and attainment were reviewed quarterly by Learning and 

Teaching Committee 
 

As part of the risk management framework, the Board of Governors 
agreed a recommendation from the Audit Committee that the risk 
register would be a standing item at each Board meeting as a 
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discussion paper and the Board would take collective responsibility for 
the register.  

 
Assurances were given from the Audit, Learning and Teaching and 
Finance and General Purposes Committees that they were satisfied 
with the risk mitigations. 
 

6 Health and Safety 
 
 The committee received and reviewed regular Health and Safety reports 

as part of its remit to provide assurance to the Board of Governors that 
the college has in place appropriate policies and procedures to promote 
and safeguard the health and safety of staff, students and all 
stakeholders and satisfies current legislation. During 2020-21 much 
of the focus of these reports was on the impact of Covid and ensuring 
compliance with Scottish Government guidance. 

 
7      Annual Report on Performance Indicators – Internal and External 

Audit year ended 31 July 2021 
 

Internal Audit 

 Actual 
 

Budget 
 

Notes 

Cost 
Number of days 
Average cost per day 
Completion of agreed operational plan 
 

£37,000* 
54 

£685 
100% 

£25,000 
49 

£510 
100% 

 
 
 
 

 
 *The variance between budget and actual spend is due to the additional 
days carried forward from 2019-20 and the costs of carrying out the 
Board effectiveness review which were negotiated outwith the annual 
contract. The number of days excludes the additional time required to 
fully conduct the Board effectiveness review. 

 
External Audit 

 Actual 
 

Budget 
 

Notes 

Cost 
Number of days 
Average cost per day 
 

£15,000 
32 

£469 

£15,000 
32 

£469 
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Reporting 

 Actual 
 

Deadline 
 

Notes 

Statutory Accounts  
Management Letter 

31 Dec 21 
31 Dec 21 

31 Dec 21 
31 Dec 21 

(1) 
 

 
Notes 

 
(1) This assumes that the Board of Governors approve the accounts. 

 
8 Value for Money 
 

The college has a Value for Money Policy and the Audit Committee is 
satisfied that arrangements have been put in place to promote economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
9 Conclusion 
 
 On the basis of the above the Audit Committee is satisfied that the 

college’s risk management, control and governance systems are 
effective. 

 
The Board is asked to approve this report of activities. 

 
 
 
Sue Cook 
Chair Audit Committee 
2 December 2021 
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Audit Committee 
 
RISK REGISTER 2021-22 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this paper is to outline a proposed change to the risk 
management arrangements which were agreed at the Board of Governors 
meeting in September 2020. 
 
Risk management process 2020-21 
 
• Each committee of the board has ownership of the risks aligned with their 

remit   
• The Audit Committee has oversight of the entire strategic risk register  
• The Strategic Risk Register is a standing item at the board as a discussion 

paper and the board takes collective responsibility for the register. 
Assurances are given from the Audit, Learning and Teaching and Finance 
and General Purposes Committees that they are satisfied with the risk 
mitigations. 

 
Proposed risk management process 2021-22 
 
The proposed process is: 

• The entire Strategic Risk Register will be presented as an agenda item at 
every Board of Governors meeting for approval of any material changes  

• The discussion will be facilitated by the Chair of Audit Committee, with 
input from all the Committee Chairs, Independent Person and Board 
Members   

• The Strategic Risk Register will be presented with an executive summary 
(heat map), which will highlight material changes, and key themes or 
topics, on a rolling schedule 

• Papers relating to the effectiveness of the control environment i.e. 
performance indicators, HR Report, Finance Reports will continue to be 
presented to the committees, providing the Committee Chairs and 
Members with insight on the Strategic Risk Register, but the register will 
not be presented as a separate agenda item at the committees. 

  

 
 
 



Action: For Approval  Agenda Item 3.1 
 

Paper 4 
West Lothian College 

2 December 2021 
 

 
 

2 
AC/021221/Sharepoint 

Action 
 
The committee is asked to approve to the revised risk management process 
for 2021-22. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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Executive Summary – Board Strategic Risk Register 

Overall Summary:  The table reflects an updated Risk Profile for the new academic year 2021-2022.  Overall, the Risk Profile remains within the agreed Board Risk 
Tolerance, with 1 Red Risk - 3.2 Pay Awards, which reflects industry wide discussions on terms and conditions.   Of the 23 Strategic Risks, one new risk One new risk has 
been identified – 6.4 in relation to disaster recovery plans; 8 remain stable, 5 have reduced and 9 have increased to reflect the start of the new academic year.  The 
heatmap below highlights all risks with an Amber or Red Rating only.  Further details on all risks and mitigating actions is shown below, with a summary by Risk Category: 

 

 

 

Strategic Risks (Board): 

No material change has been identified for the Strategic Risks, with an overall GREEN rating.    

 

 

 

Learning & Attainment (L&T): 

The Risk Profile for Learning & Teaching Risks remains stable overall, with a decrease in 2 risks related to Curriculum Planning (following the recent Curriculum Planning 
Event, and Quality Learning.  The risk of poor student engagement has increased due to the continued impact of COVID 19, and locked down restrictions.  Heightened 
awareness of the risks associated with the management of equality, diversity and inclusion issues has resulted in an increase in the potential impact of this risk.  

 

 

 

Financial and HR & People Risks (F&GP): 

The risk profile for financial shows an increase in 3 risks, the most significant reflecting the fact that the outcome of national pay negotiations and job evaluation is still 
unknown. HR and people development remain stable overall, with one risk increasing as a result of the ongoing instructors dispute. 

 

 

 Estate & Digital Infrastructure (Audit): 

Overall the risk profile remains stable. 
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Executive Summary – Board Strategic Risk Register – Heat Map 
   

 
 
VPF&CS 

 
Vice Principal Finance & Corporate Services 

VPL&A Vice Principal Learning & Attainment 

VP P&I Vice Principal Performance & Improvement 

Movement in Risk Score is shown as comparison with Strategic Risk Register agreed at June 2021 Board of Governors (which reflects the end of AY 20-21).  It will be 
updated in February 2022 to show comparison with this Board reporting period (quarterly). 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

 

 
Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  

Previous Score 

1 Strategic 

1.1 
 
VPL&A 
 
 
 
 

There is a risk of inadequate strategic 
oversight due to lack of engagement with 
external stakeholders in the strategic 
planning processes resulting in reputational 
loss.  
 
Link to Strategic Goals 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
 

5 3 15  8 Robust curriculum planning process including 
stakeholder event.  Senior managers 
represented on key local and national 
stakeholder groups. 

3 2 6  6 
 
 

1.2 
 
VPL&A 

There is a risk that the college is unable to 
meet ongoing demand in the region due to 
insufficient funding resulting in the college 
not meeting the needs of the region.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
 
 
 
 

5 5 25 16 College region is well placed to respond to 
short term funding opportunities as they arise, 
with a proven track record for delivering on 
Young Persons Guarantee and National 
Transition Training Fund. 

4 2 8   12 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

2 Learning & Attainment 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
VPL&A 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
deliver the curriculum plan due to 
disruption in the ongoing COVID19 
pandemic resulting in disengagement of 
students.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 4 20  8 Directors and Learning and Skills managers 
meet every fortnight to discuss adaptations to 
the curriculum plan to ensure delivery models 
are continually adapted to respond to the 
pandemic and prevent the disengagement of 
students.  
 
Further 'lockdown' restrictions are out with the 
control of the college 

3 3 9 Above appetite – needs action 
– either to accept or reduce. 

12 
 
 

2.2 
 

 
VPL&A 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
deliver high quality learning, teaching and 
assessment due to poor alignment of 
resources and/or poor quality of teaching 
resulting in poor retention, attainment and 
progression for students. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 4 20 18 Training of all delivery staff (approx 145 per 
week) began in a weekly model from August 
2021, thus ensuring a consistent approach to 
the quality of learning, teaching and 
assessment. 

3 2 6  9 
 
 

2.3 
 

 
VPP&I 

There is a risk of limited student 
engagement and a less effective student 
voice due to COVID19 resulting in negative 
student feedback. 
 

 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

 

4 4 16 15 All students have access to a dedicated MS 
Teams channel to build community and aid 
communications. Student retention group 
meets weekly.  
 
3 Executive Officers work with 18 Student 
Ambassadors on key student goals, all 
appointed and trained.  
 
60% of courses delivered on campus and 
those delivered on line students periodically 
scheduled to be on campus. Latest EW fig to 
be inserted.    

5 3 15  9 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

2 Learning & Attainment 

2.4 
 
 
VPP&I  

There is a risk that the college fails to meet 
its equality, diversity and inclusion targets 
and obligations due to not acting on our 
equality outcomes resulting in the college 
not representing the diversity in our 
community. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 8 Statutory Mainstreaming Report published in 
April 2021.   
 
Dedicated Equalities and Widening Access 
Officer has been appointed to oversee 
compliance and development of the action 
plan, and to support staff and student 
engagement and embedding of the Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion agenda.   

4 2 8  6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

3 Financial 

3.1  
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee  
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that the college is not able 
to budget for or achieve break-even or a 
surplus on an annual basis due to poor 
cost control resulting in the college not 
being financially sustainable.  
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 

5 3 15 8 Budget setting process overseen by college 
leadership team with actions agreed at each 
meeting to arrive at a balanced budget.   
Budget review meetings held with all budget 
holders with agreed actions.    
 
Monthly management accounts presented to 
College Leadership Team with agreed actions 
where necessary. 

3 3 9 Given early stage in year risk 
is maintained as significant 

6 
 
 
 

3.2 
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that pay awards and terms 
and conditions negotiated through the 
national bargaining process are 
unaffordable resulting in the college not 
being financially sustainable. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 4 20 20 College has influence in determining agreed 
pay award and terms and conditions.   
 
College inputs into Colleges Scotland budget 
submission. 

4 4 16 Maintained as a major risk as 
pay settlements have not been 
reached for 2021-22 and 
outcome of job evaluation is 
unknown 

12 
 
 
 
 
 

3.3 
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee 
 
VPL&A  

There is a risk of failure to deliver contracts 
achieved through non-core funding due to 
insufficient demand in the economy 
resulting in a clawback of funding. 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 
 

4 3 12 8 The Director for workforce development 
ensures that college contracts are met by 
continually adapting the offer to industry in line 
with demand, this is supported by the Vice 
Principal for learning and Attainment  by 
regular tracking and monitoring with all 
directors responsible for the delivery. 

4 2 8 FWDF need to manage 
backlog as few courses were 
undertaken between April and 
August.  
 
Procure associate trainers to 
ensure that training is high 
quality and able to meet 
demand. 
 
  

6 
 
 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

3 Financial 

3.4 
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee 
 
VPL&A & 
VPP&I 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
secure alternative income streams due to 
economic challenges or poor horizon 
scanning resulting in a loss of income 
and/or investment opportunity for the 
college.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 15 3 year operational plan and 1 year detailed 
campaign plan produced. Recent success 
means we're currently ahead of target.   

3 3 9  12 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

4 HR & People Development 

4.1  
 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk of not engaging and 
communicating effectively with staff 
resulting in a demotivated workforce and a 
failure to deliver high quality learning, 
teaching and service delivery. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 6 Principal’s drop-in session allow staff 
concerns to be heard and acted upon.  
Virtual staff conference and team meetings 
give opportunity for concerns to be 
addressed.  Annual staff survey to be 
undertaken 

3 2 6 Staff pulse survey undertaken 
May 2021 
 
 
 
 
  

6 
 
 

4.2 
 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk of not being able to adapt 
staff roles to manage changes in the 
curriculum due to national bargaining 
restrictions resulting in an inability to adapt 
to deliver high quality learning and student 
experience. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 3 15 20 College is a member of the Employers 
Association and has influence in negotiating 
terms and conditions 

5 3 15 Maintained as significant due 
to ongoing instructor dispute 

10 
 
 
 
 
 

4.3 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk of a breakdown in 
relationship with the local JNCCs due to 
local interpretation of national disputes 
resulting in local disputes and/or industrial 
action. 
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

4 3 12 8 Quarterly JNCC meetings held and 
fortnightly Joint JNCC COVID meetings held 

3 3 9 Risk considered significant in 
light of ongoing instructor 
dispute 
At this stage Board to accept 
the  
 

9 
 
 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

4 HR & People Development 

4.4 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that staff are not upskilled to 
cope with new ways of working and digital 
developments due to inadequate training 
and resources resulting in a demotivated 
workforce and a poor student experience. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 3 12 8 Learning and Development (L&D) budget 
which supports staff development.  Staff 
development programmes run throughout 
year.  
 
Learning Continuity Group supports staff 
using on-line technology and shares good 
practice.    

3 2 6  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

5 Estate 

5.1 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
deliver on its 5-year estates plan due to 
insufficient funding resulting in the college 
not meeting the needs of our students. 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

5 4 20 15 Money set aside each year from estates grant 
to continue programme of development.  
Communication with local members of the 
Scottish Parliament and Scottish Funding 
Council to highlight need for additional 
resources. 

4 3 12  
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

12 
 
 

5.2 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk that the college fails to 
undertake statutory maintenance checks 
and maintain the building due to a lack of 
funding resulting in a build-up of essential 
back log maintenance. 
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
 

5 3 15 8 Established planned preventative programme 
in place and implemented annually.  Budget 
allocation to address planned and reactive 
maintenance. 

4 2 8  8 
 
 

5.3 
 
 
VPF&CS 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
complete capital projects within timescale 
and budget due to poor project planning 
and control resulting in cost overrun.  
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 

 

4 3 12 8 Technical expertise externally recruited where 
required.  Project plan prepared for each 
project.  Regular monitoring of budget and 
meetings with contractors to identify any 
deviation from plan and agree remedial action.  
Supported by procurement co-ordinator. 

3 2 6  
 
 
 
 
 

6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

6 Digital Infrastructure 

6.1 
 
 
 
VPP&I 

There is a risk of a Cyber Security breach 
due to an inadequate allocation of 
investment in digital security and training, 
resulting in the college not operating 
effectively in the event of a major incident.   
 
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
 

5 4 20 16 IT Security Project Officer post made 
permanent in from 1st August 2021. 
Mandatory training on cyber security and 
GDPR implemented for new starts and annual 
refresher for all staff as part of ongoing staff 
development. 
 
Regular updates posted to Staff Zone on new 
sharepoint site. Monthly scheduled - Sophos 
endpoint anti-virus software - updates rolled 
out to all staff.  
 
Cyber Incident and IT Policies updated. 
Technical expertise provided where required 
via shared service and external suppliers. 

5 3 15 Completion of Cyber 
Essentials + status due by 
end of November. Network 
Officer post in process of 
recruitment.  
 
Penetration testing quarterly 
cycle being implemented. 
Chief Information Security 
Officer (CISO) proposal 
under review.  
 
New server infrastructure 
with enhanced security 
features due by April 2022. 

 
 
 
 

10 
 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
VPP&I 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is a risk of reduced student 
retention, attainment or progression due to 
insufficient investment in underlying digital 
learning technologies or devices resulting 
in a reduced classroom experience or 
ability of students to undertake learning.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 12 Communication with local members of the 
Scottish Parliament and Scottish Funding 
Council to highlight need for additional 
resources.  
 
An additional 165 student laptops arrived in 
college for distribution. A further 100 laptops 
and 40 dongles ordered.  
 
20 new clevertouch devices installed  
since August 2021. 

4 3 12 100  mobile devices to 
support learners due for 
distribution. A new  
lapsafe - self service laptop 
loan rack system - due for 
delivery January 2022.   
 
Additional core spend 
planned for 2022 for 
classroom based learning 
technologies and IT refresh. 

6 
 
 
 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

6 Digital Infrastructure 

6.3 
 
VPP&I 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
achieve efficiencies due to a failure to 
integrate and streamline our information 
systems resulting in reliance on manual 
input, increased levels of duplication and 
re-work and reduced ability to make 
evidenced based decisions.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 12 Power Bi, SSRS and Student and Staff 
Advantage give staff and students access to a 
range of management and operational 
reporting on a 24/7 basis.  
 
College online services are subject to regular 
review. Staff and student survey outputs are 
used as part of a cycle of continuous system 
and application improvements.  
 
Resultant projects approved and monitored via 
the Systems Review Group. 

4 3 12 A new curriculum building 
and planning online tool is 
being launched in Nov 21.  
 
New streamlined and more 
efficient student application 
and enrolment service and 
help desk are being 
launched for Dec 21.    
 
By the 23/24 all college 
enrolments will be done 
online, completely 
eliminating paper- based 
systems. 
 

6 
 
 

6.4 
 
 
VPF&CS 
 
 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
achieve efficiencies due to a failure to 
integrate and streamline our information 
systems resulting in reliance on manual 
input, increased levels of duplication and 
re-work and reduced ability to make 
evidenced based decisions.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

5 4 20 8 Regular review of business continuity plans.  
Annual testing of plan facilitated by 
representative from Zurich. 

4 2 8 Business Continuity Plans 
for the Finance and 
Information Systems and 
Digital Infrastructure to be 
further updated in line with 
any supplier changes. 

 
 

12 
 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

6 Digital Infrastructure 

6.5 
 
 
 
VPP&I 

There is a risk that the college’s business 
continuity plan is sub-optimal due to a lack 
of a fully comprehensive off-site IT back-up 
facility resulting in the college not being 
able to fully operate effectively in the event 
of a major incident. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

5 4 20 8  
The current LIVE and backup virtual servers 
located at the Civic Centre, hosted by West 
Lothian Council. 
 
The VEEAM backup operates on a prescribed 
backup schedule. Office 365 staff and student 
accounts backed up to the cloud from start 
21/22. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 3 12 Discussions at advanced 
stage for a new offsite 
backup solution to be in 
place to coincide with new 
infrastructure investment 
being in place by April 22.   

 
 
NEW 

6.6 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk of a significant GDPR 
breach due to non-compliance with 
regulation resulting in a significant financial 
penalty and reputational damage. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 

• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 3 15 9 Each member of staff undertakes annual 
mandatory training.   

3 3 9  12 
 
 

 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Appendix 1 - Risk Tolerance Matrix 

 

Routine Minor Significant Major Catastrophic
1 2 3 4 5

Access – More 
Equal Society

- Majority of access targets met with only 
one or two exceptions.

- Overall  stakeholders, communities, 
schools  and universities engaged with 
college.

 -Recruitment from the most deprived 
postcodes has reduced slightly.

 - Number of students getting advanced 
standing to University declines.  

 - Recruitment across a number of equality 
measures is below target.

 - Stakeholder engagement with communities, 
stakeholders, schools and universities is not 
effective in supporting targets.

 - College overall  activity target being impacted on.

 - Insufficient progress made with equality 
targets, resulting in reduced activity target 
and clawback of funds for specific initiatives.

 - Poor stakeholder relations and reputational 
damage.

 - Failure to deliver on equalities targets 
leaving the college open to challenge and 
significant reputational damage.

 - Claw back of funds and inabil ity to 
access any related initiatives or future 
projects.

Responding to 
the Economy 

 - One subject area not delivering but 
credit target/budget delivered.

 - Overall  schools and appropriate 
stakeholders  are engaged.

 - One Centre/ Department not delivering but 
credit target/budget delivered.

 - Schools and Stakeholders fairly engaged.

 - Up to 10% of credit target/budget not achieved due 
to supply and demand. mismatch or lack of 
engagement with key partners.

 - Some schools and stakeholder dissatisfaction 
with the college.

 - >25 %  of credit target/budget not achieved 
due to supply and demand mismatch. 

 - Major shortfall  in recruiting to vocational 
pathway programmes.

 - Majority of schools and stakeholders 
dissatisfied with the college.

 - Major shortfall  in recruitment and 
retention leading to clawback of funds or 
activity.

 - Major reputational damage arising from 
poor performance.

Student Success  - Isolated cases of poor learner retention 
and attainment.

 - Under sector average for attainment in one 
PI success category.

 - Positive feedback from Education Scotland 
Progress Review

 - Few instances of quality targets not being 
met.

 - Less than sector average in FE and HE full  time 
success indicators. 

 - Downward trend in FE and HE full  time success 
indicators.

 - Increasing negative destinations and activity 
targets under threat.

 - Education Scotland progress review 
unsatisfactory.

 - Majority of Centres with poor learner 
retention, attainment and negative 
destinations.

 - Activity target shortfall  and funds clawback 
indicated.

 - Education Scotland progress review 
unsatisfactory.

 - High negative learner destinations with 
major funds clawback and activity targets 
significantly under achieved.

 - Education Scotland/Scottish Funding 
Council  intervention.

Innovation and 
Enterprise

 - Commercial targets achieved overall  
albeit individual contract variance in 
performance.

 - Apprenticeship expansion within 10% of 
target.

 - Key account management in the main 
successful.

 - Shortfall  in commercial targets but abil ity 
to make up for this across college.

 - Apprenticeship expansion within 20% of 
target.

 - Shortfall  in commercial targets and reduction in 
college surplus forecast.

 - Apprenticeship numbers static.

 - Business engagement weak.

 - Major shortfall  in commercial surplus 
resulting in more significant interventions.

 - Reductions in Apprenticeship places.

 - Business and Employer dissatisfaction.

 - Commercial surplus significantly 
reduced and major impact on college core 
operations.

 - Withdrawal of Apprenticeship contract.

 - Business and employer complaints.

Financial and 
organisation 
Sustainability

 - One instance <£50k or a number of 
instances where the cumulative value is 
<£50k. 

£50k-£99k. £100k- £299k. £300k - £499k. >£500k.
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Audit Committee 
 
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020-21 
 
Introduction 
 
The annual financial statements for financial year 2020-21 are attached to this 
paper.     
 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP)  
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) and with Financial Reporting 
Standards FRS102. They also comply with the 2020-21 Government Financial 
Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government.   
 
Financial Results for the Year ended 31 July 2021 
 
The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of 
£1,742,000 (2020 - deficit of £1,599,000), with total comprehensive income 
surplus of £2,593,000 (2020 - deficit of £5,005,000). The total comprehensive 
income in 2021 recorded an actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of 
£4,335,000 (2020 – loss of £5,895,000).   
 
After transfer of £495,000 from the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit 
on the Income and Expenditure account decreased by £3,088,000 from 
£20,546,000 deficit to £17,458,000 deficit. 
 
Adjusted Operating Position 
 
The adjusted operating position is used by the Scottish Funding Council to 
measure colleges’ financial sustainability. It is intended to reflect the financial 
performance of the college after allowing for non-cash adjustments and other 
material one-off or distorting items required by the SORP. The adjusted 
operating position is therefore designed to smooth any volatility in reported 
results arising from FRS 102 and also to recognise that some of the reported 
costs do not have an immediate cash impact on the college. In 2019-20 the 
college recorded an adjusted operating surplus of £738,000.  
 
Key Changes 2019-20 
 
On 3 June 2021, the Scottish Funding Council issued its accounts direction 
for Scotland’s colleges for 2020-21, along with supporting guidance. 
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Changes include: 
 
Remuneration and staff report 
 
A new best practice disclosure has been introduced for Diversity and Inclusion 
which encourages institutions to include details and narrative of their own 
diversity and inclusion policies, initiatives and longer-term ambitions in the 
staff report. 
 
Governance statement 
  
The Governance statement should now include the following: 
 
• The ongoing process and structures used to identify, evaluate and 

manage the principal and emerging risks faced. 
 
• A statement that internal control systems have been in place for the year 

under review and up to the date of approval of the financial statements. 
 
• The main features that support regular monitoring, review and assurance. 
 
• The process applied in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of risk 

management and internal control, including explaining what actions have 
been or are being taken to remedy any significant failings of weaknesses. 

 
Action 
 
The committee is asked to recommend approval of the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 31 July 2021 to the Board of Governors for the 
meeting scheduled for 7 December 2021. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 07 December 
2021  
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PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 July 2021 
 
Principal and Chief Executive’s Statement 
 
Students and staff started the 2020-21 academic year hopeful that what there would not be 
a repeat of what they had experienced in the last four months of the previous academic 
session following lockdown in March 2020. Most students returned in September to more 
campus-based learning, although a significant minority of students in subjects like 
accounts, business and computing took part in their learning remotely for the full year.  
 
Staff made good use of time when they were on campus to engage students in the practical 
aspects of their courses and to help vulnerable groups build relationships with lecturers and 
support teams. Throughout the year, many lecturers were creative in enhancing blended 
learning through virtual industry talks, online student conferences and master classes from 
experts. 
 
As winter approached, the second wave of the pandemic led to tighter government 
guidelines and colleges were instructed to have a very small proportion (5%) of students 
on campus. Following the festive break, the country went into lockdown from January to 
March 2021. This was a very bleak time, although one positive outcome was that it enabled 
the construction company appointed to extend our engineering workshop to complete the 
project uninterrupted. 
 
This lockdown had a more negative effect on students and staff than the spring lockdown 
in 2020. Dark, cold days led to isolation, and uncertainty surrounding the spread of the virus 
led to increased anxiety. Those who were parents of school-age children had to educate 
them at home, while those with pre-school children had limited childcare options. Despite 
facing many of the same challenges as our students, college staff responded magnificently 
during this time.  
   
As we emerged out of the winter lockdown there were positive signs on vaccines. 
Unfortunately, during March and April strike action called by the EIS over a number of 
weeks led to further anxiety for students who were very already anxious about keeping up 
with their learning. After the Easter break we were able to bring increasing numbers of 
students back onto campus to complete practical units. Industrial action ended in May. 
Efforts focused on helping as many students complete their courses as possible in the 
remaining months of the academic year with some lecturers working during their summer 
break to achieve this. 
 
Despite 2020-21 being without doubt the most challenging year in living memory, the 
college had a very successful year. We experienced the highest ever level of student 
enrolments, exceeded our activity targets, increased student success and completed two 
major estates projects.  
 
Staff made significant progress in improving their digital skills through training and sharing 
good practice, we developed our digital pedagogy through a cross-college group supported 
by a dedicated member of staff, and invested in digital devices for learning that included 
new laptops for all lecturers and other delivery staff, Clevertouch interactive mobile screens 
and lecture capture equipment. 
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Our main priority for 2020-21 was to support the wellbeing, engagement and motivation of 
students and staff to get through the second year of the pandemic. We supported students 
facing mental health problems, learning difficulties and financial challenges by, for example, 
introducing a free hot breakfast to supplement our free hot lunch, enabling students to 
access learning support online and on campus, and offering discretionary funding for 
students to feed their families and prevent evictions.  
 
On top of all of that, the college worked hard to improve student success despite all these 
challenges. While paying attention to these fundamental priorities, we also supported 
people and companies affected by economic disruption caused by the pandemic by 
providing bespoke courses designed for specific industry sectors. 
 
Staff, students and the Student Association continued to be innovative throughout 2020-21 
on mental health and wellbeing. In addition to our existing counsellors, we recruited a 
specialist member of staff to help students. Feedback from students on the support 
provided throughout the pandemic has been very positive. The Man Cave, a dedicated 
space for male students and staff to talk about their mental health, met online throughout 
the year. Health and social care students, supported by their lecturer in collaboration with 
a construction lecturer, designed and built an outdoor wellbeing space for all students to 
use on campus. Collaborations with third sector mental health supporting organisations 
matured over the year, including a new strategic partnership with S.M.I.L.E. Counselling. 
 
Although our attention was firmly focused on supporting students, staff and the wider 
community through the pandemic, we were still able to embed our new management and 
faculty structure in 2020-21, and refresh our vision, goals, values and behaviours through 
two staff conferences. We conducted three pulse surveys with staff to establish how 
supported they felt in this third emergency year, the results of which were very positive. 
Over 80% took part in our annual staff engagement survey in October 2020 and the results 
were the most positive they have ever been. 
 
As well as supporting young people throughout the year, we agreed a strategic commitment 
to developing our own young workforce. We recruited six young people through the UK 
Government’s Kickstart scheme and two Modern Apprentices (with more in 2021-22). In 
addition, throughout the year we continued to offer graduate internships and work 
placements for our Foundation Apprenticeship students. 
 
During 2020-21 the college continued to make much-needed campus improvements and, 
informed by feedback from students and employers, invested £1.5 million to improve our 
learning estate and curriculum facilities. Two major projects were completed. Creating a 
new floor in an existing workshop doubled the size of what was previously a shared 
engineering and construction workshop. The installation of engineering machinery that was 
not previously on site was very positively received by local employers and led to new 
courses being introduced to meet their apprenticeship skills requirements.  
 
Significant growth in student numbers over the past decade has led to all available space 
being used for classes and workshops with no areas for students to study before, in 
between and after timetabled sessions. A complete reconfiguration of the ground floor of 
the main campus building led to a 200% increase in individual and collaborative flexible 
learning spaces, and included a new, modern Learning Centre, Student Association hub 
and Information Point. Additional funding from the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) enabled 
these projects to be completed. 
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Throughout 2020-21, the college built on already excellent relationships, enhanced local 
partnerships with employers, West Lothian Council and the third sector, and further 
developed national partnerships with the Scottish Government and its skills and education 
agencies. Through these partnerships, the college supported a range of measures to help 
people whose jobs were affected by the pandemic. In the summer of 2020, we formed a 
four-college collaboration with Edinburgh, Fife, and Forth Valley Colleges to develop a 
multi-region response to economic recovery. Following discussions with SFC and Skills 
Development Scotland, senior leaders from each of the colleges developed a suite of 
proposals. The Scottish Government agreed to progress with two proposals, Skills Boost 
courses and Accelerated HNCs which were rolled out to the sector and funded through the 
Young Person’s Guarantee and the National Transition Training Fund. These have 
continued in the current academic year.  
 
In September 2020, the college held its first online curriculum planning session event with 
over 100 participants drawn from staff, students, the Student Association, employers, 
partners and board members. This was followed in February 2021 by a similar event 
focused on school/college provision, with 70 participants from staff, schools, West Lothian 
Council, Education Scotland, Skills Development Scotland and universities.  
 
About West Lothian College 
 
West Lothian College is one of thirteen college regions in Scotland and serves an area with 
one of the fastest growing populations in Scotland. In 2020-21, the college celebrates 
twenty years at our Livingston campus. A lot has changed since the college moved to 
Livingston, although its most important job remains ensuring that people get access to 
relevant qualifications that help them move towards their own goals.  
 
The college provides a wide range of further and higher education courses to support 
government priorities such as Developing the Young Workforce, the Young Person’s 
Guarantee and widening access to higher education. Hundreds of senior school pupils in 
West Lothian’s eleven secondary schools take part in college courses each year alongside 
their school qualifications, and the college is the number one choice for school leavers, 
ahead of all other colleges and universities in Scotland.  
 
West Lothian College plays a critical role in achieving community planning partnership 
priorities, in particular to address the skills needs of employers and enable people to be 
better educated with access to quality learning and job opportunities.  
 
West Lothian College is a free-standing corporate body under the provisions of the Further 
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently the Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 
2013. It is governed by a Board of Governors and receives the majority of its funding directly 
from the SFC. The college is listed on the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in 
accordance with section 13(1) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, 
to refer to itself as a charity registered in Scotland (SC021216). 
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Vision, Goals and Values 
 
In 2020-21, with the involvement of Board members and all staff, the college refreshed its 
vision, identified four strategic goals to achieve that vision, reinforced the three values that 
will underpin how we will do that and identified behaviours for each of these values. 
 

 
Our vision is of a highly skilled, enterprising and resilient workforce. Four strategic goals 
contribute to achieving that vision: 
 
• Inspiring and enabling success for all  
• Supporting economic recovery and growth  
• Strengthening our communities  
• Leading with vision and empathy. 
 
Three values underpin our approaches to all that we do including achieving our vision and 
strategic goals. They are: 
 
• Welcoming to all 
• Students at the centre of everything we do 
• Always striving for better. 
 
Living our values means that we exhibit the following behaviours: 
 
Welcoming to all 
 
• We are respectful and inclusive, and treat everyone as an individual 
• We listen actively, and communicate in an open and supportive way 
• We are positive role models, engaging with purpose and enthusiasm  
 
Students at the centre of everything we do 
 
• We work together and support each other as part of a team 
• We are flexible and accommodating, and act on feedback to make changes 
• We are understanding and responsive, focusing on individual needs 
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Always striving for better 
 
• We evaluate and reflect on our practice to improve and succeed 
• We are open to new ways of working, look outwards and learn from others 
• We are proactive and forward thinking, preparing for what may come next 
 
Performance Summary 
 
SFC’s Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey 2020-21 showed that 89.6% of FEFT 
students were satisfied with their experience of college (compared with a national figure of 
88.6%), and 84.9% of HEFT (compared with a national figure of 80.3%). While these figures 
are lower than satisfaction rates achieved in 2018-19 (the last reported year before the 
pandemic), achieving such high student satisfaction in the most disrupted year in college 
history is significant.  
 
The college received two significant external accreditations in 2021 that recognised the 
extensive support we provide to students who are carers. We achieved the Going Further 
for Student Carers: Recognition Award from the Carers Trust and we were one  of the first 
two colleges in Scotland to achieve the Carers Federation Quality Standard in Carer 
Support.  
 
Examples of student success include one of our 2020 Project Search graduates winning 
the Young Achiever Award at the Scottish Health Awards in December 2020, and an HNC 
Professional Cookery student being announced as The Staff Canteen 2020 Member of the 
Year. Project SEARCH, delivered in partnership with West Lothian Council’s supported 
employment team and NHS Lothian, is aimed at young people aged 16 to 29 who have a 
learning disability and/or autism, and who are leaving school or looking for work. The 
college was awarded the DFN Project Search Performance Award for 2019-20 as 75% of 
the students gained, and were still in, employment six months after completing the course. 
This is a significant achievement as these students finished their course just before the 
pandemic hit the country. 
 
Despite the major disruption to organisations caused by the pandemic, the college 
continued to deliver significant levels of work-based learning over the year, enabling almost 
one thousand employees in 350 organisations to undertake SVQs, and supporting 421 
modern apprentices in training, including 202 new starts, a significant increase over the 
previous year. Through the Flexible Workforce Development Fund, we worked with 53 
companies to train 2,700 employees. Continuing our commitment to Developing the Young 
Workforce, we increased Foundation Apprenticeships enrolments with 192 students from 
schools across West Lothian, including 132 new starts. Over the year, we trained 2,120 
Children’s Hearings Scotland volunteers, including over 700 new panel members. 
 
Although the college was unable to have any large gatherings on campus over the year, 
we were innovative in our approaches to virtual events such as open days, graduation and 
staff conferences. In recognition of how well we adapted to delivering virtual events, the 
college won the CDN Marketing Award in 2020. 
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Analysis of Key Performance Indicators 

 
Activity Targets 
 
The college continued to exceed its credit activity target, as well as additional credits 
allocated by SFC during the year for the Young Person’s Guarantee (YPG) and the National 
Transition Training Fund (NTTF). In 2020-21 we delivered our highest ever number of 
credits, 49,632 against a target of 46,709. This included 2,356 credits for NTTF and YPG, 
and the college exceeded our target allocation by 463 credits. 
 
Outcome Agreement activity targets for key groups including SIMD10, care experienced, 
BAME, and senior phase students were all exceeded. For the fourth consecutive year there 
was a higher volume and proportion of credits (8.8%) delivered to students living in the 10% 
most deprived postcodes.  
 
Continuing a four-year trend, a higher proportion of credits was delivered to care 
experienced students (6.2%) and a total of 257 students identified as care experienced (an 
increase of 77). The proportion of credits delivered to BME students (4.4%) continued to 
increase and success for these students was the highest in the sector.  
 
The number of senior phase pupils studying vocational qualifications at the college 
increased over the year to 322. Reflecting changes to our curriculum portfolio, the 
proportion of credits delivered to students on STEM courses increased to 27%.  
 
Enrolments 
 
Student enrolments reached a record level at 9,377 in 2020-21, an 18% increase on the 
previous year. This strong demand has continued in 2021-22 with current enrolments in 
full-time courses ahead of the same time last year. Continuing the long-term trend of 
increasing demand, there was an increase in 2020-21 in full-time enrolments and part-time 
HE enrolments. The previous year’s decrease in part-time FE enrolments due to the first 
lockdown, improved over the year and was very close to the record number achieved in 
2018-19. The college continued to be the top destination for school leavers in West Lothian.  
 
Increasing demand for courses was reflected in a record number of enrolments in 2020-21. 
Ninety-one per cent of full-time students live in West Lothian, of whom around 40% were 
resident in Livingston and 60% in other towns and villages across the region. Two thirds of 
all students studied FE (further education courses) and a third studied HE (higher 
education). For full-time students, 40% chose to study HE qualifications and 60% chose 
FE. Of all enrolments, 25% were full-time and 75% were part-time. 
 
Student Success 
 
In 2020-21, student success improved in many areas. Overall, 81.4% of students 
completed their course successfully (up from 78% in the previous year). Success for part-
time students continued to be high, particularly at FE level, and this influenced our high rate 
of overall success. 
 
There was a good increase of three percentage points in full-time HE (higher education) 
student success. A significant contributor to that increase was the college’s ability to sustain 
work placements in subjects such as childhood practice and professional cookery.  
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Full-time FE student success declined due to an increase in withdrawals. The winter 
lockdown from January to March 2020, and two months of disruption resulting from EIS 
strike action, adversely affected FEFT students and contributed to more leaving their 
courses. However, despite significant improvement in 2018-19 (the year before the 
pandemic), withdrawal rates for full-time FE students have been stubbornly high for over 
ten years. Therefore, although the two pandemic years have undoubtedly contributed to 
increased withdrawals, the college will establish a working group in 2021 to look into this in 
detail and identify actions for improvement. 
 
In 2019-20, the college was in the top three of fifteen regional colleges for success for all 
student enrolments over 160 hours, above sector average for students living in the most 
deprived areas, for care-experienced students and students with a disability. BME students 
at West Lothian College in that year had the best success in the sector. We expect to be in 
a similar, or improved, position in the sector for 2020-21. 
 
Key Issues and Risks  

 
The college’s risk management framework includes a risk management policy, a Strategic 
Risk Register with each member of the leadership team assigned as a risk owner for each 
risk, a risk appetite set by the Board of Governors at an annual risk workshop facilitated by 
the college’s internal auditors, and a risk tolerance matrix overseen by the college’s internal 
auditors 
 
The Board of Governors undertook a review of the strategic risks in 2020-21 and agreed 
22 risks facing the college. The risks that carried the highest risk rating were: 
 
• Being unable to meet demand for courses due to insufficient SFC credit allocation 
• Failing to deliver the curriculum plan for 2020-21 due to disruption from the ongoing 

pandemic 
• Inflexible organisation structure due to national bargaining restrictions  
• Our estate not adequately reconfigured in line with the college’s ambition for growth due 

to insufficient resources 
• Unaffordable pay awards and terms and conditions negotiated through the national 

bargaining process  
 
The key actions taken to mitigate against those risks were: 
 
• Regular discussions with SFC on opportunities for additional credits and the readiness 

of the college to respond  
• Setting the curriculum planning timeframe to ensure full engagement of stakeholders 
• Setting aside money each year from our estates grant to continue campus 

improvements and communication with local Members of the Scottish Parliament and 
SFC to highlight need for additional resources. 

 
BREXIT 
 
The college has not yet experienced any significant impacts from BREXIT. 
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Going Concern 
 

The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections 
and considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.  
 
While the pandemic impacted on the college’s financial position through loss of fees 
income, this was mitigated through the development of online courses to continue 
delivering work-based learning, accessing the UK Government’s Job Retention Scheme 
and with additional funding from SFC.  
 
Although the college has net liabilities, this is largely due to the change of treatment of 
deferred Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within 
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one 
year as appropriate.   
 
Financial Review  
 
Nature, Objectives and Strategies  
 
The college’s management and control ensures financial stability is sound, and there are 
clear management structures and reporting arrangements in place with performance 
indicators and risk management processes to support delivery of outcomes.   

 
To monitor progress against its Outcome Agreement, the college focuses on a range of key 
performance indicators which are reviewed by managers and the Board of Governors on a 
regular basis. Delivering on the curriculum plan due to COVID restrictions, unaffordable 
pay awards and funding estates developments were among the key risks identified in the 
college’s 2020-21 strategic risk register.   
 
The Board presents its report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
July 2021.  The Board of Governors has approved these accounts on the basis the college 
is a going concern.  The audited financial statements have been prepared under the historic 
cost convention in line with the principles and guidance set out in the Statement of 
Recommended Practice, Accounting for Further and Higher Education and with the 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM). 
 
Scope of the Financial Statements 
 
The Financial Statements cover all activities of the college. 
 
Financial Position  

 
Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2021 
 
The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £1,742,000 
(2020 - deficit of £1,599,000), with total comprehensive income surplus of £2,593,000 (2020 
– deficit of £5,005,000).  The total comprehensive income in 2021 recorded an actuarial 
gain in respect of pension funds of £4,335,000 (2020 – loss of £5,895,000).   
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After transfer of £495,000 from the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit on the Income 
and Expenditure account decreased by £3,088,000 from £20,546,000 deficit to 
£17,458,000 deficit. 
  
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £265,000 for holiday pay accrual, 
£2,211,000 for voluntary agreed PFI termination loan, £3,523,000 for early retirement 
provisions, £12,093,000 for defined benefit pension obligations, off-set by surplus £633,000 
for trading activities (see Note 16). 
 
The college is reporting net total liabilities of £9,920,000 in its balance sheet, which is due 
to the reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred income within creditors 
and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as 
appropriate and the actuarial gain in respect of Pension Schemes. 
 
Cash Budget for Priorities  
 
Following their reclassification as central government bodies from 1 April 2014, colleges 
are now also required to comply with Central Government budgeting rules.  In addressing 
the impact of these budgeting rules, Scottish Government and SFC committed to providing 
the cash budget previously earmarked for depreciation for use on specified priorities. 
 
Colleges have now each been given a fixed cash budget for priorities which must be spent 
on agreed government priorities as outlined in the table below. Spend of the college’s cash 
budget for priorities, and impact on the operating position for the academic year, is detailed 
below. 
 
Table of cash budget for priorities spend 
 

 2020-21 
£’000 

2019-20 
£’000 

Revenue Priorities - - 
   
Total impact on operating position 
 

- - 

Capital   
Loan repayments - 158 
Early retirement provision payments 
 

190 32 

Total Capital 190 190 
Total cash budget for priorities spend 190 190 

 
 
SFC has confirmed that a deficit resulting from the college following its guidance should be 
treated as a ‘technical’ deficit and should not be interpreted, on its own, as a challenge to 
the college’s ongoing financial sustainability. Audit Scotland accepts that a deficit arising 
from the use of cash funding originally provided for non-cash depreciation does not indicate 
an underlying financial sustainability concern. 
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Adjusted Operating Position  
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) presents the financial performance 
during the accounting period in accordance with the FE/HE SORP. The adjusted operating 
position is intended to reflect the financial performance of the college after allowing for non-
cash adjustments and other material one-off or distorting items required by the SORP. The 
adjusted operating position is therefore designed to smooth any volatility in reported results 
arising from FRS 102 and also to recognise that some of the reported costs do not have an 
immediate cash impact on the college.  This should give a better indication of the college’s 
cash generative capacity. 
 

 Note 
 

2020-21 
£’000 

2019-20 
£’000 

Deficit before other gains and losses 
(FE/HE SORP basis) 

 (1,742) (1,599) 

Add back: 
- Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant) 
- Pension adjustment – Net service cost (FRS 

102) 
- Pension adjustment – Net interest cost 

 
1 
2 
3 

 
    625 
1,781 
  264 

 
    234 
1,510 
  241 

Deduct: 
- CBP allocated to loan repayments 
- CBP allocated to Early Retirement Payments 

 
  4 
  5 

  

 
- 

190 

 
158 
32 

Adjusted operating surplus  738 196 
 
The adjusted operating surplus above does not take account of a further £9,000 of 
payments the college has made towards its Early Retirement Provision during the year 
(£168,000 in 2019-20). Taking this into account the adjusted operating result would be a 
surplus of £729,000 (surplus of £28,000 in 2019-20).  
 
Note 1 Depreciation net of deferred capital grant is added back in recognition that this has 

a non-cash budget from the Scottish Government. 
Note 2 The non-cash element of current and past service pension cost less cash 

contributions paid. 
Note 3 The non-cash element of interest earned on pension assets less interest cost on 

pension liabilities. 
Note 4 Cash Budget for Priorities is included in income but the loan repayment is not 

reflected in costs therefore this amount is adjusted. 
Note 5 Cash payments in respect of the Early Retirement Provision included in CBP.  

 
Taxation Status 

 
The college is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charities Regulator as a Scottish 
Charity and is exempt from corporation tax and capital gains tax. The college receives no 
similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax. 
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Cash Flows  
 

Cash flow projections are prepared annually, broken down on a monthly basis to ensure 
that these are sufficient to meet the needs of the college.  These are reviewed monthly and 
reports are provided to the Executive Leadership Team and the Finance and General 
Purposes Committee.  Bank balances are checked on a daily basis and day-to day surplus 
funds are deposited overnight in a high interest bank account.   
 
Liquidity 

 
The college uses a number of ratios to assess the college’s liquidity. The two key ratios are 
current assets: current liabilities and days cash to total expenditure.  However as a result 
of ONS reclassification the college is only able to hold minimum cash reserves.  At the end 
of 2020-21 current assets: current liabilities were 1:1 and days cash to total expenditure 
was 50 days reflecting the ONS requirement.   
 
Creditor Payment Policy  

 
The college complies with the CBI Prompt Payment Code and has a policy of paying its 
suppliers within 30 days of invoice unless the invoice is contested.  All disputes and 
complaints are handled as quickly as possible. The college did not pay any late interest 
payments during the year. 

 
The Scottish Public Finance Manual sets a Government target for the payment of invoices 
within ten working days of their receipt. While this is a difficult target for the college to 
achieve, it nevertheless strives to pay all invoices as promptly as possible. 

 
Post-Balance Sheet Events  
 
There are no post-balance sheet events. 
 
Human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters 
 
West Lothian College is committed to upholding human rights, anti-corruption and anti-
bribery within the college and through the supply chain. 
 
Environmental matters 

 
West Lothian College recognises that it has a role to play in the conservation and protection 
of the environment. The college works towards improving its own environmental and 
sustainable practices and promoting an awareness of environmental responsibilities 
amongst our staff and students. 
 
Through our Environmental and Sustainability Policy we: 
 

• comply with and exceed when possible all applicable legislation, regulations and 
codes of practice 

• ensure that all environmental risks are assessed, managed and controlled 
• integrate sustainability considerations into all our business decisions 
• minimise the impact on the environment and our sustainability of our core activities, 

and 
• review and continually strive to improve our sustainability and lessen our impact on 

the environment. 
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During 2020-21 the college finalised its Net Zero Plan for the period 2021-26.  This plan 
sets out actions and initiatives to achieve as we transition towards a net zero future. This 
will not only help achieve the Scottish Government’s targets and our aims, it will provide a 
sound basis for our students and staff to live, support and promote sustainability in their 
everyday lives.   The plan also sets out how the college will address the United Nations 
sustainable development goals. 
 
A range of cross-college activities and initiatives are planned in 2021-22 and during COP26 
which will be overseen by the college’s Sustainability Group. 
 
Climate Change (Scotland) Act compliance 

 
The college complied with the Scottish Government sustainability reporting in line with the 
requirements of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009.   
 
The Performance Report is approved by the Principal on 7 December 2021 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT  
 
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on the 
service arrangements and remuneration of the Principal and determines the service 
arrangements and remuneration of Vice Principals. 
 
Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements 
 
Salary Entitlements1 
 
The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of college 
senior management. 
 
Single total figure of remuneration 
 12 months ended 31 July 2021 12 months ended 31 July 

2020 
 
Name 

Actual 
Salary 
£’000 

 

Pension 
Benefit 
£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Salary 
£’000 

 

Pension 
Benefit 
£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Alex Linkston 20-25 0 20-25 20-25 0 20-25 
Jackie Galbraith 115-120 20-25 140-

145 
105-110 20-25 115-120 

Simon Earp 75-80 15-20 95-100 70-75 10-15 80-85 
Sarah-Jane Linton* 70-75 15-20 90-95 N/A N/A N/A 
Jennifer McLaren  75-80 15-20 95-100 70-75 10-15 80-85 

 
*Sarah-Jane Linton joined the college September 2020 
 
Median Remuneration 
 
Colleges are required by the FReM to disclose the relationships between the remuneration 
of the highest paid official and the median remuneration of their workforce. 
 
Based on the twelve-month equivalent figures above, the banded remuneration of the 
highest paid official in the organisation in the financial year 2020-21 was £115k-£120k) 
(£105k-£110k in 2019-20). This was 3.4 times (3.5 times in 2019-20) the median 
remuneration of the workforce which was £30k-£35k (2019-20 £30k-£35k). 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 Note: 
 

a) The salaries in the above table represent the amount earned in the financial year 
b) The value of pension benefits is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 plus the real increase in any lump 

sum less the contributions made by the individual.  The x20 multiplier aims to bring public bodies in line with other industries 
in disclosing an assessed cumulative pension benefit for a standard 20 year period which is the estimated life span following 
retirement. 

c) The details in this table are subject to audit 
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Accrued Pension Benefits  
 
Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher’s 
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), a defined benefit scheme which is notionally funded, and 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Both STSS and LGPS are career average 
salary pension schemes. 
 
The scheme’s normal retirement age is the scheme member’s state pension age. 
 
Contribution rates are set annually for all employees. There is no automatic entitlement to 
a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the limit 
set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on final 
pensionable salary and years of pensionable service.  
 
Senior Officials’ Pension 
  
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff. The 
accrued pension benefits for senior officials are set out in the table below, together with the 
pension contributions made by the college. 
 
 
 
Name 

Accrued 
pension at 

pension age  
at 31/07/21 

£’000 

Accrued lump 
sum at 

pension age  
at 31/07/21 

£’000 

Real increase 
in pension 
01/08/20 to 

31/07/21 
£’000 

Real increase 
in lump sum 
01/08/20 to 

31/07/21 
£’000 

Jackie Galbraith 16 0 2 0 
Simon Earp  7 0 2 0 
Sarah-Jane Linton 11 2 11 2 
Jennifer McLaren  17 0 2 0 

 
Cash equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
 
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of 
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. 
 
 
Name 

CETV 
at 31/07/21 

£’000 

CETV 
at 31/07/20 

£’000 

Real increase 
in CETV 

£’000 
Jackie Galbraith  245 201 44 
Simon Earp 85 63 22 
Sarah-Jane Linton* 114 N/A 114 
Jennifer McLaren  265 233 32 

 
*Sarah-Jane Linton joined the college in September 2020 
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The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at 
which the person will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without 
reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute 
pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future 
inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as 
a consequence of their total Local Government service and not just their current 
appointment.  
 
In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information 
should be taken into account:  
 
(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions 

set out above and do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may 
receive upon retirement.  

(ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the 
employer and the scheme member have made over a period of time. 

 
Real increase in CETV 
 
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and 
uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 
 
Compensation for loss of office 
 
There were no employees who left under voluntary exit terms during the year.  
 

2020-21 2019-20 

£’000 Number of Employees Number of Employees 
15-20 0 - 
20-25 0 4 
25-30 0 1 

 
There were no compulsory redundancies in the year. 
 
Staff Report 
 
Salaries and Related costs 
 

 2021 
Directly 

employed staff 
£’000 

2021 
Seconded and 
agency staff 

£’000 

2021 
Total 

 
£’000 

2020 
Total 

 
£’000 

Wages and salaries 10,478 - 10,478 9,975 
Social security costs 978 - 978 924 
Other pension costs  3,785 - 3,785 3,307 
Restructuring Costs (9) - (9) 99 
Total 15,232 - 15,232 14,305 
Average number of FTE 294 - 294 282 
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The college employed 273 females (78%) and 108 (22%) males during 2020-21 
(headcount). 
 
In the year ended 31 July 2021 staff turnover was 9.76% 
 
Sickness Absence Data 
 
The total sickness absence percentage as at 30 June 2021 was 1.35%.  This is lower than 
the equivalent figure for 2019-20 (6.21%) due to a decrease in both short and long term 
sick absence. 
 
Facility Time 
 
In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 
2017, the college provided the following support through paid facility time for union officials 
working at the college during the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. 
 
Relevant union officials 
 
Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the 
relevant period 

 8 

Full time equivalent employee number  7.2 
 
Percentage of time spend on facility time 
 
Percentage Number of employees 
0% 0 
1%-50% 7.2 
51%-99% 0 
100% 0 

 
Percentage of pay bill spend on facility time 
 
Total cost of facility time 20,375 
Total pay bill 15,232,000 
Percentage of the total pay bill spend on facility time 0.1% 

 
Paid trade union activities 
 
Time spend on trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours was 
100%. 
 
Equal Opportunities  
 
The college is committed to its core value of being welcoming to all – ensuring all staff, 
regardless of background, are welcomed, retained and developed. 
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The framework and direction for action in this area is set by the college’s People Strategy 
(https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4937/people-strategy-2021-2025.pdf), Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Policy (https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/3207/equality-
diversity-and-inclusion-policy.pdf ) and can be further reviewed in more detail within the 
college’s Equality Mainstreaming Report (https://www.west-
lothian.ac.uk/media/4936/equality-mainstream-report.pdf ). 
 
The college has due regard to the key aims of the public sector duty. Equality and diversity 
is a focus for staff induction and mandatory training. Further training is undertaken for 
managers and staff on themes such as unconscious bias. The college monitors and reports 
on the fairness and effectiveness of equality and diversity activities through workforce data 
monitoring, including an annual staff experience survey. On particular equality themes the 
use of external accreditation supports progressing equality and diversity in areas such as 
disability (Disability Confident Employer, Epilepsy Friendly) and sexual orientation (Silver 
LGBT Charter Mark). 
 
The college recognises and commits to the further need for action to ensure the workforce 
is representative of the local community. In particular work using the Scottish Government’s 
minority ethnic recruitment toolkit will encourage applications from BAME backgrounds. 
Action will also be taken via various initiatives to support younger people into employment 
with the college. Across other protected characteristics further work will be undertaken to 
support and encourage applicants from across the community and removing any real or 
perceived barriers to employment from applicants and ensuring all staff can make a full 
contribution to the college’s work once in post. 
 
Approved by the Board of Governors on 7 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4937/people-strategy-2021-2025.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/3207/equality-diversity-and-inclusion-policy.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/3207/equality-diversity-and-inclusion-policy.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4936/equality-mainstream-report.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4936/equality-mainstream-report.pdf
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 
 
Board of Governors 

 
Membership of the Board of Governors 
 
The Post 16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013 requires that the board of a regional college 
should consist of no fewer than 15, nor more than 18 members. The Board of Governor 
members who held office during the year were as follows: 
 

Name Position Appointed Term 
Alex Linkston Chair 27 Jun 16 2nd 
Sue Cook  Vice Chair and Non-Exec 1 Mar 15 2nd 
Frank Gribben Non-Exec /Senior Independent 1 Mar 15 2nd 
Iain McIntosh Non-Executive 1 Mar 15 2nd 
Colin Miller Non-Executive 1 Mar 15 2nd 
Elaine Cook Non-Executive 2 May 19 1st 
Lynne Hollis Non-Executive 2 May 19 1st 
Richard Lockhart Non-Executive 1 July 16 2nd 
Thomas Bates Non-Executive  1 Aug 17 2nd 
Sue Stahly Non-Executive 14 Nov 19 1st 
Moira Niven Non-Executive 1 Dec 16 2nd 
Jackie Galbraith Principal and Chief Exec 6 Aug 18 n/a 
Julia Simpson Staff 6 Sep 18 2nd 
Neil Sinclair Staff 2 Jun 19 2nd 
Kirsti Clark Student Association 1 Aug 20 2nd 
Jeannette Dobson Student Association 1 Aug 20 2nd 
Seonaid Crosby Co- Opted 4 Sep 19 2nd 
Name Position Appointed Change 
Simon Ashpool Non-Executive 1 Jul 16 Resigned  

1/7 
Jeremy Miles Non-Executive 12 Feb 21 Resigned 

19/6 
 
Membership of the Executive Leadership Team 
 
The Executive Leadership Team is responsible for the day to day management of West 
Lothian College’s activities and operations and consists of: 
 
Jackie Galbraith Principal and Chief Executive 
 
Simon Earp              Vice Principal Performance & Improvement 
 
Sarah-Jane Linton Vice Principal Learning & Attainment 
  
Jennifer McLaren Vice Principal Finance & Corporate Services 
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Related Party Transactions 
 
Due to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of its Board of Governors 
(being drawn from local public and private sector organisations), it is inevitable that 
transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the college’s Board of 
Governors may have an interest, and will be recorded as such in the Minutes of the 
Meetings and/or the Register of Interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a 
member of the Board of Governors may have a material interest are conducted at arm’s 
length and in accordance with normal project and procurement procedures. The related 
party transactions due to/by the college for the year ended 31 July 2021 and the amounts 
outstanding at this date are disclosed in note 24 and a link to the register of interests is 
provided below. 
 
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/corporate-and-governance/board-information/ 
 
Personal Data Related Incidents 
 
Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 requires that organisations report on personal 
data related incidents.  In 2020-21, the college had no reported data incidents (2019-20: 
no incidents). 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
7 December 2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/corporate-and-governance/board-information/
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board of Governors 
 
The Board of Governors is required to present audited financial statements for each 
financial year.            
   

In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by 
the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 
Education (Scotland) Act 2013, the Board of Governors is responsible for the administration 
and management of the college’s affairs, including ensuring an effective system of internal 
control, and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial year. 
         
   
 
The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the college and 
enable it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Further 
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently amended by the Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 
2013, the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher 
Education, the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2020-21 (FReM) where applicable 
and other relevant accounting standards.  In addition, within the terms and conditions of a 
Financial Memorandum agreed between the Scottish Funding Council and the college’s 
Board of Governors, the Board of Governors, through its designated office holder, is 
required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the college’s state of affairs and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that year.
  
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by 
the Scottish Funding Council which brings together the provisions of the Financial 
Memorandum with other formal disclosures that the Scottish Funding Council require the 
Board of Governors to make in the financial statements and related notes. 
            
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is required to:  
              

• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;  
 
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;   

          
• State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;  
 

• Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the college will continue in operation. The Board of Governors is 
satisfied that it has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable 
future and for this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements.  
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The Board of Governors has taken reasonable steps to:       

• Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes 
for which they have been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum 
with the Funding Council and any other conditions which the Funding Council may 
from time to time prescribe;         
     

• Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to 
safeguard public funds and funds from other sources;  

 
• Safeguard the assets of the college and prevent and detect fraud;  

  
• Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the college’s resources 

and expenditure.          
      

The key elements of the college’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to 
discharge the responsibilities set out above, include the following:    
          
• Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of 

academic and support departments;  
       
• A comprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by 

detailed annual income, expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;  
    
• Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly 

reviews of financial results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast 
outturns;  

  
• Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, 

with investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to 
formal detailed appraisal and review according to approval levels set by the Board of 
Governors; 

         
• Comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, 

approved by the Audit Committee and the Finance and General Purposes Committee;
  

      
• Professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit 

Committee and endorsed by the Board of Governors and whose head provides the 
Board of Governors with a report on internal audit activity within the college and an 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the college’s system of internal control, 
including internal financial control. 

        
Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.   
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Auditor 
 
The Auditor General for Scotland has appointed Mazars LLP to undertake the audit for the 
year ended 31 July 2021. 
           
Disclosure of Information to Auditors 
 
The Board of Governors certify that, so far as we are each aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the college’s auditors are unaware; and as members of the Board of 
Governors we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 
ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the college’s 
auditors are aware of that information. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the Board on 7 December 2021 and signed on its 
behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Alex Linkston 
 
Chair 
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
Introduction 
 
The college is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. 
This summary is written to assist the reader of the financial statements and describes the 
manner in which the college has applied the principles of good governance set out in 2016 
Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public 
Finance Manual.  
 
This governance statement is designed to supplement the information provided in the 
financial statements.  It sets out the governance structures, risk management and internal 
control processes that have been operating in West Lothian College in the year ended 31 
July 2021 and reports the Board’s assessment of the effectiveness of these arrangements. 
 
During 2020-21 there were changes to the Board membership (see page 22). 
 
Governance Structure 
 
The college has an effective Board and Committee structure in place. All of the Committees 
are formally constituted with terms of reference.   
 
 
 
       
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The full Board meets four times a year. Due to COVID19 restrictions the board continued 
to hold meetings online throughout the year. In addition, an annual strategic meeting took 
place in May 2021 where the Board invited AdvanceHE to lead a discussion on how to 
increase BAME representation at Board level.  The Board also received cyber security 
training. 
 
In March 2021 the Board held a virtual risk workshop facilitated by the college’s internal 
auditors where risk tolerance levels were discussed and agreed. 
 
Board of Governor Committees 
 
Due to COVID19 restrictions all Committee meetings were held virtually 
 
The Audit Committee meets four times a year, with the college’s external and internal 
auditors in attendance where required.  
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The Committee considers detailed reports together with recommendations for the 
improvement of the college’s systems of internal control and management’s responses and 
implementation plans.  It also receives and considers reports from the Scottish Funding 
Council as they affect the college’s business and monitors adherence to the regulatory 
requirements. The Principal and Chair attend meetings of the Audit Committee but are not 
members of the Committee.  
 
The Finance and General Purposes Committee recommends to the Board the college’s 
annual revenue and capital budgets and normally meets four times a year.  
 
The Learning and Teaching Committee meets four times a year, and focuses on the quality 
of the student experience.    
 
The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of senior staff, specifically the 
Principal and Vice Principals, and meets as required, normally once a year.  
 
The Nominations Committee considers candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and meets 
as required, normally at least once per year.   The Nominations Committee is responsible 
for selecting candidates for appointment by the Board of Governors to vacancies in its 
membership.  The Committee may use a number of selection methods, including external 
advertising, personal contact, the encouragement of nominations and the use of a search 
Committee.  The Committee considers the balance of membership, including members’ 
experience and skills and identifies any gaps.  The Committee also tries to ensure that the 
membership of the Board reflects its community.  The Committee makes its 
recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval for appointment. 
 
Board of Governors Membership 
 
The college’s Board of Governors comprises lay members, students and employees 
appointed under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by 
the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 
Education (Scotland) Act 2013. The majority of Board members are non-executive.  The 
roles of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors are separated from the role of the 
college’s Principal. During 2020-21 the gender balance for non-executive positions 
changed from 7 males/6 females to 8 males/5 females.  Gender balance remains are area 
of focus and is part of the assessment process for all recruitment. 
 
Matters specifically reserved to the Board for decision are set out in the college’s Standing 
Orders, by custom and under the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding 
Council. The Board acknowledges the responsibility for the ongoing strategic direction of 
the college, approval of major developments and the receipt of regular reports from the 
Principal on the day to day operations of its business. 
 
Board Effectiveness 
 
An annual Board Member review was completed for Non-Executive Members, and no 
issues were noted in terms of meeting attendance or performance of duties and all 
meetings met quorum requirements.  The following table is a summary of attendance for 
the period 1st August 2020 to 31st July 2021. 
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Board/ 
Committee 

Board Audit L&T F&GP Nom Remun 

Actual Meetings 4 4 4 4 2 2 
Alex Linkston 4 X 4 4 2 2 
Sue Cook  4 4 X X 2 2 
Frank Gribben 3 X X 3 X X 
Iain McIntosh 4 X 4 X 2 2 
Colin Miller 4 3 X X X X 
Elaine Cook 3 X 3 X X X 
Lynne Hollis 4 4 X 4 X X 
Richard Lockhart 3 3 X X X X 
Thomas Bates 3 X 3 X X X 
Moira Niven 4 X 4 4 2 2 
Sue Stahly 2 X X 4 X X 
Jackie Galbraith 4 X 4 4 X X 
Julia Simpson 2 X X 4 X X 
Neil Sinclair 4 X 4 X X X 
Kirsti Clark 3 X X 3 X X 
Jeannette Dobson 4 X 4 X X X 
Simon Ashpool 4 3 X X X X 
Jeremy Miles 1 1 X X X X 
Attendance 83% 75% 94% 94% 100% 100% 

 
Board Development Actions 
 
An annual Board Effectiveness Self-Assessment for 2020-21 was completed and externally 
validated in April 2021.  The self-assessment confirmed that the Board and Committees 
were operating effectively but highlighted the need to update the planned actions to be 
more readily measured.  
 
The following actions were noted as areas requiring improvement, with progress updates. 
 
Action Progress Update 
 
 
We will demonstrate more proactive 
pursuit and early engagement with 
the aim of creating a more diverse 
representation on the Board, such as 
those from an ethnic minority 
background. 

 
Diversity of the Board is an area of focus and 
was included as a topic of external 
presentation at the Board Strategy Day in May.    
 
The Principal attended a meeting of the West 
Lothian Race Forum to discuss working in 
collaboration and agreed that the college will 
be represented at future WL Race Forum 
Board Meetings.  
 
Recruitment of new Board Members is 
focused on greater diversity and will be shared 
with local community Groups. 
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We will update the Board Action Plan 
to reflect SMART (specific, 
measurable, achievable, realistic and 
timely) terms as possible. 
 

 
A revised Board Development Plan has been 
prepared with measurable outcomes.  
 
Progress updates are reviewed at each 
Board, or Committee as appropriate. 
 

 
We will implement revised risk 
management processes, including to 
respective roles and responsibilities 
during 2021, with regular updates on 
progress provided to the Board. 
 

 
A revised approach was presented to the 
Principal by the VP's and a simplified approach 
was proposed for implementation in the 
September and December Boards. 

 
We may further develop the 
Committee Chair appointment 
process, including succession 
planning and shadowing options to 
support continuity and skills 
development.  
 

 
A revised Skills Matrix was prepared, giving 
greater insight into the detailed skills and 
experience of Board Members.  This has been 
used to highlight gaps in current and future 
skills and experience, and diversity. 

 
We will develop a more structured 
review process for Board Chair and 
Board Members to ensure there is a 
consistent understanding of agreed 
actions and development areas. 
 

 
The Board Chair has completed a formal 
review of all Board Members using a standard 
process, and review template.  A final report 
was agreed with individual Board Members 
and the Board Chair, with any Development 
Actions captured on the Board Development 
Plan.  
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Assessment of Corporate Governance 
 
The Code of Good Governance states; “The board secretary may be a member of the 
senior management team in their board secretary capacity, but they cannot hold any other 
senior management team position at the same time”. During 2020-21 the Board of 
Governors reviewed the dual role held by the Vice Principal Finance & Corporate Services 
and agreed that the Secretary to the Board should be a separate and independent 
appointment.  On 6 April 2021 a new Secretary to the Board was appointed.  Between 1 
August 2020 and 5 April 2021, the Vice Principal Finance and Curriculum Services acted 
as Secretary to the Board on an interim basis.  
 
5-year estates plan 
 
During 2020-21 the college produced its 5-year estates plan which captures the estates 
developments required to deliver on curriculum plans and give students the best possible 
learning experience.    
 
Risk Management 
 
The college maintains a Strategic Risk Register.  Each strategic risk is assigned an owner 
from the College Leadership team who agree the risk register and quarterly updates.  The 
Performance Report details key strategic risks identified during 2020-21 and the mitigating 
actions. 
 
The most significant risks during 2020-21 were: 
 

• Failing to deliver the curriculum plan for 2020-21 due to disruption in the ongoing 
COVID19 pandemic resulting in disengagement of students. 

• Inflexible organisational structure due to national bargaining restrictions resulting in 
an unaffordable staffing structure and limited student experience. 

• Estate not adequately reconfigured in line with the college’s ambition for growth due 
to insufficient resources resulting in not meeting the needs of the region. 

• Pay awards and terms and conditions negotiated through the national bargaining 
process unaffordable resulting in the college not being financially sustainable 

• Sub-optimal business continuity plan due to a lack of a fully comprehensive off-site 
IT back-up facility resulting in the college not being able to fully operate efficiently in 
the event of a major incident. 

 
During 2020-21 the Board of Governors reviewed the process for identifying, reporting, 
evaluating and managing the college’s significant risks and agreed that it would: 

• Annually agree the college’s significant risks and undertake an annual risk workshop 
at which the risk appetite would be set 

• Delegate to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the risk management 
framework  

• Delegate responsibility for the risks aligned with their respective remits to the Audit, 
Finance and General Purposes, and Learning and Teaching committees for 
reviewing and being satisfied that these risks are being managed effectively 

• Receive a quarterly update from the Chairs of the Audit, Finance and General 
Purposes, and Learning and Teaching committees.   
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Reports by management have been received and reviewed by the Board and Board 
Committees which have provided information as to how risks are being managed and what 
internal controls are in place.   
 
Internal Audit 
 
West Lothian College also has an internal audit service, the work of which concentrates on 
areas of key activities determined in accordance with the annual internal audit plan 
approved by the Board of Governors. The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee, 
and have direct access to the chair of the Audit Committee if required.  The internal auditors 
issue an annual report that gives an opinion of the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness 
of the college’s internal control system. 
 
Internal audit reports have been received on a range of areas within the college during 
2020-21.  In the internal auditor’s opinion, the college has a framework of internal controls 
in place that provides reasonable assurance regarding the organisation’s governance, risk 
management, achievement of objectives and value for money for the year ended 31 July 
2021. 
 
Internal Control 
 
The college’s Board of Governors is responsible for the college’s system of internal control 
and for reviewing its effectiveness.  The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control is conducted through the work of the Board of Governors, the Finance and General 
Purposes Committee and the Audit Committee.  The system can provide only reasonable 
and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions authorised and 
properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would 
be detected within a timely period.   
 
The college has a range of internal financial controls which include:   
 
• a budgeting system with an annual budget which is approved by the Board of 

Governors; 
• the provision of management information on a planned, regular basis and as required; 
• regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of monthly and 

annual financial reports and key performance indicators which indicate financial 
performance against the forecasts; and 

• financial regulations, which identify policy and set up a control system within which 
management can delegate authority whilst informing staff of correct financial 
procedures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls 
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The Board of Governors is of the opinion that throughout the year ended 31 July 2021, the 
college has been in compliance with all the principles set out in the 2016 Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance 
Manual.  
 
The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing the college’s significant risks, that it has been in place for the year ended 31 July 
2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements, that it is 
regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors and that it accords with the 2016 Code of 
Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance 
Manual. 
 
External auditors have reviewed the key financial controls to the extent required, to ensure 
the college’s financial statements are not materially misstated.  The external auditors have 
not identified any weaknesses in key controls and the wider scope work has identified 
appropriate Governance procedures and management has adequate arrangements in 
place covering standards of conduct.  
 
BREXIT 
 
The Board of Governors does not consider there to be any significant impact from BREXIT. 
 
Going Concern 
 
The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections 
and considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to 
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.  
 
Although the college has net liabilities, this is due to the change of treatment of deferred 
Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within creditors 
and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as 
appropriate.   
 
 
Approved by order of the members of the Board on 7 December 2021 and signed on its 
behalf by: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF WEST LOTHIAN COLLEGE, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR 
SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements  
 

Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West 
Lothian College for the year ended 31 July 2021 under the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise  the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and 
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. The  financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements: 
 

• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding 
Council of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of its deficit for 
the year then ended; 

 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice; and 
 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further    and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish 
Funding Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and 
regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code   of Audit Practice approved by 
the Auditor General for Scotland. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. We were appointed by the Auditor General on 31 
May 2016. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is five years. We are 
independent of the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial  
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services prohibited 
by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the college. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
 
 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
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Emphasis of Matter – Material valuation uncertainty   
 
We draw attention to Note 1(t) in the financial statements, which discloses a 
material valuation uncertainty caused by Covid-19 declared in the valuation 
report for property. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.   
 
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 
We have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 
significant doubt on the college’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis 
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements 
are authorised for issue. 
 
Risks of material misstatement 
We report in a separate Annual Audit Report, available from the Audit Scotland 
website, the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we identified 
and our judgements thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors 's Responsibilities, 
the Board of Governors is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for 
such internal control as the Board of Governors  determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors are responsible for 
assessing the college’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless deemed inappropriate. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements irregularities, 
including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and    regulations. 
 
 
 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
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We design procedures in line with our responsibilities outlined above to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures include: 

 
• obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory framework and 

how the college is complying with that framework; 
 

• identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of    the College; 
 

• assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, 
including how fraud might occur; and 

 
• considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate competence 

and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations. 
 
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including 
fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness 
of the college’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures 
performed. 

 
Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of the 
audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness 
of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of collusion 
involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those 
individuals involved. 

 
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 
report. 
 
Reporting on regularity of expenditure and income 

Opinion on regularity 
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial 
statements were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and 
guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers. 

 
Responsibilities for regularity 
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and 
income. In addition to our responsibilities to detect material misstatements in the 
financial statements in respect of irregularities, we are responsible for expressing an 
opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Accounts 2021 Page 37   

 
Reporting on other requirements 

Opinion prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on audited  part of the 
Remuneration and Staff Report 
We have audited the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report described as 
audited. In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has 
been properly prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
Statutory other information 
The Board of Governors is responsible for the statutory other information in the 
annual report and accounts. The statutory other information comprises the 
Performance Report and the Accountability Report excluding the audited part of the 
Remuneration and Staff Report. 

 
Our responsibility is to read all the statutory other information and, in doing  so, 
consider whether the statutory other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a 
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this  
statutory other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the statutory other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Performance Report and Governance Statement to the extent explicitly stated in the 
following opinions prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland. 

 
Opinions prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on  Performance Report and 
Governance Statement 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and 
that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding 
Council; and 

 
• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements 
and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish 
Funding Council. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in    our opinion: 

 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report 
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 

 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

 
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 
In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions 
on the wider scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out 
in our Annual Audit Report. 
 
Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the 
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In 
accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, we do not undertake to 
have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third 
parties. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Lucy Nutley 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 
Mazars LLP 
100 Queen Street 
Glasgow 
G1 3DN 
 
7 December 2021 
 
Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
 

  No
tes 

Year    Year  
Ended   Ended 

31 July 
2021 £’000   

31 July 
2020 
£’000 

Income         
SFC grants 2 14,587   13,544 
Tuition fees and education contracts 3 3,437   3,243 
Other income 4 1,315   2,020 
Investment income 5 -   1 
          
Total Income   19,339   18,808 
          
Expenditure         
Staff Costs 6 15,232   14,782 
Other operating expenses 7 4,550   4,615 
Depreciation 10 1,035   769 
Interest payable 8 264   241 
          
Total Expenditure   21,081   20,407 
          

Deficit before tax   (1,742)   (1,599)   

Taxation 9     -   
Deficit for the year   (1,742)   (1,599) 
 
Unrealised Surplus on Revaluation of 
Assets 

 -   2,489 

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pension 
schemes   4,335   (5,895) 

  
  

      

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,593   (5,005) 

          Represented by:   
Restricted comprehensive income 

  
-   - 

Unrestricted comprehensive income 2,593   (5,005) 

    
      

2,593   (5,005) 
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared under the FE/HE SORP. The SORP 
does not permit colleges to reflect the non-cash budget for depreciation in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income.  Note 28 provides details of the adjusted operating position on 
a Central Government basis. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 
 

  

Income and 
Expenditure 

Account 
Revaluation 

Reserve Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance at 31 July 2019 (13,351) 5,843 (7,508) 

Deficit from statement of comprehensive 
income (1,599) - (1,599) 

Other comprehensive income (5,895) 2,489 (3,406)   
Transfers between revaluation reserve and 
income and expenditure account 299 (299) - 

Total comprehensive income for the year (7,195) 2,190 (5,005) 

Balance at 31 July 2020 (20,546) 8,033 (12,513) 

Deficit from statement of comprehensive 
income (1,742) - (1,742) 

Other comprehensive income 4,335 - 4,335   
Transfers between revaluation reserve and 
income and expenditure account 495 (495) - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,088 (495) 2,593 

        
Balance at 31 July 2021 (17,458) 7,538 (9,920) 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 
 

 
 

 
Notes 

 
2021 
£’000 

  
2020 
£’000 

Non-Current Assets 
Fixed Assets 
 

 
10 19,391 

 
 

 
19,792 

Current Assets 
 
Trade and other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 
 

11 
17 

 
1,627 
2,749 

  
 

1,444 
1,129 

 
 

  
4,376 

  
2,573 

 
Less: Creditors; amounts falling due within 
one year 
 

 
12 (4,303) 

  
(3,358) 

 

Net Current Liabilities  73  (785) 
     
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 
 

 19,464  19,007 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more  
than one year 

13 
 
 

(13,768) 
 

 (13,415) 
 

Provisions 
Defined benefit obligations 
Other provisions 

 
15 
15 

 
(12,093) 
(3,523) 

  
(14,299) 
(3,806) 

     
Total Net Liabilities  (9,920)  (12,513) 
 
 

    

Unrestricted Reserves 
Income and expenditure account 
Revaluation reserve 
 

 
16 

 
(17,458) 

7,538 

  
(20,546) 

8,033 

Total Reserves  (9,920)  (12,513) 
 
 
The financial statements on pages 39 to 67 were approved by the Board of Governors  
On 7 December 2021 and signed on its behalf on that date by: 
 
 
 
 
 

Alex Linkston 
Chair 

 Jackie Galbraith 
Principal 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 
2021  
£’000 

 

 Year 
 Ended 
31 July 

2020  
£’000 

 
Cash flow from operating activities 
Deficit for the year 
 
Adjustment for non-cash items 
Depreciation  
Deferred capital grants released to income 
(Increase) in debtors 
Increase in creditors due within one year 
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 
Pension costs less contributions payable 
 
Adjustment for investing or financing activities 
Investment income 
Interest payable 
 

  
(1,742) 

 
 

1,035 
 (410) 
(183) 
1,074 
(199) 
1,781 

 
 

- 
264  

  
(1,599) 

 
 

769 
 (535) 
(274) 

615 
(200) 
1,510 

 
 

(1) 
241  

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating 
activities 

 1,620  526 

     
Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 
 

  
- 
 

  
1 

 
  -  1 
     
Cash flows from financing activities 
Repayments of amounts borrowed 

  
- 

  
 (158) 

  -  (158) 
     
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents in the year 

  
1,620 

  
369 

     
 
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year 

  
1,129 

  
760 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

  
2,749 

  
1,129 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021 
 
1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
a) Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019, and 
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards FRS 102 and the 2020-21 Government 
Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government. They conform to 
the Accounts Direction and other guidance published by the Scottish Funding Council 
(FReM 2.2.8). 
 
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement 
in applying the college’s accounting policies. 
 
b) Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements will be prepared under the historical cost convention as modified 
by the revaluation of surplus land and certain fixed assets. 
 
The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards 
as adapted or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a choice 
of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the 
college for the purposes of giving a true and fair view will be selected. The particular 
policies adopted by the college in dealing with items that are considered material to the 
financial statements are set out (FReM 2.2.8). 
 
c) Going Concern 
 
The activities of the college, together with the factors likely to affect its future development 
and performance will be set out in the Performance Report. The financial position of the 
college, its cash flow and liquidity will be presented in the Financial Statements and 
accompanying Notes. The net liabilities are due to the reclassification of deferred 
Government grants as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors 
due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate 
 
The college’s forecasts and financial projections will indicate that the college has a 
reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern 
basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements. 
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d) Recognition of Income 
 
Income from the sale of goods or services will be credited to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income when the goods or services are supplied to the external customers 
or the terms of the contract have been satisfied.  
     
Fee income will be stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period in which students are studying.   
Income received in advance will be recognised as deferred income within creditors on the 
balance sheet and then released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period 
it is earned.      
   
All income from short-term deposits and Investment income will be credited to the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income on a receivable basis.     
    
Funds the college receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body will 
be excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.     
       
e) Grant Funding 
 
Government revenue grants including the recurrent grants from the Scottish Funding 
Council will be recognised in income over the periods in which the college recognises the 
related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a government 
grant is deferred it will be recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated 
between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate. 
 
Grants from non-governmental sources will be recognised in income when the college is 
entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received 
in advance of performance related conditions being met will be recognised as deferred 
income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are 
met. 
 
f) Capital Grants 
 
Government capital grants will be recognised in income over the expected useful life of the 
asset. Other capital grants will be recognised in income when the college is entitled to the 
funds subject to any performance related conditions being met,  
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g) Short Term Employment Benefits 
 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences will be 
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the college. 
Any unused benefits will be accrued and measured as the additional amount the college 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 
 
h) Pension Schemes 
 
Retirement benefits to employees of the college are provided by the Teachers' 
Superannuation Scheme (Scotland) (STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF). These 
are defined benefit schemes which are externally funded and contracted out of the State 
Earnings Related Pension Scheme until March 2016.   
 
i) STSS 
 
The college is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the 
STSS on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 102, will 
account for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The amount charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income will represent the contributions payable to the 
scheme in respect of the year. The contributions will be determined by qualified actuaries 
on the basis of periodic valuations using the projected unit method. 
 
ii) LPF 
 
The college’s share of LPF scheme assets and liabilities are valued by the LPF actuary, 
Hymans Robertson. Contributions to the schemes will be charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees working lives 
with the college.  The contributions will be determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial 
valuations. In accordance with FRS 102, the amount charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income will represent the service cost expected to arise from employee 
service in the current year. 
 
The costs of enhanced early retirement benefits are borne directly by the college. 
 
i) Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
In line with the FReM all tangible assets must be carried at fair value. 
 
i) Land and Buildings  
 
Land and Buildings will be measured using the revaluation model. Under the revaluation 
model assets are revalued to fair value. Where appropriate Depreciated Replacement cost 
will be used as a measure of fair value for land and buildings otherwise Market Value will 
be used. The college has a policy of ensuring a full revaluation takes place at least every 
5 years such that the fair value is not materially different to the current value.  Depreciation 
and impairment losses will be subsequently charged on the revalued amount. 
 
Freehold land will not be depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. 
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College buildings will be depreciated over 30 years and transferred car parking areas will 
be depreciated over 25 years, both commencing in the first full financial year after the date 
of transfer of the estate to public ownership (2 April 2007). Other additions to the estate will 
be depreciated over 10 years from the date they are brought into use.  
 
Costs incurred in relation to land and buildings after initial purchase or construction, and 
prior to valuation, will be capitalised to the extent they increase the expected future benefits 
to the college. 
 
If a building is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the first 
year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months the asset was in use.   
 
A review for impairment of a fixed asset will be carried out if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. 
 
Buildings under construction will be accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ 
certificates and other direct costs incurred to 31 July. They will not be depreciated until they 
are brought into use. 
 
ii) Fixed Plant and Equipment 
 
Equipment will be capitalised at cost and carried at depreciated historical cost, which is used 
as a proxy for fair value when it is expected to be in use within the business on a continuing 
basis for at least 3 years. Depreciated historical cost is deemed to be more appropriate than 
revaluing for equipment as it is common for such assets to reduce in value rather than to 
increase as they are utilised by the college (FReM 6.2).   
 
Assets of a low value may be capitalised where they form part of a group of similar assets 
purchased at approximately the same time in the same financial year and cost over £2,500 
in total. 
 
Capitalised equipment will be depreciated over its useful economic life from the date it is 
brought into use as follows: - 
  
 Fixed Plant 5-29 years 
 Equipment  4 years 
 
Where equipment is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the 
first year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months that the asset was in use. 
 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values will be reviewed at the date of 
preparation of each Balance Sheet. 
 
iii) Operating Leases 
  
Costs in respect of operating leases will be charged on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.  Any lease premiums or incentives will be spread over the minimum lease term. 
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iv) Finance Leases  
 
Leases in which the college assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the leased asset will be classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of 
finance lease and the corresponding lease liabilities will be initially recognised at an amount 
equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments 
at inception of the lease. 
 
Minimum lease payments will be apportioned between the finance charge and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge will be allocated to each period 
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an 
asset in return for payment will be accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 
  
j) Maintenance of Premises 
 
The cost of maintenance will be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in 
the period in which it is incurred. 
 
k) Stocks 
 
Stocks will be written off in the year of acquisition on the basis of non-materiality. 
 
l) Cash  
 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits 
are repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without 
penalty. 
 
m) Taxation 
 
The college is an exempt charity within the meaning of the Trustee Investment and 
Charities (Scotland) Act 2005 and, as such is a charity within the meaning of section 
506 (1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act (ICTA) 1988. The college is recognised 
as a charity by HM Revenue & Customs and is recorded on the index of charities 
maintained by the Office of Scottish Charity Regulator and therefore not liable for 
corporation tax. 
Non-recoverable Value Added Tax arising from expenditure on non-trading activities is 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
The college benefits by being exempt from corporation tax on income it receives from 
tuition fees, interest and rents. 
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n) Provisions 
 
Provisions will be recognised when the college has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. 
 
o) Agency Arrangements 
 
The college acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain Student Support 
Funds. These funds will be excluded from the college Statement of Comprehensive 
Income; movements will be disclosed in the notes. Where the college has more discretion 
in the manner in which specific funds are disbursed, and these funds do not meet the 
definition of agency funds, the income and expenditure relating to those funds will be 
shown in the college Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
p) Financial Instruments 
 
The college only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the 
recognition of financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors and 
other loans to related parties. 
  
Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and 
creditors, will be measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the 
cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received. 
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Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation   uncertainty 
 
In preparing these financial statements, management will make the following judgements: 
 
• Determine whether leases entered into by the college either as a lessor or a lessee are 

operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the 
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on 
a lease by lease basis. 

 
• Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the college’s tangible assets. 

Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic 
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset. 

 
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
• Tangible fixed assets 
 
Tangible fixed assets will be depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual 
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed 
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re‐assessing asset lives, 
factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes will be taken into 
account. 
 
• Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety 
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions 
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying 
amount of the pension liability.  
 
• Material Valuation Uncertainty (revaluation of land and buildings) 
 
The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID19), declared by the World Health 
Organisation as a “Global Pandemic” on the 11 March 2020, has impacted many aspects 
of daily life and the global economy – with some real estate markets experiencing 
significantly lower levels of transactional activity and liquidity. As at the valuation date, there 
is a shortage of market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. The 
valuation is therefore reported as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as set out 
in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation – Global Standards. Consequently, less 
certainty – and a higher degree of caution – should be attached to the valuation than would 
normally be the case. For the avoidance of doubt, the inclusion of the ‘material valuation 
uncertainty’ declaration above does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon. 
Rather, the declaration has been included to ensure transparency of the fact that – in the 
current extraordinary circumstances – less certainty can be attached to the valuation than 
would otherwise be the case. The material uncertainty clause is to serve as a precaution 
and does not invalidate the valuation.  
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2 SFC GRANTS  
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

SFC Teaching & fee waiver grant 
Childcare funds 
Release of deferred capital grants (SFC) 
Other SFC Grants 

 11,857 
491 
410 

1,829 

 11,821 
678 
535 
510 

   
14,587 

  
13,544 

 
3 TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS  
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

FE Fees - UK 
HE Fees - UK 
SDS contracts 

 851 
1,588 

998 

 848 
1,647 

748 
 
 

  
3,437 

  
3,243 

 
4  OTHER INCOME  
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Residence and catering 
European funds 
Other income generating activities 
Other income 

 16 
- 

938 
361 

 260 
27 

1,173 
560 

 
 

  
1,315 

  
2,020 

 
 
5  INVESTMENT INCOME 
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
Other Interest Receivable 
 

  
- 
 

  
1 
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6 STAFF COSTS 
 
The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the 
college during the period was: 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
FTE 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2020 
FTE 

 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering and residences 
Other Income-generating activities 
Other staff 

  
167 

35 
45 
20 
6 

19 
2 

  
161 

35 
42 
18 
6 

18 
2 

 
 

  
294 

  
282 

 
Analysed as: 
Staff on permanent contracts 
Staff on temporary contracts 

  
 

258 
36 

  
 

272 
10 

 
 

  
294 

  
282 

 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Staff Costs for the above persons 
 
Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Other pension costs 
Restructuring costs 

  
 

10,478 
978 

3,785 
(9) 

  
 

10,310 
955 

3,418 
99 

 
 

  
15,232 

  
14,782 

 
 

    

Analysed as: 
Staff on permanent contracts 
Staff on temporary contracts 
Pension charge less contributions paid 
Restructuring costs 

  
12,934 

526 
1,781 

(9) 

  
12,696 

477 
1,510 

99 
   

15,232 
  

14,782 
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 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Analysed as: 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering and residences 
Other income-generating activities 
Other staff 
Pension charge less contributions paid 
Restructuring costs 

  
8,218 
1,163 
1,882 

712 
208 
839 
438 

1,781 
 (9) 

  
8,190 
1,125 
1,714 

686 
204 
777 
477 

1,510 
99 

 
 

  
15,232 

  
14,782 

 
Key management personnel 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the college and are represented by the 
Senior Team which comprises the Principal and three Vice Principals. 
 
Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other 
higher paid staff  
 

  
2021 

  
2020 

 
 No.  No. 
 
The number of key management personnel 
including the Accounting Officer was: 

 
 

4 

  
 

3 
 

 
The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual 
emoluments, excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind, in the following 
ranges was: 
 

 Key management 
personnel 

Other staff 

  
2021 

 
2020 

 
2021 

 
2020 

 
  

No. 
 

No. 
 

No. 
 

No. 
 
£70,001 to £80,000 
£110,001 to £120,000 

 
3 
1 

 
2 
1 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
- 

 
- 
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Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows: 
 

 2021 
 

2020 
 

 £’000 £’000 

Salaries 
Benefits in kind 

340 
- 

255 
- 

 340 255 
 
Pension contributions 

67 50 

 
Total emoluments 

407 305 

 
There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, 
nor any salary sacrifice arrangements in place.  The above emoluments include amounts 
payable to the Accounting officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of: 
 

 2021 
 

2020 
 

 £’000 £’000 

Salaries 
Benefits in kind 

117 
- 

107 
- 

 117 107 
 
Pension contributions 

23 21 

 
Total emoluments 

140 128 

 
 
Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel 
 

 2021 
 

2020 
 

 £’000 £’000 

Compensation paid to former post-holders 
Estimated value of other benefits, including provision for 
pension benefits 

- 
- 

- 
- 

 
Overseas Activities 
 
There were no costs incurred during 2020-21 in respect of overseas activities, which were 
carried out in accordance with the strategy approved by the board of governors. 
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7  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering 
Other income generating activities 
Overspend on student support funds 
Childcare fund costs 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1,095 

170 
1,192 
1,452 

27 
93 

- 
492 

29 

  
834 
216 

1,419 
806 
134 
391 

- 
678 
137 

   
4,550 

  
4,615 

 
Other Operating Expenses (Administration) 
include: 
 

    

Auditors Remuneration (including 
irrecoverable VAT) 

- Internal audit 
- External audit 

Other services provided by: 
- Internal audit 
- External audit 
-  

  
 

37 
15 

 
- 
- 

  
 

22 
15 

 
- 
- 

  52  37 
 
 
8  INTEREST PAYABLE 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 
Pension finance costs 

  
- 

264 
 

  
- 

241 
 

  264  241 
 
 
9 TAXATION 
 
The Board does not believe the college was liable for any corporation tax arising out of its 
activities during this period. 
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10  FIXED ASSETS 
 Land and 

Buildings 
Freehold 

£'000 

Fixed Plant 
 
 

£'000 

Equipment 
 

 
£’000 

Total 
 
 

£'000 
Cost or valuation 
 
At 31 July 2020 
Additions  
Disposals 
 

 
 

18,539 
554 

(564) 
 

 
 

1,810 
- 
- 
 

 
 

66 
80 

(66) 
 

 
 

20,415 
634 

(630) 

At 31 July 2021 18,529 1,810 80 20,419 
 
Depreciation 
 
At 31 July 2020 
Charge for Period 
Disposals 
 

 
 
 

564 
633 

(564) 
 

 
 
 
- 

382 
- 
 

 
 
 

59 
20 

(66) 
 

 
 
 

623 
1,035 
(630) 

At 31 July 2021 633 382 13 1,028 
 
Net Book Value 

    

At 31 July 2021 17,896 1,428 67 19,391 
 
Net Book Value 

    

At 31 July 2020 17,975 1,810 7 19,792 
     
Financed by: 
Capital Grant 

17,896 1,428 67 19,391 

 
The college’s land and buildings were independently valued by GVA James Barr as at 31 
July 2020. This valuation has been incorporated into these financial statements. Under 
FRS102 the Board gives annual consideration to assessing the value of buildings and 
equipment to be included in the annual accounts. The basis of valuation adopted was 
depreciated replacement cost. Had they not been re-valued, inherited and owned land, 
buildings and fixed plant would have had an historic net book value of £14,474,000 (2020: 
£16,816,000). 
 
11 TRADE AND OTHER RECOVERABLES 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Trade Debtors  
European Funding 
Prepayments and accrued income 
Amounts Owed by SFC 

 260 
  45 

1,322 
- 

 419 
- 

976 
49 

 
 

  
1,627 

  
1,444 
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12   CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due within one year 
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Trade Creditors  
Taxation and Social Security 
Accruals and Deferred income 
Deferred Income – Deferred capital grant < 1 
Year 
Deferred Income – SFC capital grants 
Deferred Income – SFC revenue grants 
Amounts Owed to SFC 
Unspent Student Funds 
 

 667 
487 

1,917 
439 

12 
316 

- 
465 

 289 
450 

1,838 
410 

12 
183 
158 

18 

   
4,303 

  
3,358 

 
13  CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due after one year 
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
Amounts Owed to SFC 
Deferred Income – SFC Capital grants 
 

  
2,211 

11,557 

  
2,053 

11,362 

 
 

  
13,768 

  
13,415 

 
 
14 MATURITY OF DEBT  
 
SFC Loan is repayable as follows: 
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

In one year or less 
Between one and two years 
Between two and five years 
In five years or more 

 - 
- 

158 
2,053 

 - 
- 
- 

2,211 
 
 

  
2,211 

  
2,211 
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The college voluntarily terminated its PFI contract in April 2007, at which point the title of 
the college buildings transferred to the college.  The college received total funding from 
SFC in April 2007 of £27.7million to enable it to terminate the contract.  This comprised a 
grant of £22.16million and a repayable advance of £5.54million representing the college’s 
own contribution towards the cost of the assets previously held under the PFI contract.   
 
The £5.54million advance is interest free and was repayable in equal instalments over 16 
years.  The first repayment was made in August 2010 and at 31 July 2019 the amount 
outstanding was £2,369,055.  In March 2014 the college made an upfront payment of 
£650,000 towards the loan and negotiated a reduced annual payment of £157,937 per 
annum with the Scottish Funding Council from April 2015. 
 
 In 2020 the Scottish Funding Council agreed to the suspension of repayments on the 
loan from July 2021 to July 2025 inclusive, recommencing in July 2026. As a result, the 
loan period has been extended to July 2039. 
 
15 PROVISIONS  
 

 Defined 
Benefit 

Obligation
s  

 
£’000 

Early 
Retirement 

Provision  
 

£’000 

Total 
 
 
 

£'000 

 
At 1 August 2020 
 
Expenditure in the period 
Other movements in period 
 

 
14,299 

 
(998) 

(1,208) 

 
3,806 

 
(199) 
(84) 

 
18,105 

 
(1,197) 
(1,292) 

 
At 31 July 2021 

 
12,093 

 
3,523 

 
15,616 

 
Defined benefit obligations relate to liabilities under the college’s membership of the Local 
Government pension scheme.  Further details are given at Note 18. 
 
The early retirement provision is in accordance with a valuation carried out by Hymans 
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries at 31 July 2021. 
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16 RESERVES 
 
Analysis of income and expenditure account 
 
 I&E 

Account  
Trading 
Activitie

s 
 

£'000 
 

I&E 
Account  
Holiday 

Pay 
 

£,000 

I&E  
Account 

 PFI Loan 
 
 

£'000 
 

I&E  
Account 

 Early  
Retireme

nt  
 

£'000 
 

I&E  
Account 
Defined 
Benefit 
Pension  

£’000 

Total 
 
 
 
 

£'000 

At 31 July 2020 
 

(33) (197) (2,211) (3,806) (14,299) (20,546) 

Total 
comprehensive 
income for the 
year 
(excluding 
revaluation) 
 

371 (68) - 84 2,206 2,592 

Transfer from 
revaluation 
reserve 
  

495     495 

Payments for early 
retirement 
 

(199)   199  - 

 
At 31 July 2021 
 

 
633 

 
(265) 

 
(2,211) 

 
(3,523) 

 
(12,093) 

 
(17,459) 

 
 
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  

 At 1 
August 

2020 
 £'000 

 
Cash 

Flows 
 £'000 

 

 
Other 
£'000 

At 31 July 
2021 

 £'000 

Cash 
Debt due within 1 year 
Debt due after 1 year 

1,129 
(158) 

(2,053) 

1,620 
- 
- 

- 
158 

(158) 

2,749 
- 

(2,211) 
 
 

 
(1,082) 

 
1,620 

 
- 

 
538 
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18 PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 
The college’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Scottish Teachers’ 
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).   
 

Total pension cost for the period Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
STSS contributions paid 
 

    1,005  1,009 

LPF Pension scheme: 
        Contributions paid 
        FRS 102 (28) charge 
 

 
998 

1,781 

  
899 

1,510 

 

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 
 

 2,779  2,409 

 
Total Pension Cost  for the period within staff 
costs 

 3,785  3,418 

 
Contributions amounting to £171,000 (2020: £158,000) were payable to the schemes at 
31 July and are included within creditors. 
 
Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme 
 
The Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme is a notional fund valued every year by 
the Government actuary.  Contributions are paid by the college at the rate specified.  The 
Scheme is unfunded and contributions are made to the Exchequer.  The payments from 
the scheme are made from funds voted by the Scottish Parliament.  The contribution rate 
payable by the employer since 1 April 2015 is 17.2% of pensionable salaries. From 1 
September 2019 this rate increased to 23%. 
 
Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (28.11) (FRS 102), the 
STSS is a multi-employer pension plan.  The college is unable to identify its share of the 
underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.  Accordingly, the college has taken 
advantage of its exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions as if it were 
a defined contribution plan. The college has set out above the information available on the 
plan and the implications for the college in terms of the anticipated contribution rates. 
 
Lothian Pension Fund Scheme 
 
The Lothian Pension Fund is valued every three years by professionally qualified 
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution 
payable being determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries.  In the intervening 
years, the LPF actuary reviews the progress of the LPF scheme. 
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The Lothian Pension Fund is a funded defined-benefit plan, with assets held in separate 
funds administered by City of Edinburgh Council.  The total contributions made for the year 
ended 31 July 2021 were £1,178,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £279,000.  The 
agreed contribution rates for future years for the employer are 19.8% from 1 April 2020.  
For employees, contribution rates range from 5.5% to 12.0% depending on salary. 
 
Principal Actuarial assumptions 
 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 
2017 updated to 31 July 2021 by a qualified independent actuary. 
 

 At 31 July  
2021 

 

At 31 July  
2020 

 
Rate of increase in salaries 3.4% 3.9% 
Future pensions increases 2% 2.2% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.6% 1.4% 
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.9% 3.1% 
Commutation of pensions – pre April 2009 50% 50% 
Commutation of pensions – post April 2009 75% 75% 

 
 
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in 
mortality rate. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are: 
 

 
 

Males Females 

Current pensioners 20.5 years 23.3 years 
Future pensioners  21.9 years 25.2 years 

 
 
The college’s share of assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return are: 

 
 Long term 

rate of 
return  

 

Fair 
Value at  
31 July 

2021 
£'000 

Long term 
rate of 
return  

 

Fair Value 
 at  

31 July 
2020 
£'000 

     
Equities 1.6% 19,697 1.4% 17,524 
Bonds 1.6% 3,831 1.4% 2,536 
Property 1.6% 1,641 1.4% 1,614 
Cash 1.6% 2,188 1.4% 1,384 
     
Total fair value of employer 
assets 

 27,357  23,058 

     
 
Actual return on employer assets 

  
3,690 

  
(1,250) 
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension 
plan is as follows: 
 

 Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 
   
Fair value of employer assets 27,357 23,058 
Present value of funded liabilities (39,450) (37,357) 
   
Net Pension Liability (12,093) (14,299) 

 
 
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the 
plan are as follows: 
 

 Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 
Amounts included in staff costs   
   
Current service cost 2,779 2,158 
Past service cost 
 

- 251 

Total 2,779 2,409 
 
 

Amounts included in Pension Costs   
   
Net pension costs 
 

212 164 

Total 212 164 
 
 

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

  

   
Return on pension assets 3,362 (1,752) 
Change in demographic assumptions 1,458 - 
Change in financial assumptions (2,667) (4,117) 
Other experience 
 

2,046 
 

148 

Total 4,199 (5,721) 
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Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during 
year 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

   
Net defined benefit (liability) at start of period (14,299) (6,904) 
Movement in period:   

Current service costs (2,779) (2,158) 
Past service costs - (251) 
Employer contributions 998 899 
Net interest on the defined liability (212) (164) 
Actuarial (loss)/gain 4,199 (5,721) 

 
Net defined benefit (liability) at end of period 

 
(12,093) 

 
(14,299) 

 
Asset and Liability Reconciliation 
 
 

Changes in fair value of plan assets Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

   
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 23,058 23,756 
Interest on plan assets 
Past Service Cost 

328 
- 

502 
(216) 

Return on plan assets 3,362 (1,752) 
Employer contributions 998 899 
Contributions by plan participants 
Other experience 

308 
(163) 

279 
- 

Benefits paid (534) (410) 
 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 

 
27,357 

 
23,058 

 
 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit 
obligations 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

   
Defined benefit obligation at start of period 37,357 30,660 
Current service cost 2,779 2,158 
Past service cost - 35 
Interest cost 540 666 
Contributions by plan participants 308 279 
Changes in demographic assumptions (1,458) - 
Changes in financial assumptions 2,667 4,117 
Other experience (2,209) (148) 
Benefits paid (534) (410) 

Defined benefit obligation at end of period (39,450) 37,357 
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost totalled £260,000 
(2020: £468,000) at the balance sheet date.  This comprises trade debtors and amounts 
owed by SFC. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost totalled £5,248,000 (2020: £4,356,000) at 
the balance sheet date.  This comprises trade creditors, accruals, unspent student funds 
and amounts owed to SFC. 
 
 
20 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS 
 
 

Above SFC annual reporting 
requirements 

SFC 
Requirement 
Per Instance 

 
2021 

Number 

 
2021 
Total 

 
Debt write-off 

 
£3,000 

  

Cash losses £3,000 - - 
Ex-gratia payments £1,000 1 £17,303 
Compensation payments £5,000 - - 

 
The ex-gratia payments were approved by the Scottish Funding Council.  
 
 
21   CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
At 31 July the college had commitments of a capital nature as follows: 
 

 2021 
£000 

2020 
£000 

 
Committed but not contracted 

 
- 

 
- 

Committed and contracted - - 
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22 LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
At 31 July the college had minimum lease payments under non‐cancellable operating 
leases as follows: 
 

 2021  
£’000 

2020 
£000 

Other   
 
Expiring within one year 
Expiring between one and five years 
 

 
                      

38 
                       - 

   
                       
45 
                       
38 

 38 83 
 
During 2020-21 the college paid £45,000 in operating lease rentals. 
 
23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
There were no contingent liabilities at Balance Sheet date. 
 
 
24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Owing to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of the board of 
governors being drawn from local public and private organisations, it is inevitable that 
transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors 
may have an interest.  All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s 
length and in accordance with the college’s financial regulations and normal procurement 
procedures. 
 
The college had transactions during the year or worked in partnership with the following 
publicly funded or representative bodies in which members of the Board of Governors hold 
or held official positions. 
 
Name 
 

Organisation Position 

Mr Alex Linkston 
 
Elaine Cook 
 

Colleges Scotland 
 
West Lothian Council 
 

Board Member 
 
Depute Chief Executive  

2019-20 
Name 
 

Organisation Position 

Mr Alex Linkston 
 
Mr Alex Linkston 
 
Elaine Cook 
 

NHS Forth Valley 
 
Colleges Scotland 
 
West Lothian Council 
 

Chair 
 
Board Member 
 
Depute Chief Executive  
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The value of the transactions due to/by the college for the twelve months ended 31 July 
2021, and the amount outstanding at this date was as follows: 
 

Organisation Year ended 31 July 2021 Year ended 31 July 2020 

  

Total Value 
of 

Transactions 
Balance 

Outstanding 
Total Value 

of 
Transactions 

Balance 
Outstanding 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Due to WLC                                
West Lothian Council - - 57                   - 
NHS Forth Valley - - 1                   - 
Due by WLC         

Colleges Scotland 30 0 27                    
- 

West Lothian College 178 11 425                    
- 

 
No expenses were paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year. (2020: £431;  
2 governors).  This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket 
expenses in attending Governor meetings and other events in their official capacity. 
 
The Chair of the Board received a salary in accordance with the directions issued by the 
Scottish Government.  The total paid to the Chair over the period was £23,758 (2020: 
£23,123) 
 
 
 25 FE BURSARIES AND OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS 

 
 FE 

Bursar
y 

£’000 
 

FE  
Discr’y 
£’000 

 
EMAs 
£’000 

 
OTHER 
£’000 

2020-21 
Total 
£’000 

2019-20 
Total 
£’000 

Balance b/fwd 
 

- - (16) - (16) 25 

Allocations received in 
year 
 

2,983 625 318 584 4,510 3,701 

Expenditure 
 

(2,458) (993) (149) (455) (4,056) (3,776) 

Repaid to SFC  
 

(20) - (169) - (189) (47) 
 

Virements 
 

(82) 368 - (86) 216 95 

 
Balance c/fwd 

 
422 

 
- 

 
- 

 
43 

 
465 

 
     (2) 
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Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor / (debtor) are included in the 
balance sheet.  FE Bursaries and Student Support Funds are available solely for students; 
the college acts only as paying agent.  The grants and related disbursements are therefore 
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   
 
 
26 CHILDCARE FUNDS 
 

 2020-21 
£’000 

 

2019-20 
£’000 

 
Balance b/fwd - - 
Allocations received in year 708 774 
Expenditure (492) (679) 
Virements (216) (95) 
 
 Balance c/fwd 

 
- 

 
- 

   

 
Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor are included in the balance sheet.  
Childcare Funds are reported gross in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   
 
 
27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
There have been no significant post balance sheet events. 
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28 IMPACT OF DEPRECIATION BUDGET ON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME 

 
Following reclassification, colleges received a non-cash budget to cover depreciation but 
this additional budget is not recognised under the FE/HE SORP accounting rules.  Colleges 
may show a deficit equivalent to net depreciation as a result of having to meet Government 
accounting rules and the requirement to spend the entire cash allocation. 
 
Under the FE/HE SORP, the college recorded an operating deficit of £1,742,000 for the 
year ended 31 July 2021.  After adjusting for the non-cash allocation provided under 
government rules, the college shows an ‘adjusted’ deficit of £1,552,000 on a Central 
Government basis. 
 
 2020-21 

 
£’000 

 

2019-20 
 

£’000 

Deficit before other gains and losses (FE/HE 
SORP basis) for academic year 
 

(1,742) (1,599) 

Add: Depreciation budget for government 
funded assets (net of deferred capital grant) 
for academic year 
 

190 190 

Operating deficit on Central Government 
accounting basis for academic year 
 
 

(1,552) (1,409) 

 
The deficit is attributable to other factors reflected in the adjusted operating table (see page 
14) and the college is therefore operating sustainably within its funding allocation. 
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APPENDIX 1 
 

Accounts Direction 
 
The following note is taken from the 2020-21 SFC Accounts Directions and has been 
included as required by SFC.  It does not form part of the Financial Statements. 
 
Accounts direction for Scotland’s colleges 2020-21  
 
1. It is the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that institutions1 comply with the 2019 
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 
(SORP) in preparing their annual report and accounts.  
 
2. Institutions must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their annual 
report and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish 
Funding Council (SFC) or the Regional Strategic Body (RSB) (for assigned colleges).  
 
3. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are also required to 
comply with the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2020-21 (FReM) where 
applicable.  
 
4. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are reminded that they 
must send two copies of their annual report and accounts to the Auditor General for 
Scotland by 31 December 2021.  
 
5. The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief executive officer / 
Executive Director and by the chair, or one other member of the governing body.  
 
6. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board should reproduce this 
Direction as an appendix to the annual report and accounts.  
 
Scottish Funding Council  
3 June 2021  



BUDGET FOR YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET TO DATE VARIANCE NOTES
INCOME
Grant in Aid 12,030,855 11,856,666 12,030,855 -174,189 1
Fees 2,446,939 2,439,012 2,446,939 -7,927
SDS Contracts 1,087,011 997,514 1,087,011 -89,497
Income Generation 1,158,585 938,342 1,158,585 -220,243
European Funds 258,351 0 258,351 -258,351
Other Income 332,789 376,929 332,789 44,140
Other SFC Funding 1,185,771 1,829,069 1,185,771 643,298 2

18,500,301 18,437,532 18,500,301 -62,769

EXPENDITURE
SALARIES
Faculties 8,635,513 8,478,108 8,635,513 157,405
Departments 2,905,530 2,942,779 2,905,530 -37,249
Business Development 801,626 805,541 801,626 -3,916
Other Activities 88,590 87,270 88,590 1,320
Estates 895,424 934,257 895,424 -38,833

13,326,683 13,247,956 13,326,683 78,727 3
SUPPLIES & SERVICES
Faculties 537,978 866,688 537,978 -328,710
Departments 1,610,573 1,351,962 1,610,573 258,611
Business Development 452,151 156,393 452,151 295,758
Other Activities 258,559 1,026 258,559 257,533
Estates 1,551,664 1,269,203 1,551,664 282,461

4,410,925 3,645,271 4,410,925 765,654 4

OTHER PAYROLL COSTS 306,000 306,037 306,000 -37

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 18,043,608 17,199,264 18,043,608 844,344



TRADING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 456,693 1,238,268 456,693 -907,113

Pension Transfers 0 0 0 0
Apprenticeship Levy -35,000 -35,420 -35,000 -420
Holiday Pay Accrual 0 -68,420 0 -68,420

-35,000 -103,840 -35,000 -68,840
INTEREST
Interest Receivable 1,452 0 1,452 -1,452
Interest Payable 0 0 0 0

1,452 0 1,452 -1,452
DEFERRED GRANT & DEPRECIATION
Release of Deferred Grant 409,505 409,705 409,505 200
Depreciation -711,181 -1,035,031 -711,181 -323,850

-301,676 -625,326 -301,676 -323,650 5
STUDENT FUNDS
Student Funds Income 4,631,393 4,547,505 4,631,393 -83,888
Student Funds Expenditure -4,631,393 -4,547,505 -4,631,393 83,888

0 0 0 0
INVESTMENT FUND
College Spend -58,000 -216,000 -58,000 -158,000 6
Transfer to ALF 0 0 0 0

-58,000 -216,000 -58,000 -158,000

COLLEGE SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 63,469 293,102 63,469 -1,459,055

PENSION
FRS102 LPF -1,327,000 2,206,000 -1,327,000 3,533,000
Early Retirement Provision -204,000 93,148 -204,000 297,148

-1,531,000 2,299,148 -1,531,000 3,830,148 7



FRS102 SURPLUS (DEFICIT) -1,467,531 2,592,250 -1,467,531 2,371,093

Transfer (to)/from pension reserve 1,327,000 -2,206,000 1,327,000 -3,533,000 7
Transfer (to)/from revaluation reserve 298,468 495,053 298,468 196,585

AMOUNT CARRIED FORWARD TO I&E 157,937 881,303 157,937 -965,322 8

NOTES:
1. Grant in Aid (GIA) variance relates to revenue funding transferred to capital.
2. Other funds made available e.g. co-vid, mental health counsellors etc. after budget set.
3. Salary cost at July include pension adjustments.

5. Depreciation greater than budgeted due to revaluation and additional assets capitalised.
6. Investment spend includes £58k budgeted and £158k available as a consequence of SFC Loan break.
7. FRS Pension adjustment based on actuarial valuations, therefore out-with College management control.
8. £881k transferred to I&E this FY largely as a result of improved FRS Pension position

4. Underspends in supplies & services largely as a result of revenue spend being capitalised at year-end i.e. costs moved from the 
SOCIE to the balance sheet.
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Audit Committee 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION TO MAZARS 
 
The letter of representation provides assurance to the college’s external 
auditors, Mazars, that the board is aware of its responsibilities in relation to 
the audit of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2021.   
 
The board’s responsibilities are set out in the attached letter which is signed 
by the Chair of the Board of Governors on behalf of the board. 
 
Action 
 
The committee is asked to recommend that the letter be signed by the Chair 
of the Board of Governors on behalf of the board. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
 
 
 



 
 
DRAFT LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 
Dear Sirs  
 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION  
 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations 
given to you in connection with your audit of the college’s accounts for the period 
ended 31 July 2021.  
 
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for 
ensuring:  
 
a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions;  
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
college as at 31st July 2021;  
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of 
your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the college have been properly 
reflected and recorded in the accounting records;  
d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management 
meetings, have been made available to you;  
e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are 
consistent with those adopted in the previous financial statements and are in 
accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council 
(SFC) under the terms of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992; and 
f) compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum issued to 
the Board of Governors by the SFC.  
 
Azets acted as Internal Auditors to the college during the year. All reports issued to 
the college and our responses to them have been made available to you.  
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
control systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you the results of 
our risk assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of 
fraud. There have been no irregularities (or allegations of irregularities) involving 
management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
The college has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the 
accounts.  
 
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 
received have been properly accrued for in the financial statements. 
 
There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or 
which would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than those already 
disclosed or included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which 



may necessitate revision of the figures included in the financial statements or 
inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly.  
 
The college has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or 
agreement to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or credit 
transactions) for the Board of Governors nor to guarantee or provide security for 
such matters.  
 
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to 
the college and that we are not aware of any further related party matters that 
require disclosure in order to comply with the requirements of charities legislation, 
the Statement of Recommended Practice for Further and Higher Education accounts 
or accounting standards.  
 
The college has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in 
the accounts.  
 
The college has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on the college’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the 
financial statements.  
 
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing 
management or employees of the college, nor are we aware of any breaches or 
possible breaches of statute, regulations, contracts, agreements or college's 
Constitution and Articles of Government which might result in the college suffering 
significant penalties or other loss. No allegations of such irregularities, including 
fraud, or such breaches have come to our attention.  
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-
compliance with those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework within 
which the college conducts its business.  
 
We confirm that, in our opinion, the college is a going concern on the grounds that 
current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the 
college’s needs. We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of 
approval of the financial statements. We believe that no further disclosures relating 
to the college’s ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the 
financial statements.  
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the 
Covid pandemic on the college, including the impact of mitigation measures and 
uncertainties, and that the disclosure in the Performance Report fairly reflects that 
assessment.  
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the 
United Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the 
end of the Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Performance Report 
fairly reflects that assessment.  
 
We confirm that no unadjusted misstatements have been brought to our attention.  



We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where 
appropriate, of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can 
properly make each of the above representations to you.  
 
 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully  
 
.………………………………………….. Chair of Board  
 
…………………………………………….. Principal 
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Audit Committee 
 
INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Introduction 
 
This paper provides a broad update on key projects completed during the first 
quarter of the 2021-22 academic year and since the last update in September 2021. 
 
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Digital Capacity 
 
A full review of the college’s information technology (IT) and audio visual (AV) asset 
registers was completed in the last quarter for the 2020-21 session, indicating 
approximately 280 assets due for replacement across the college’s digital estate 
(approximately 15%). Progress includes: 
 
• 140 new desktop PCs arrived in college in August and have now been 

commissioned across teaching areas. In addition, 200 laptops for staff and 
student loan have arrived, with these being allocated to new staff and to meet 
ongoing student loan demand. 

 
• 15 new Clevertouch interactive screens – including lecture capture software – 

have been deployed across the campus. Total investment to date c. £50,000, 
with more kit planned to be delivered during the remainder of the session. 

 
• SFC announced an indicative funding allocation of £127,923 for digital learning 

support for 2021-22. To date, 100 new student loan laptops have been ordered 
(due for delivery early 2022) and monies committed for student connectivity 
packages. A proposal to allocate the remaining funding was approved by ELT 
and this is now being taken forward. 

 
Microsoft Teams Integration 
 
Office365 use, in particular Teams, has bedded in well during the first quarter of 
2021-22, supporting staff and students with a hybrid model of learning and teaching. 
Staff and students who were active during 2020-21 now enjoy access to materials 
developed and used during the previous session in the current 2021-22, providing a 
greater continuity of the learner journey. 
 
An Office365 cloud backup solution is now in place and forms a vital component of 
our evolving backup and Disaster Recovery strategy. 
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Sharepoint 
 
In August a re-launch took place of the college’s intranet along with a new look 
landing page that is accessible to staff through their internet browser.  
 
Initial feedback from users indicate the revised site has been well received and will 
continue to grow and adapt as the session progresses, with any planned 
developments monitored via the college Systems Review Group. 
 
Server Infrastructure 
 
Work continues to modernise and secure the core server infrastructure of the 
college, with two further critical information systems webservers  
migrated during September and October, one being a new Capita pay360 server 
used for online secure payments. 
 
An infrastructure utilisation document has been prepared and detailed planning is 
underway in partnership with West Lothian Council - under the shared services 
agreement - to replace servers located at the Civic Centre by April 2022. 
 
Network Officer 
 
Further to a recent recruitment event, the college has now appointed a Network 
Officer who will join the Digital Infrastructure team and provide network and 
infrastructure support and lead on a range of scheduled projects. 
 
Cyber Security 
 
The college has now secured Cyber Essentials+ accreditation, with the certificate 
coming into force for one year from 1 November 2021. This is a landmark for the 
college and testament to a huge amount of work by our Digital Infrastructure team. 
 
During May an external security supplier completed a full Cyber Risk Technical 
Assessment and we have now received the resulting report. Discussions are at an 
advanced stage to invest in a Chief Information Security Officer as a service from 
late November to collaborate with further improving cyber resilience, governance, 
risk and compliance. In preparation, both the Information Technology and Cyber 
Incident policies have been updated. 
 
Multi-factor authentication has been added to staff accounts and is stable. 
 
The Cyber Security module remains a core component of the annual mandatory staff 
training.   
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IT Network – Backups, Disaster Recovery 
 
An infrastructure utilisation document has been prepared by our Digital Infrastructure 
team and is subject to ongoing discussions with West Lothian Council in relation to 
the replacement of our core server infrastructure located at the Civic Centre due by 
April 2022. 
 
Subsumed within these discussions is the options appraisal of relocating the current 
backup infrastructure held at the Civic Centre Data Centre to the council’s new site 
at Whitehill, which is now online.  
 
New virtual server software has been purchased, which provides the college with 
immutable backup capabilities for the first time, enhancing our backup and disaster 
recovery posture. An immutable backup file cannot be altered in anyway and is able 
to be deployed to production in case of ransomware or another data loss. 
 
INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 
Internal Audit – Credits Return 2020-21 
 
During September 2021 the credit return for 2020-21 was audited along with the 
associated procedures and controls. The testing was undertaken in line with Data 
return for funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges 2020-21. 
Assurances were gained from the audit testing carried out and the internal checking 
performed by the college, with actual credits claimed for 2020-21 49,632 against a 
target of 46,709. No credits were recovered and no recommendations were made 
around the twelve risk areas and controls that require a management response. 
 
Curriculum Planning/Builder - System and Process Change 
 
Feedback from the Business Process Review published in January 2021 identified 
the need for the production of a system specification for a web-based solution to be 
used by teaching staff to manage courses in terms of curriculum planning and 
building. Presentations and training for key staff have been positive over the past few 
months, with the system now live in support of the curriculum planning cycle for 
2022-23. 
 
Data Science and Business Intelligence 
 
Development in PowerBi continues during 2021-22, with Office365 data being 
collected and work progressing to refine the models used for reporting, prescriptive 
and predictive analytics. 
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Reporting for the revised curriculum planning and building tool, is being adapted 
within Power Bi and scheduled for roll-out in late November. 
 
Information Systems Officer 
 
The recruitment process in underway to add a second Information Systems officer 
from January 2022. The new post holder will join the Information Systems team to 
assist with additional project work in preparation for further major systems updates to 
be in place for the 2022-23 academic year. 
 
Systems Review Group 
 
Project leads have been assigned to projects that provide clarity on reporting 
responsibilities for 2021-22. A major online services project that combines the 
application and enrolment processes for students has been completed and will be 
launched in December to coincide with the launch of recruitment for 2022-23. The 
amalgamated service is more transparent and reduces the overhead on students in 
time and complexity, whilst supplying critical information. 
 
Action 

The committee is asked to note the paper. 

 
 
Bill Dunsmuir 
Head of Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure 
2 December 2021 
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Introduction 
 
This report provides an overview of the health and safety standards at West 
Lothian College from July to September 2021. The country moved to beyond 
level 0 which meant a change on campus with reduction from two metres to 
one metre social distancing. Other mitigations stayed in place including 
reduced class sizes, online learning, ventilation, mask wearing, enhanced 
cleaning and hand hygiene. This continuation of enhanced mitigations reduced 
the risk to students who had still to be included in the vaccination programme.  
Staff returned to campus on 16 August and students returned to campus on 
30 August. The number of students on campus increased from 11% to 25% in 
the July to September quarter. Staff continue to home working where possible 
and a more hybrid model of working has been adopted for progressing into this 
new academic year. 
 
Accidents, Incidents, Near Misses and Investigations 
 
The monitoring, recording and reporting of accidents, incidents and near 
misses are legal requirements that the college promotes across the campus. As 
well as meeting our legal obligations, this allows us to identify where and how 
risks arise. Each report is fully investigated by the college’s Health and Safety 
Officer. Appendix 1 shows details of all investigations during this period. 
 
During this reporting period, there have been eight HSF1 forms completed 
relating to first aid/accidents/incidents and near misses. As a comparison, 
during this period in 2020 there were seven forms completed (there was 
significantly less student activity in that period). Certain work-related injuries, 
cases of disease and near misses must be reported to the Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE). There was one RIDDOR reported to HSE. 
 

 
Data Collection 2021 to date 
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Health and Safety Management 
 

The following arrangements are in place to control health and safety risks in 
order to meet the legal requirements and show commitment to all stakeholders: 

 
Health and Safety Committee  
Last Health and Safety Committee meeting 
was held on: 

24 September 2021 

Minutes from meeting have been posted on 
Sharepoint  

Yes 

Total Action points raised   11 
Actions Raised against Health and 
Safety Officer  

 5 Health and Safety Officer 
currently outstanding   

 1 

Next meeting scheduled for 8 December 2021 
Employer’s Liability Insurance  
Zurich Employers Liability Insurance   Expires on 31 July 2022 
Interventions  
HSE Inspections in the last 12 months 0 
Improvement Notices issued in last 12 
months 

0 

Prohibition Notices issued in last 12 
months 

0 

Improvements issued by Fire Service in 
last 12 months 

0  

Risk assessments  
Number of risk assessments due for review All departments review Risk 

Assessment for the start of 
2021-22 term 
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Number of new Risk assessments 3x Maternity Risk Assessment 
1x DSE assessment 
1x Manual handling 
Welding Risk Assessment 
First Aid provision Risk 
Assessment 

Fire Risk Assessment  
Fire Risk Assessment in place Yes 
Review Date October 2021 
Health and Safety Policy  
Policy Statement approved by Jackie Galbraith 
Next Review date August 2021 
Responsibilities currently unassigned 0 
Health and safety Procedures * Review date 
Accident/Incident reporting June 2021 
Lone Working May 2021 
Inspection and Auditing July 2021 
Emergency Evacuation  July 2021 
Work Placement August 2022 
Excursions  June 2021 
COSHH  April 2021 
First Aid  June 2021 
Lock out/Tag out June 2021 
Noise at Work June 2021 
Business Continuity Policy Framework July 2022 
Counter terrorism  February 2023 
Fire Safety Actions  
Outstanding actions related to fire 
inspection 

0 

Overdue actions related to fire inspection 0 
Last emergency evacuation drill (daytime) 21 September 2021 
Last emergency evacuation drill (evening) 21 September 2021 
Next emergency evacuation drill (daytime) April 2022 
Next emergency evacuation drill (evening) April 2022 
* An extension on updating procedures was agreed due to Covid work  

Policies and Procedures   
 

Scheduled events 
  
The NHS vaccination bus attended college on 30 September for two days and 
was open to staff, students, their families and the local community. Uptake over 
the two days was around 100.  
 
Monthly College Development Network meetings have been taking place with 
other colleges along with the Health and Safety Executive and Healthy Working 
Lives to discuss health and safety related issues, share best practice and 
changes to guidance.  
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Fortnightly meetings continue between Health Protection Scotland and other 
colleges and universities proving to be an invaluable resource with up to date 
information regarding Covid statistics, vaccine roll-out and testing. 
 
The former Health and Safety Officer at Dundee and Angus (D&A) presented 
on the Learning Occupational Health by Experiencing Risks (LOcHER) to 
faculties. This initiative is a new approach for students and apprentices to help 
them identify and understand the health and safety risks in their area of study. It 
originated from the Health and Safety Executive and allows young people and 
new workers to learn about the associated risks and showcase how they can 
protect their own and fellow workers’ health, safety and wellbeing. The 
presentation demonstrated how D&A have embedded this into their learning 
and how it can be replicated in our college. 
 
Due to staff relocating to different campus buildings, fire marshal roles had to 
be re-established for each building. A new list of fire marshals was created 
ensuring that areas had full coverage now that staff are hybrid working. New 
volunteers were given initial training by health and safety officer and all fire 
marshals will be given new/refresher fire marshal training including how to use 
fire extinguishers. 
 
Staff Experience Group 
 
A reminder of the staff mental health support mechanisms was publicised along 
with specific information about Togetherall (a peer support platform for students 
and staff) and Able Futures (a support scheme, funded by the Department for 
Work and Pensions offering staff personalised, confidential support from a 
dedicated mental health professional).  
 
Free flu vaccination vouchers and free yoga lessons were offered to staff. 

 
Staff participated in the national ‘Cycle September’ challenge, cycling a total of 
1,551 miles in an initiative to promote active travel and exercise for which the 
college was placed second nationally for its sector and employer size. 
  

         Mandatory Training 

Staff mandatory training was refreshed for 2021-22 during this reporting period, 
and now includes an Action Counter Terrorism module and modules relating to 
student mental health. 

 
Student Mental Health (student support information is reported to each 
Learning and Teaching Committee meeting) 
 
The Student Support team has been contacting students who have disclosed a 
support need, getting to know student groups and building relationships with 
students and understanding their needs.   
 
They have been helping those who are anxious or who have Autism Spectrum 
Disorder get started at college, helping them build their confidence, familiarise 
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themselves with college and the new routine this brings. The team has been 
carrying out needs assessments, setting up and supporting alternative 
assessment arrangements, helping students complete their Disabled Student 
Award application and working with lecturers to put support plans in place.   
 
A team member is allocated to each full-time group, they are working closely 
with lecturers, and many students are engaging well with support, with the 
majority of 1-1 weekly meetings happening online. The partnership approach 
between the student support team and faculty staff has continued and initial 
meetings have taken place to ensure students who have support needs are 
engaging, lecturers are working with the team and that there are no concerns.   
 
Work has been done with the Information Systems team to improve recording 
of information and sharing of information with lecturers. Staff Advantage can 
now be used for recording and reporting, and keeping a risk register. This 
should reduce the need for manual sharing of information and create better-
detailed student support log, and the summarising and reporting of this 
information should be greatly improved.  
 
The work of the Man Cave continues, and we are continuing to offer LT4U, a 
Listening Service through Listen Well Scotland volunteers. 
 
The counselling service has continued to be a valuable support for students, with 
the counsellors working at almost full capacity.  As well as continuing to offer the 
service through teams, zoom, messaging, phone and email, the counsellors can 
now offer face-to-face counselling in a dedicated room. This has enhanced their 
service for students who prefer this mode.   
 
We have a Student Support team member with specific responsibility for mental 
health who is continuing to work with the student support team, the Student 
Association and staff across college to create resources, workshops and 
sessions which will develop a mentally healthy student population.  
 
We continue to contribute to the safeguarding work done cross college and we 
have dealt with nine referrals so far, this academic year, the main issues have 
been relating to significant mental health difficulties / suicidal ideation. 
 
Prevent 
 
The Prevent group continued to meet to discuss future planning and 
communications to the college staff and students. Now that the 
counterterrorism and radicalisation training has been included in the annual 
mandatory training, the group intends to present to curriculum teams to discuss 
the process further and how to refer students of concern to safeguarding and 
Prevent.  
 
There is continuous collaboration with NHS Lothian, and Lothian and Scottish 
Borders contest groups. The health and safety officer is the college’s Prevent 
lead and attends these meetings. 
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Changes to Covid19 Legislation/Guidance 
 
There were no changes to legislation, however Covid guidance was updated 
with the country moving to beyond level 0. 

 
Consultations and Internal Audits or Walk round inspections 
 
HSE Consultation July-August 2021 - The proposed changes to The Personal 
Protective Equipment at Work 1992 Regulations 
  
A walkaround of No.5 on the Square was undertaken by health and safety 
officer with the new learning and skills managers assessing Covid needs and 
set up for the new term. 
 
Covid cases   
 
The following positive Covid cases were reported during this quarter: 
 

• Staff - 24     
• Students - 56 

 
All of these cases were contacted and found to have been contracted through 
community transmission. Due to new guidelines issued by Health Protection 
Scotland (in partnership with college and universities) those who may have 
been in contact with a positive case were either given an inform and advise 
letter or close contacts identified and asked to go for a PCR. This information 
was also passed to Test and Protect so contact tracing could be followed up 
and cases were being notified. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
  
 

  H&S Quarterly July to September 2021 8 
 

Appendix 1 – Health and Safety Officers Investigation Findings 
 
  
No. Date Accident/Incident/ 

near miss 
HSF1 Detail Investigation 

1 6/7/21 Accident Cut finger cutting veg, first aider 
attended and cleaned and 
dressed cut 

No further action 

2 24/8/21 First aid As leaving class student 
collapsed as felt faint, first aider 
attended and student was 
collected by family member 

No further action 

3 24/8/21 Accident Member of staff was putting 
together a piece of equipment 
and there were two poles inside 
each other and one came out at 
full force and hit her above the 
eye.  A first aider attended and 
advised to go to A & E.  Another 
member of staff drove her 
where she received stitches. 

The accident was 
investigated and 
member of staff was off 
with nerve damage for 
over 7 days so was 
RIDDOR reportable. 
Health and Safety 
officer contacted the 
supplier to inform them 
that the packaging was 
in such a way that 
caused the items to 
come out in force and 
not labelled with a 
warning about them 
being inside one 
another 

4 30/8/21 Accident Student was completing a task 
in the forest classroom jumped 
onto a nail which was attached 
to a small piece of wood. This 
embedded into her foot. A first 
aider attended and called for an 
ambulance. 

The accident happened 
as the students were 
learning how to hazard 
spot prior to children 
attending the 
classroom. After two 
hours was taken to 
hospital by a family 
member due to 
ambulances being too 
busy 

5 9/9/21 First aid Lecturer asked for a first aider 
as the student had been 
complaining about pains in the 
upper chest area. First aider 
attended and student was sent 
home. 
 

No further action 

6 21/9/21 Accident Metal basketball cage lid was 
left sitting upright position.  
Student collected ball and lid 
fell forward and hit head. First 

Student was collected 
and went home 
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aider attended and advised to 
go to A & E if experience signs 
of concussion. 

7 27/9/21 First aid Student fell over at home then 
came into college the next day 
feeling in pain. First aider 
attended and advised to go to  
A & E 

No further action 

8 28/9/21 First aid Student fainted, first aider 
attended and was collected by 
family member and taken home 

No further action 
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Audit Committee 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 

The Annual Internal Audit Report for 2020-21 is attached to this paper.   
 
The auditors’ opinion is that West Lothian College has a framework of controls 
in place that provides reasonable assurance regarding the organisation’s 
governance framework, internal controls, effective and efficient achievement 
of objectives and the management of key risks. 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is asked to discuss the findings within the report. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services  
2 December 2021 
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Introduction 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) state that: 

“The Chief Audit Executive must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement.” 

“The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.” 

To meet the above requirements, this Annual Report summarises our conclusions and key findings from the 
internal audit work undertaken at West Lothian College during the year ended 31 July 2021, including our overall 
opinion on West Lothian College’s internal control system. 

Acknowledgement 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank all members of management and staff for the help, courtesy and co-
operation extended to us during the year. 



 

 

Overall internal audit opinion 
Basis of opinion 
As the Internal Auditor of West Lothian College, we are required to provide the Audit Committee with assurance on 
the whole system of internal control.  In giving our opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute.  
The most that the internal audit service can provide is reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses 
in the whole system of internal control. 

In assessing the level of assurance to be given, we have taken into account: 

• All reviews undertaken as part of the 2020/21 internal audit plan; 
• Any scope limitations imposed by management; 
• Matters arising from previous reviews and the extent of follow-up action taken including in year audits; 
• Expectations of senior management, the Audit Committee and other stakeholders; 
• The extent to which internal controls address the client’s risk management /control framework; 
• The effect of any significant changes in West Lothian College’s objectives or systems; and  
• The internal audit coverage achieved to date.  

In my professional judgement as Chief Audit Executive, sufficient and appropriate audit procedures have been 
conducted and evidence gathered to support the basis and the accuracy of the conclusions reached and contained 
in this report.  The conclusions were based on a comparison of the situations as they existed at the time against 
the audit criteria. The evidence gathered meets professional audit standards and is sufficient to provide senior 
management with proof of the conclusions derived from the internal audit work. 
 
 

Internal Audit Opinion 
In our opinion the West Lothian College has a framework of controls in place that provides reasonable assurance 
regarding the organisation’s governance framework, internal controls, effective and efficient achievement of 
objectives and the management of key risks.  
 
 

Azets 
September 2021 
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Internal audit work performed 
Scope and responsibilities 
Management 

It is management’s responsibility to establish a sound internal control system.  The internal control system 
comprises the whole network of systems and processes established to provide reasonable assurance that 
organisational objectives will be achieved, with particular reference to: 

• risk management; 
• the effectiveness of operations; 
• the economic and efficient use of resources; 
• compliance with applicable policies, procedures, laws and regulations; 
• safeguards against losses, including those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption; and 
• the integrity and reliability of information and data. 

Internal auditor 

The Internal Auditor assists management by examining, evaluating and reporting on the controls in order to provide 
an independent assessment of the adequacy of the internal control system.  To achieve this, the Internal Auditor 
should: 

• analyse the internal control system and establish a review programme; 
• identify and evaluate the controls which are established to achieve objectives in the most economic and 

efficient manner; 
• report findings and conclusions and, where appropriate, make recommendations for improvement; 
• provide an opinion on the reliability of the controls in the system under review; and 
• provide an assurance based on the evaluation of the internal control system within the organisation as a 

whole. 

Planning process 
Our strategic and annual internal audit plans are designed to provide the Audit Committee with assurance that 
West Lothian College’s internal control system is effective in managing the key risks and best value is being 
achieved.  The plans are therefore informed by the College’s risk management system and linked to the Corporate 
Risk Register.  

The Strategic Internal Audit Plan was agreed in consultation with senior management and formally approved by the 
Audit Committee. 

The Annual Internal Audit Plan is subject to revision throughout the year to reflect changes in West Lothian 
College’s risk profile.  See Appendix 1 for a detailed comparison of actual coverage against the 2020/21 plan.   

We planned our work so that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  
However, internal audit can never guarantee to detect all fraud or other irregularities and cannot be held 
responsible for internal control failures. 



 

 

Cover achieved 
The 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan comprised 49 days of audit work.  A comparison of 54 days of actual audit 
coverage against the 2020/21 plan is attached at Appendix 1. 

We confirm that there were no resource limitations that impinged on our ability to meet the full audit needs of the 
West Lothian College and no restrictions were placed on our work by management. 

We did not rely on the work performed by a third party during the period. 

Reports 
We prepared a report from each review and presented these reports to the Audit Committee. The reports are 
summarised in the table below. 

Where relevant, all reports contained action plans detailing responsible officers and implementation dates.  The 
reports were fully discussed and agreed with management prior to submission to the Audit Committee.  We made 
no significant recommendations that were not accepted by management. 

Summary of reports by control assessment and action grade 

Review Control objective 
assessment 

No. of issues per grading 

  4 3 2 1 

Core Financial Systems 

 
- - 2 - 

Estates Plan 

 
- - 2 - 

Board Effectiveness review N/A *     

Risk Workshop N/A **     

Cyber Security 

 
- - 4 - 

Business Continuity and Disaster 
Recovery 

 
- 1 3 - 

Credits, Student Funds and EMA N/A *** - - - - 

*  We undertook a review of the College’s Board effectiveness, against agreed aspects of the Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges. Different reporting style with no assessed control objectives. 
** We delivered a workshop on risk management to Board members and members of the executive team. 
*** Different reporting style with no assessed control objectives, in line with funding body requirements. 
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Control objective assessment definitions 

  

Management action prioritisation definitions  
 

 
 
 

Progress in implementing previous internal audit actions 
Management have continued to make good progress in implementing agreed actions from internal audit reports.  
Six actions were carried forward from last year and 12 new actions were added in 2020/21.  We reviewed 
management’s progress in implementing the 18 outstanding actions and obtained sufficient evidence to close 12 
actions (66%) as complete.  Of the remaining actions, three are deemed partially complete (17%) and three actions 
are not yet due for completion (17%).   

Fundamental absence or failure of key controls.

Control objective not achieved - controls are inadequate or ineffective.

Control objective achieved - no major weaknesses but scope for improvement.

Control objective achieved - controls are adequate, effective and efficient.

R 

 A 

Y 

G 



 

 

 

Key themes from audit work in 2020/21 
We did not identify any significant findings within the audits completed during the period.  Through our reviews we 
confirmed that the College had robust controls in place across the areas audited during the period and noted 
mainly minor improvements to strengthen the existing control frameworks. We only identified one significant finding 
during the period, as part of our review of Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery. We found that incident 
response plans for critical systems, including responses to cyber threats and attacks, had not been documented 
and there was no specific IT disaster recovery plan in place for the College’s technology infrastructure and 
systems. Management have agreed an action plan to address these gaps by the end of October 2021.  

Overall, management have also made good progress in implementing previously agreed recommendations. 

Independence 
PSIAS require us to communicate on a timely basis all facts and matters that may have a bearing on our 
independence.  

We can confirm that the staff members involved in each 2020/21 internal audit review were independent of the 
College and their objectivity was not compromised in any way. 

Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
We confirm that our internal audit service conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which are based 
on the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.  This is confirmed through our 
quality assurance and improvement programme, which includes cyclical internal and external assessments of our 
methodology and practice against the standards.  

A summary of the results of our most recent internal assessment is provided at Appendix 2. 

66%

17%

17%

Status of Recommendations

Complete

Partially complete

Not yet due
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Appendix 1 – Planned v actual days 2020/21 
Ref and Name of report Planned 

Days 
Actual          
Days 

Core Financial Systems 6.5 6.5 

Estates Plan 6 6 

Board Effectiveness review 5 5 

Cyber Security 5 5 

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery 6 6 

Follow up of recommendation 2 2 

Credits, Student Funds and EMA 14 14 

Audit Management 1.5 6.5* 

Annual planning and annual reporting 1 1 

Audit Committee (attendance & prep) 2 2 

Total 49 54 
 
* Five days carried forward from 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan. We delivered a workshop on risk management to 
Board members and members of the executive team. 



 

 

Appendix 2 – Summary of Internal Quality Assurance 
Assessment 
We are pleased to disclose the outcome of our regular internal and external quality assessments with our clients to provide you with assurance that the service you 
receive is of high quality and fully compliant with internal audit standards.   

The table below summarises the outcome of our most recent internal quality assessment (completed August 2020), in which we have assessed the extent to which our 
internal audit methodology conforms to the standards.  Compliance with the methodology is monitored through an annual review of a sample of audit files and we 
review our compliance with the IPPF/PSIAS through a wider review of our methodology.  In addition, every five years we commission a full External Quality 
Assessment, the most recent of which was completed in July 2018. 

 Generally 
Conforms 

Partially 
Conforms 

Does Not 
Conform 

Improvement actions 

Definition of Internal Auditing     

Code of Ethics      

Integrity     

Objectivity     

Confidentiality     

Competence    We are working on a skills matrix for the team that is 
aligned to the IIA’s Global Internal Audit Competency 
Framework. 

Attribute Standards      

Purpose, Authority and Responsibility     

Recognising Mandatory Guidance in the Internal Audit Charter     

Independence and Objectivity     
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 Generally 
Conforms 

Partially 
Conforms 

Does Not 
Conform 

Improvement actions 

Organisational Independence     

Direct Interaction with the Board     

Chief Audit Executive Roles Beyond Internal Auditing     

Individual Objectivity     

Impairments to Independence or Objectivity     

Proficiency and Due Professional Care (The sum of Standards 
1210-1230) 

    

Proficiency      

Due Professional Care     

Continuing Professional Development     

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (The sum of 
Standards 1310-1320) 

   We are in the process of consolidating our quality and 
continuous improvement processes within a single 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan. 

Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 

    

Internal Assessments     

External Assessments     

Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme     

Use of Conforms with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 

    

Disclosure of Non-conformance     



 

 

 Generally 
Conforms 

Partially 
Conforms 

Does Not 
Conform 

Improvement actions 

Performance Standards      

Managing the Internal Audit Activity (Sum total of Standards 2010 – 
2060) 

    

Planning     

Communication and Approval     

Resource Management     

Policies and Procedures     

Coordination and Reliance    Ensuring full co-ordination with other assurance 
providers remains challenging for all internal audit 
functions.  We have developed a robust methodology 
for assurance mapping that enables us to support our 
clients in this important area.  In addition, wherever 
possible we work closely with both external audit and 
key regulators to minimise any duplication in the 
scope of our work plans. 

In addition, we recently refreshed the risk maturity 
checklist that we use during strategic audit planning to 
ensure we place an appropriate level of reliance on 
the risk management process. 

Reporting to Senior Management and the Board     

External Service Provider and Organisational Responsibility for 
Internal Audit 

    

Nature of Work (Sum of Standards 2110 – 2130)     

Governance     

Risk Management     
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 Generally 
Conforms 

Partially 
Conforms 

Does Not 
Conform 

Improvement actions 

Control     

Engagement Planning (Sum of Standards 2201-2240)    We identified the need to provide refresher training to 
staff on the appropriate conduct of and attendance at 
audit scoping and opening meetings. 

Planning Considerations     

Engagement Objectives     

Engagement Scope      

Engagement Resource Allocation      

Engagement Work Programme     

Performing the Engagement (The sum of Standards 2300-2340)    We have included a focus in this year’s training on the 
use of sample testing.  This is being rolled out across 
all levels of staff within our team to cover both 
planning, execution and review. 

We also identified the need to provide refresher 
training for auditors covering the appropriate 
documentation of control assessments. 

Identifying Information     

Analysis and Evaluation     

Documenting Information    We recently updated our IA Methodology in relation to 
the Azets Professional Record Retention Policy to 
ensure that we continue to retain only essential 
information on audit files and securely destroy 
confidential info. 

Engagement Supervision    Timely sign-off of file completion remains a pervasive 
challenge; we have reminded all staff of the 



 

 

 Generally 
Conforms 

Partially 
Conforms 

Does Not 
Conform 

Improvement actions 

importance of this and included more detailed training 
on expectations in our annual training plan. 

Communicating Results (Sum of Standards 2410-2440)    We identified the need to provide refresher training to 
staff on the appropriate conduct of and attendance at 
audit close out meetings. 

Criteria for Communicating     

Quality of Communications     

Errors and Omissions     

Use of ‘conducted in conformance with the International Standards 
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 

    

Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance     

Disseminating Results     

Overall Opinions     

Monitoring Progress     

Resolution of Senior Management s Acceptance of Risks     

Overall, our service conforms to the requirements of the PSIAS.  Our assessment is based on the overall service that is delivered to each client.  We are happy to 
provide Audit Committee members with further details of the information set out above and the assessment process, if required. 
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Audit Committee 
 
STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS AND EDUCATIONAL MAINTENANCE 
ALLOWANCES (EMA) AUDITS 2020-21 
 
The college’s Internal Auditors have undertaken the annual audit of Student 
Support Funds and the Educational Maintenance Allowance for the academic 
year 2020-21 in accordance with the Scottish Funding Council’s audit 
guidance. 
 
The auditors did not identify any findings that affect the controls and 
processes in scope during the Student Support Fund and EMA audit. 

There are no recommendations from the audit and the attached report 
summarises the findings.    
 
Action 
 
For discussion. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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Audit work and conclusions 

Conclusion 

During our testing we identified no findings that affect the controls and processes in scope during 

the Student Support Fund and EMA audit. 

Background and scope 

During September 2021, we audited the student funding returns for West Lothian College. The audit examined 

the procedures and controls over the preparation of the 2020-21 Student Funding, HE Discretionary and EMA 

returns, together with audit testing to ensure the accurate calculation of the returns. This testing was 

undertaken in line with the SFC’s ‘Student Support Fund Audit Guidance 2020-21’ and ’Education Maintenance 

Allowance (EMA) audit guidance 2020-21’; as well as SAAS’ ‘Higher Education Discretionary Funds Guidance 

2020-21’.  

The SFC has set no requirement to provide a detailed report in respect of this work, however we report any 

findings identified within the audits to management. There are no management action points arising from the 

2020-21 student funding work. We have reported to SFC that the information set out in the Student Support 

Funds Data Return agreed to the underlying records, and that in our opinion funds had been disbursed in 

accordance with SFC and SAAS conditions.  

Our onsite fieldwork was carried out by an experienced auditor, was subject to a detailed quality assurance 

review by our credits audit management lead, and a further overall review by the audit director. Our audit 

approach included the following:  

• Examination of the procedures and controls relevant to the collection and recording of student data;  

• Evaluation of the adequacy of these controls in complying with SFC and SAAS guidance and ensuring 

the accuracy of the data;  

• Testing of the key controls to ensure they were operating satisfactorily;  

• Examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the figures recorded in the claim forms;  

• Further detailed testing where necessary, including checking of the claim forms; and  

• Follow up of prior year recommendations.  

All required submissions have been made to the relevant funding bodies. We have nothing further to report to 

the College in relation to our 2020-21 work in this area. 
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Audit Committee 
 
AUDIT REPORT – REVIEW OF CREDITS RETURN 2020-21 

An audit of funding statistics was carried out in accordance with the guidance 
issued by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC), including the data return for 
funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges 2020-21. 
 
In the auditor’s opinion, controls over the collection of data and the 
preparation of the credits returns are generally well designed and effective. 
Assurance was gained from the audit testing carried out and the internal 
checking performed by college management that the credits count for the 
college has not been materially misstated.  
 
Actual Credits claimed for 2020-21 were 49,632 against a target of 46,709. 
The College has therefore overperformed in achieving its allocation of targets 
by 6.26%.  
 
Action 
 
The committee is asked to discuss the findings from audit. 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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Executive Summary 

During September 2021 we audited the funding statistics for West Lothian College. The audit examined the 

procedures and controls over the preparation of the 2020/21 Credits return, together with audit testing to 

ensure the accurate calculation of the return. This testing was undertaken in line with ‘Data return for funding 

purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges 2020/21’. 

Conclusion 

In our opinion, controls over the collection of data and the preparation of the Credits returns are 

generally well designed and effective. Assurance can be gained from the audit testing carried out 

and the internal checking performed by College management that the Credits count for the College 

has not been materially misstated. A copy of the audit certificate is included in Annex A of this 

report.  

Actual Credits claimed for 2020/21 were 49,632 against a target of 46,709. The College has therefore 

overperformed in achieving its allocation of targets by 6.26%. 

Scope 

We performed our audit in accordance with the guidance issued by the SFC, including the “2020/21 data return 

for funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges” and “Credit Guidance: Student Activity Data 

Guidance for Colleges in AY 2020/21.” 

Approach 

Our fieldwork was carried out remotely by our audit team, subject to a detailed quality assurance review by our 

credits audit management lead and a further overall review by the audit director.  

Our audit involved the following:  

• Examination of the procedures and controls relevant to the collection and recording of student data; 

• Evaluation of the adequacy of these controls in complying with SFC guidance and ensuring the 

accuracy of the data;  

• Testing of the key controls to ensure they were operating satisfactorily;  

• Examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the figures recorded in the student data returns; 

• Review of the risk areas as highlighted in the audit guidance for 2020/21;  

• Analytical review utilising current year and prior year Credits data;  

• Further detailed testing where necessary, including checking of the Credits return; and  

• Follow up of prior year recommendations.  

Samples 

Our initial samples were derived by: 

• Applying Azets’ approved sampling methodology, taking cognisance of population size and related 

College circumstances; and 
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• Applying professional judgement and considering the approach/context from across our Credit audits. 

We did not find any errors and therefore it was not necessary for our samples to be extended. 

Acknowledgements  

We would like to thank all staff consulted during this review for their assistance and co-operation. 
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Detailed Findings 

Our review centred on testing College data on a sample basis and, where appropriate, consulting with staff and 

senior management for explanation and further explanation/evidence. This was performed to provide 

assurance that all the risks set out in Annex E of the audit guidance note referred to above had been 

satisfactorily addressed and that the fundamentals of compiling Credits data were subject to appropriate 

controls.  

General Systems Review  

The accuracy of the data on which the Credits return is calculated depends on appropriate controls and 

systems over enrolment and attendance and the timely clearing of errors on the FES report. 

Over the course of the audit we observed that West Lothian College has several well-designed controls that 

were operating effectively to ensure credits recorded and claimed are accurate and appropriate. We have 

provided details of the specific controls in place and the testing performed over the controls in the ‘key risk 

areas’ section below.  

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic  

Restrictions imposed by the Government as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic led to students having to study 

remotely. This necessitated the requirement for colleges to have in place appropriate arrangements throughout 

2020-21 for monitoring student engagement and student attendance at online classes. The SFC has expressed 

an increased requirement for colleges to have effective processes in place to address this matter.  

Our audit testing demonstrated that effective arrangements were in place throughout the academic year to 

monitor and document evidence of student attendance and attainment at the College to support Credits 

management. In cases where the student had withdrawn, the College was found to have attendance records 

showing student participation up until the withdrawal date. Testing of the relevant controls is discussed in 

greater detail at Risk Area 6.  

Follow up 

Our review of the 2019/20 Credits return identified two low risk recommendations. We have confirmed that one 

of the findings raised in the prior year has been fully implemented, with the other having still to be fully 

addressed. 

2019/20 Audit Finding - Summary 2020/21 Follow up Recommendation 

addressed? 

Incorrect credit calculation (Grade 2) 

For two students in one of our samples we 

observed that no attendance had been recorded 

yet credits had been claimed for the students. 

Through discussion with the Student Systems 

Manager we concluded that this is likely to have 

arisen as a result of inaction from the Academic 

The College has introduced eight 

new attendance monitoring reports 

which are delivered to teaching 

Directors, managers and other 

support functions in the pursuit of 

attendance monitoring. Three levels 

of reporting are in place to monitor 

Yes 
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Centre Heads. This is because while weekly 

absence monitoring reporting is provided, there 

is no accountability as the MIS team do not seek 

confirmation that follow up is taking place. 

To seek further evidence and obtain appropriate 

assurance, we selected a further 25 student 

records to test from the identified sub-population 

of part time students. Two further errors were 

identified in the course of this testing, giving a 

total of 11 overstated credits identified via our 

testing. 

Recommendation  

The College should further develop its 

attendance monitoring processes to include 

accountability for the Academic Centre Heads. 

This could involve pulling separate reports of 

higher risk students with non-attendance above 

a set threshold and requiring Academic Centre 

Heads to reply with a short summary of what 

action has been taken to get the students’ 

attendance back on track. 

attendance, ensuring the correct 

level of credits are claimed.  

Distance learning student progress (Grade 2) 

For a sample of five distance learning students, 

we requested evidence to see that a likely 

duration had been set, milestones had been 

agreed and progress is reviewed against this. 

However, for two of three students we were 

unable to confirm this was occurring. 

Recommendation  

The College should maintain records of 

engagements with open/distance learning 

students, record agreed milestones and 

demonstrate progress is being made by the 

students. 

The College now maintains records 

of engagement with open/distanced 

learners monitoring their progress.  

We verified that adequate records 

are maintained as part of our 

sample testing. However, as plans 

to roll out the use of the tracking 

and monitoring system used for 

SVQ employer-based students 

(Proof Positive) to all students on 

Open/Distance Learning courses 

have been disrupted due to COVID-

19, we have assessed this action 

as partially complete. 

 

Partially 
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Key Risk Areas 

The results of our audit work are summarised below against each of the 12 key risk areas highlighted by SFC in 

Annex E of the document “2020/21 data return for funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for 

colleges”.  

Risk Area 1 – Non-fundable activity is included in the Credit count 

Courses are prepared by the Centre and sent to an approver who conducts a quality check on the information 

entered to ensure that it meets the guidelines. This data is then sent to the MIS team to be input into Unit-E, 

including details relevant to the specified course such as duration, hours per week, outcome, superclass and 

the awarding body. 

We selected a sample of 24 courses to assess the criteria of the courses against the 2020/21 credit eligibility 

flow chart and confirmed that they all satisfied the following criteria: 

• The course leads to a recognised qualification or meet the employer’s needs; 

• The delivery of the provision is under direct management of the College; 

• The course will be completed within the academic year (non-spanning). 

 

No reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 2 – Non-fundable students are included in the Credit count  

Identifying fundable students is determined through the application and enrolment process. The enrolment form 

has been developed to obtain all the relevant information about the students so that they can be assessed 

against the SFC funding criteria. This is carried out by members of staff within student records, and secondary 

checks are performed by members of staff within the information systems team. Following this, the modules 

and credits the student is enrolled in are also checked to confirm accuracy.  

We tested a sample of 24 students from the compiled FES data against the SFC 2020/21 eligibility criteria to 

ensure that the students were eligible. 

No reportable issues were identified.  

Risk Area 3 – Programme is not classified correctly  

Programmes are classified as Higher Education (HE) or Further Education (FE), and by mode of provision. The 

curriculum planning process is used to identify that the correct classification of courses has been chosen to 

distinguish between HE, FE, full-time and part-time.  

Courses are classified by department heads in line with SFC guidance based on the content and qualification 

that they achieve, level of study required, number of units and the appropriate amount of credits awarded to 

them.  

Testing of a sample of 24 courses confirmed correct classification and mode of provision in student records 

attached to the course. 

No reportable issues were identified. 
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Risk Area 4 – Infill Student is counted as part of the programme which is being in-filled, rather than 

their individually tailored course or is included as part of both courses  

The College has set up separate course codes for infill students to ensure credits are only claimed for the 

modules completed by those students and additional credits are not claimed in respect of the programme(s) 

being in-filled.  

We reviewed a sample of five students completing infill courses to confirm separate course codes were created 

for these students and that the credits claimed were appropriate based on the modules completed by the 

student.  

No reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 5 – Incorrect Dominant Price Group Code is allocated to programme  

The College allocates the superclass and relevant price group to each course as part of development of the 

curriculum plan.   

For our sample of 24 courses, we confirmed that the appropriate superclass had been assigned to the course 

in accordance with SFC credits guidance. 

No reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 6 – Students included in the return do not meet attendance criteria  

The start date and end date of a course are updated on Unit-E following on from the outcomes of the 

curriculum planning stage. The required date is then calculated for each programme using an agreed auto 

formula. The formula uses the start date and end date to identify the number of working days which the course 

runs over, and it also identifies the holidays which fall between these dates and removes these from the total 

working days. The required date is then calculated as 25% of teaching days. This is then input into Unit-E by a 

member of the student support team.  

We tested a sample of 24 courses to confirm that start, end and required dates had all been calculated 

correctly. We also tested the same sample to confirm that the required date had been met by the students.  

No reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 7 – Incorrect Credit value is claimed for the programme of study  

The credit value claimed for courses is based upon the College’s enrolment records and the programme’s 

credit value, which is determined by curriculum staff as part of the curriculum planning process. The proposed 

curriculum information is reviewed by the Centres, approved by the Centre Head, and ultimately reviewed by 

the MIS team for accuracy. 

We tested a sample of 24 programmes to confirm the credits claimed were calculated correctly as per the 

guidance on eligibility for credit funding for colleges.  

No reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 8 – The college Credits claim for an individual student exceeds the maximum claim allowed 

for a student per year  

The College monitors its ‘One Plus’ activity throughout the academic year against the threshold set by the SFC 

to ensure that it will not exceed this threshold. 
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For the last few years, the SFC has set a 2.5% limit for ‘One Plus’ activity, where students undertake more than 

one full-time course/programme over the Academic Year. For 2020/21, SFC removed this limit to support 

students by enabling them to benefit from additional learning during the lockdown period. For this reason, 

specific testing in relation to this risk was not required. 

Risk Area 9 – College records fee waivers which are not covered by the standard fee waiver policy  

The College only offers fee waivers to students who are full time, within Price Group 5, or part time but are 

coming from school for a couple of hours a week. Most fee waivers were found to relate to full time FE courses.  

For any entitlement that requires evidence, this is checked by staff and recorded at the time when the source of 

funding is recorded.  Therefore, it is not possible to record a student as being funded by Fee waiver without 

either automated consistency checking preventing an incorrect funding source being recorded or recording that 

eligibility has been checked. This also helps to prevent multiple full-time fee waivers from being recorded. 

We selected a sample of 24 students and no reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 10 – Students who enrol on an open/ distance learning programme do not continue with the 

programme  

A Learning Agreement is put into place once Open/Distance learning students have enrolled. Any milestones or 

reviews are determined locally with the course. Assessment grades are used to monitor progress. 

For a sample of eight distance learning students, we requested evidence to verify that a likely duration had 

been set, milestones had been agreed and progress was reviewed against this.  

No reportable issues were identified. 

Risk Area 11 – Students who undertake non-accredited work experience or placements  

The College determines the duration of any work experience element as part of the curriculum planning 

process for each course. Where a course involves an element of non-accredited work experience or placement, 

the College determines the duration and credit value of this activity as part of the curriculum planning process 

based upon the required hours of attendance. Attendance at work experience or on placement is monitored in a 

number of ways depending on the nature of the placement, and the placement provider. Usually, the student 

will carry an attendance sheet which is signed by the placement provider and the attendance sheet is given to 

the lecturer to update the attendance system. 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Head of Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure explained that work 

experience placements were not occurring and mandatory work experience course elements are being waived 

by the SQA. For this reason, it was not possible to test student attendance at work experience placements.  

Risk Area 12 – Incorrect Credit value is claimed for collaborative provision  

Where courses are delivered in collaboration with another institution, the College agrees the funding position at 

the outset and ensures sufficient arrangements are in place to adhere to the SFC guidance, including that 

courses are subject to the College’s quality assurance processes. 

No courses were identified as being delivered in 2020/21 in collaboration with another institution, reducing the 

risk/testing focus in this area. 
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Adjustments  

We have not identified any issues which require adjustments to the College’s Credits claim.  
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Annex A  

Credits Audit Certificate for AY 2020-21  
 
Auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors of West Lothian College  

 

We have audited the FES return which has been prepared by West Lothian College under the ‘Credits’ 

Guidance issued 6 August 2020 and which has been confirmed as being free from material misstatement by 

the College’s Principal in her Certificate dated 4 October 2021. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

guidance contained in the 2020/21 audit guidance for colleges. The audit included an examination of the 

procedures and controls relevant to the collection and recording of student data. We evaluated the adequacy of 

these controls in ensuring the accuracy of the data. It also included examination, on a test basis, of evidence 

relevant to the figures recorded in the student data returns. We obtained sufficient evidence to give us 

reasonable assurance that the returns are free from material misstatement. 

 

In our opinion:  

• The student data returns have been compiled in accordance with all relevant guidance.  

 

• Adequate procedures are in place to ensure the accurate collection and recording of the data.  

 

• On the basis of our testing we can provide reasonable assurance that the FES return contains no 

material misstatement.  

 

 

 

6 October 2021 

 

Name of audit firm: Azets 

Contact Name: David Eardley, Director 

Contact telephone number: 0131 473 3500 

 

Date FES returned: 4 October 2021 
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Audit Committee 
 
ANNUAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS AND THE AUDITOR 
GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND 2020-21 

The attached report summarises the findings from the 2020-21 year-end 
audit.   
 
The conclusion of the auditors is that they anticipate issuing: 
 
• an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial statements. 

However, an Emphasis of Matter paragraph will be included within the 
auditor's report with respect to the material valuation uncertainty disclosed 
in the financial statements 

 
• an unqualified regularity opinion, meaning that in their opinion, in all 

material respects the expenditure and income recognised in the financial 
statements have been applied for the purposes intended 

 
• an unqualified opinion on the matters prescribed by the Auditor General for 

Scotland. Namely that the remuneration and staff report, performance 
report and governance statement have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the relevant legislation. 

 
The auditors are also concluding as follows against the wider scope 
dimensions for smaller bodies: 
 
• The college has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that 

help the Board members scrutinise finances; and 
 

• The college has governance arrangements in place that provide 
appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the Board and are reflected in 
the governance statements. 

 
 
Action 
 
The committee is asked to discuss the findings from the audit. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services  
2 December 2021 
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The Audit Committee 
 West Lothian College 
Almondvale Crescent 
Livingston 
West Lothian 
EH54 7EP 

 
 

2 December 2021 

 
 
 

   Mazars LLP 
      Apex 2 
   97 Haymarket Terrace 

                       Edinburgh  
            EH12 5HD  

 

 
 

Dear Members, 

Annual Audit Report – Year ended 31 July 2021 

We are pleased to present our Annual Audit Report for the year ended 31 July 2021. The 
purpose of this document is to summarise our audit conclusions. 

The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of 
management judgement, was outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we 
presented to the Audit Committee on 24 June 2021. We have reviewed our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of 
management judgement remain appropriate.  

We would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit. 
 

If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact 
me on 0738 724 2052. 

 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Lucy Nutley 

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
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Executive summary 
Purpose of this report and principal conclusions 

This Annual Audit Report sets out the findings from our audit of West Lothian College (‘the 
College’) for  the year ended 31 July 2021 and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit 
Committee meeting on 2 December 2021. 

Our responsibilities are defined by the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 
and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’) issued by Audit Scotland. Subject to the 
satisfactory completion of the outstanding work, at the time of issuing this report we have the 
following conclusions: 

Opinion on the 
financial 

statements 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the 
financial statements. As outlined in more detail in section 2, we intend to 
include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph within our auditor’s report with 
respect to the material valuation uncertainty disclosed in the financial 
statements regarding the College’s land and buildings valuation in the 
prior year. Our proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s 
report in Appendix B 

Opinion on 
regularity 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified regularity opinion, meaning that in 
our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income 
recognised in the financial statements have been applied for the 
purposes intended. 

Opinion on other 
requirements 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on the matters prescribed 
by the Auditor General for Scotland. Namely that  the remuneration and 
staff report, performance report and governance statement have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation. 

Wider scope 
work 

We anticipate concluding as follows against wider scope dimensions for 
smaller bodies: 
• The College has appropriate financial planning arrangements in 

place. The College is reliant on the outcome of dialogue with the 
Scottish Funding Council in relation to future funding, or the increase 
of other income to ensure financial sustainability is ensured; and 

• The College has governance arrangements in place that provide 
appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the Board of Governors. 

   Our proposed audit and regularity opinion is included in the draft audit report in Appendix B. 
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Status of our audit work 

We have substantially completed our work on the financial statements and wider scope work 
for the year ended 31 July 2021. At the time of preparing this report the following matters 
remain outstanding: 

 
 

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters 

 
 

Review and 
completion 
procedures 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

A review of the final Annual Report and Financial 
Statements will be completed upon receipt. Standard 
audit completion procedures still require    to be 
performed. 
We will also consider post balance sheet events until 
the date of sign-off. 
 

 
 

Status 

Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial 
statements 

Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial 
statements 

Not considered likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the 
financial statements 

 
 

Internal control recommendations and misstatements 
We did not identify any significant control weaknesses during our audit and have not raised any 
internal control recommendations. There were also no internal control recommendations from 
prior years to provide an update on.  

 
Section 4 outlines the misstatements noted as part of our audit as at the time of issuing this 
report. If any additional misstatements are noted on completion of the outstanding work, these  
will be reported to the Audit Committee in a follow-up letter. 
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Our audit approach 

We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum on 
24 June 2021. We have not made any changes to our audit approach since we presented 
our Audit Strategy Memorandum. 

 
 

Adding value through the audit 

We recognise that all of our clients want us to provide a positive contribution to meeting their 
ever-changing business needs. Our aim is to add value to West Lothian College through our 
external audit work by being constructive and forward looking, by identifying areas of 
improvement and by recommending and encouraging good practice. In this way we aim to 
help the College  promote improved standards of governance, better management and 
decision making and more effective use of limited financial resources. 

 
 

Materiality 
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in 
the context of financial statements as a whole. Misstatements in financial statements are 
considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

We set materiality at the planning stage of the audit at £408,000 using a benchmark (2%) of 
total expenditure. Our final assessment of materiality, based on the draft financial 
statements is £422,000 using the same benchmark. 

 

 Initial Threshold 
£’000 

Final Threshold 
£’000 

Overall materiality 408 422 

Performance materiality 327 337 
Trivial threshold for errors to be reported 
to the Audit Committee 12 13 
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The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by 
our perception of the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In 
making our assessment we assume that users: 

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 
• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable 

diligence; 
• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of 

materiality; 
• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of 

estimates, judgement and the consideration of future events; and 
• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial 

statements. 

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and 
qualitative factors. 

 
 

Performance Materiality 
Our audit testing is based on a level of performance materiality, which is a percentage of 
overall materiality, but also dependent on the level of inherent risk assessed on the area 
being tested. It is lower than overall materiality as it helps to reduce the risk that the total of 
the uncorrected or undetected misstatements does not exceed materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole. It is based on between 50 – 80% of overall materiality depending on 
the inherent risk level assessed. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based 
on low inherent risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of overall materiality as performance 
materiality.  

 
 

Misstatements 
We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We 
set a level of triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the 
Audit Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need 
to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not 
have a material effect on the financial statements. This level was set at 3% of materiality. 
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Audit of the financial statements 
 

Set out below are the significant findings from our audit. These findings include: 

• our audit conclusions regarding significant risks and key areas of management judgement 
outlined in the Audit Strategy Memorandum; 

• our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted 
in the financial statements. On page 12 we have concluded whether the financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting framework and 
commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the 
year; 

• any further significant matters discussed with management; and 

• any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit. 
 
 

Significant risks and key areas of management judgement 

As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the 
College’s financial statements that required special audit consideration. Although our report 
identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process and we regularly consider 
whether new significant risks have arisen and how we intend to respond to these risks. No 
new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

02 



Audit of the financial statements (continued) 

9 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Management 
override of 
controls 

Description of the risk 
In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are 
in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to 
manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could 
occur, we consider there to be a risk of material misstatement due to 
fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits. 

 How we addressed this risk 
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over: 

 
• Accounting estimates impacting on amounts included in the financial 

statements; 

• Consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal 
course of business; and 

• Journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made 
in preparation of the financial statements. 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained in respect of the presumed risk 
of   management override. We have no matters to report. 
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Revenue 
recognition 

Description of the risk 
 

There is a presumption under International Standards on Auditing that 
there is a significant risk of fraud and error in the timing of revenue 
recognition leading to the material misstatement of revenue overall. This is 
because revenue is an area of particular focus by users of financial 
statements and can be subject to judgements as to when grant income 
should be recognised and if clawback conditions apply to the funding. 

 
This risk only applies to the non-grant income generated by the College. 
The risk has been rebutted in relation to grant income received by the 
College, given the highly regulated nature, and therefore, low inherent risk 
of this income. 
 

 How we addressed this risk 
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over: 

 
• The design and implementation of controls management has in place to 

ensure income is recognised in the correct period; 
 

• Cash receipts around year end to ensure they have been recognised in 
the appropriate year; 

 
• The judgements made by management in determining when non-grant 

income is recognised; and 
 

• Expected credit loss provisions applied to receivables at the year end, 
considering the appropriateness of judgements made by management. 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained in respect of the presumed risk of 
revenue recognition. We have no matters to report. 



Audit of the financial statements (continued) 

11 

 

 

 
 
 

Expenditure 
recognition 

Description of the risk 
For public sector organisations, the same risk in relation to fraud and error 
in respect of the timing of recording of transactions can apply to the 
recognition of non-payroll related expenditure and contractual obligations. 

 
The pressure to manage expenditure to ensure that budgeted outcomes 
are achieved increases the risk surrounding fraudulent reporting of 
expenditure. 

 How our audit addressed this risk 
We have undertaken a range of substantive procedures including: 

 
• The design and implementation of controls management has in place; 

 
• Testing of non-payroll expenditure around the year end to ensure 

transactions are recognised in the appropriate year; 
 

• Testing material year end payables, accruals and provisions; and 
 

• Reviewing judgements about whether the criteria for recognising 
provisions are satisfied. 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained in respect of the risk of 
expenditure recognition. We have no matters to report. 
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Key Areas of Management Judgement 

Key areas of management judgement include accounting estimates which are material but 
are not considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement. These areas of 
management judgement represent other areas of audit emphasis. 

 
 
 
 

Valuation of 
Pension 
Liabilities 

Description of area of focus 
The College makes contributions to two pension schemes – the Scottish 
Teachers Superannuation Scheme (STSS) and the Lothian Pension 
Fund (LPF). While both are defined benefit schemes, it is not possible to 
identify the College’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the 
STSS and it is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. 

 The College’s share of the LPF’s underlying assets and liabilities is 
identifiable and is recognised in the accounts. 

 
Given the scale of the liability recognised, a misstatement in the reported 
position could be material to the financial statements. 

 How we have addressed this area of management judgement 
We have addressed the risk by: 

 
• Considering the arrangements put in place, including existence of any 

relevant controls, for     making estimates in relation to pension entries 
within the financial statements. 

 
• Considering the reasonableness of the actuary's assumptions used in 

providing the College with information in the financial statements through 
the use of our internal experts. 

 Audit conclusion 
There have been no other significant findings arising from our review of the 
defined benefit liability valuation and disclosures in the financial statements. 
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Valuation of 
Land and 
Buildings  

Description of area of focus 
The College holds land and buildings with a net book value of £20m as at 
31 July 2021.  

In line with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual, the College has adopted a formal revaluation policy of an 
external valuation every five years, with a desktop, interim valuation 
performed during the five year period. As the external valuation was 
performed at 31 July 2020, no revaluation is planned in the current year.  

The College policy meets the requirement of the FE SORP that assets are 
valued sufficiently regularly so that the carrying value of the asset is not 
materially different from its fair value. The College is required to assess 
on an annual basis whether there are indicators of impairment to assets at 
the reporting date.  

Given the significance of the value of fixed assets held, a misstatement in 
the valuation could be material to the financial statements 

 
 How we have addressed this area of management judgement 

We have addressed the risk by: 
 
• Reviewing management’s assessment as to whether the value still 

reflects the prior year valuation; 
 

• Reviewing the reconciliation between the College’s asset register 
and general ledger; and 
 

• Considering the College’s impairment review process for land and 
buildings.  
 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained over the valuation of land and 
buildings. We have no matters to report.  
The external valuer included a material valuation uncertainty paragraph within 
their valuation report during the revaluation in 2019/20. As the valuation has 
not been re-performed as at 31 July 2021, management judgement is that the 
valuation uncertainty remains. As such, details of the material valuation 
uncertainty will be included in note 1(q) to the financial statements. In our 
view, this matter is fundamental to the users’ understanding of the financial 
statements and as such we intend to include an ‘Emphasis of Matter’ 
paragraph in respect of this disclosure within our auditors report set out in 
Appendix B. Our opinion on the College’s financial statements is not modified 
in respect of this matter. 



Audit of the financial statements (continued) 

14 

 

 

 
Grouped 
assets 
accounting 
policy 

Description of area of focus 
During 2020-21 digital funding was made available to the College for the 
purchase of equipment to provide to students to enable and support 
remote learning that was required as a consequence of Covid-19. The 
College is required to account for this as capital funding as a term of the 
funding. 

Any assets acquired using this funding, although distributed to students, 
are considered the property of the College and will be capitalised under a 
grouped asset accounting policy.  

 
 How we have addressed this area of management judgement 

We have addressed the risk by: 
 

• Considering the College’s grouped asset accounting policy and 
whether this is consistent with the requirements of the digital 
funding provided; 

 
• Considering how the College has satisfied itself that it has 

appropriate processes in place around the stewardship of the 
associated assets and what consideration of impairment has 
been made. 

 
 

 

Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained over the application of the grouped assets 
accounting policy. 
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Qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices 

We have reviewed the College’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they 
comply with the requirements of the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting 
for Further and Higher Education and the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2020/21 
and were  appropriately tailored to the College’s circumstances. 

Draft financial statements were received from the College on 13 October 2021 at the start of 
audit fieldwork. The draft annual report was received during fieldwork on 02 November 
2021. Both draft financial statements and draft annual report were of a good quality. 

Producing quality supporting working papers is a crucial part of compiling financial 
statements that are complete and materially accurate. They also support the delivery of an 
efficient audit. Working papers provided for audit were of a good standard and staff were 
responsive to our requests during the audit. 

 

Significant matters discussed with management 

No significant matters arose during the course of the audit. 
 
 

Significant difficulties during the audit 

We completed our audit mostly remotely with an onsite visit to the College. During the course 
of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and  we have had the full co-
operation of management. The draft accounts, working papers and annual report were all 
provided in line with the agreed timetable. We would like to express our thanks to 
management and officers for their co-operation throughout the audit.
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Summary of Misstatements 
 

This section outlines the misstatements identified during the course of the audit, above the 
trivial threshold for adjustment of £13k.  

The table outlines the misstatements that were identified during the course of our audit. 

 

Adjusted misstatements 

We set out below adjustments, identified by management and made to the draft financial 
statements during the course of the audit.  

  
  Statement of 

Comprehensive Income 
Balance Sheet 

  Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) 

      
 Dr: Revenue 48 -   
 Cr. Deferred income   - 48 
 Being the correction of ESF income relating to 2021/22 included in 2020/21 accounts  
      
 Total  48 - - 48 

 
 

The total effect of the adjustments above was to decrease net assets on the Balance Sheet by £48k 
and to decrease revenue by £48k. These adjustments are immaterial to the overall financial 
statements. 
 
Unadjusted misstatements 

There were no unadjusted misstatements identified during the course of the audit above the 
trivial threshold of £13k. 
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Wider Scope 
 
 

Our approach to Wider Scope work 
The Code requires us to conclude and make a judgement on the four dimensions of wider 
scope work. These are: 
• financial sustainability; 
• financial management; 
• governance and transparency; and 
• value for money. 

 
In recognition that audit work should be risk based and proportionate to the nature and size 
of the audited body, the Code allows auditors to determine whether application of the full 
wider scope work is appropriate in smaller bodies. At the planning stage, we considered that 
the audit of West Lothian College should be carried out under the small body provisions of 
the Code. We have reached this conclusion through our assessment of:  
 
• the relative size of the College;  
• the relative simplicity of the College’s functions;  
• the College’s risk profile.  
 
In line with the Code requirements, our work has therefore focused on financial sustainability 
and the governance statement. This is concluded on in the following pages. 
 
 
In 2020/21, we have also considered the following risk areas as they relate to the College: 
  
• Exit from the European Union  
• Changing landscape of public financial management  
• Dependency on key suppliers  
• Openness and transparency  
 
We do not consider that any of the above constitute a significant risk for the College at this 
point but will continue to monitor. 

 
 

National Fraud Initiative 

The College participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise. Data was submitted 
in line with timescales and the Audit Committee have been informed of the exercise. No 
significant findings or issues arose from NFI during the 2020/21 audit process. The  
College met all deadlines set by the NFI and investigated potential matches in a timely 
manner.
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Financial sustainability 
Dimension 

Financial sustainability extends the going concern assumption from the financial statements, 
looking forward two to five years, reviewing and assessing arrangements for financial 
planning and affordable and sustainable service delivery in this timescale. 

Our conclusion 

West Lothian College has appropriate financial planning arrangements in place. The College 
is reliant on the outcome of dialogue with the Scottish Funding Council in relation to future 
funding, or the increase of other income to ensure financial sustainability is ensured.  

 
 

Financial Planning 

The College would normally prepare a 5-year budget and forecast which forms the basis of 
the Financial Forecast Return (FFR) required to be submitted to the SFC annually. The 
2020/21 FFR was  prepared using the figures in a baseline budget approved by the Board 
of Governors  in June 2021. As in the prior year, given the level of uncertainties relating to 
financial planning, the SFC requested only a 3-year FFR, this approach has been adopted 
again in the current year due to these uncertainties continuing.  

 
Through the FFR process and other financial reporting throughout the year, the College and 
its Board of Governors have a clear view of the financial challenges and long-term risks 
faced. FFR planning assumptions, as advised by the SFC, have been considered fully before 
use. We note that one of those assumptions is that funded credit activity for Foundation 
Apprenticeships (FAs) will not continue beyond 2021-22. Not funding FAs would have a 
significant and disproportionate impact on the College.  The college are therefore considering 
options around the delivery of FAs as a way to help bring the college close to breakeven in 
2022/23. The College has taken a prudent approach to their forecast as they excluded the 
Children Hearing Scotland (CHS) training contract which will expire in 2023/24, even though 
the college believes they have a good chance of retendering and renewing the contract. 
 
Given the level of sector wide uncertainties around future funding and of the general 
economic environment that have arisen following Covid-19, it is reasonable that the College 
forecasts do not exceed the three-year modelling period requested by the SFC. Longer term 
actions are included within this period which demonstrates that the College is taking steps to 
ensure its long-term financial sustainability, however, these rely on the outcome of on-going 
dialogue with SFC over funding for aspects such as voluntary severance and capital 
investment. 

 

 

 

 

 



Wider scope 

19 

 

 

 
 

A summary of the College’s three year forecast is included in the table below. 
 
 

 Budget 
2021/22 
£’000 

Forecast 
2022/23 

£’000 

Forecast 
2023/24 
£’000 

Total Income 20,769 20,142 19,563 

Staff costs (14,716) (14,612) (14,187) 

Total other expenditure (6,119) (5,686) (5,532) 

Operating surplus/(deficit) before 
other gains and losses (66) (156) (156) 

Add back: Depreciation – net of 
deferred capital grant 317 317 317 

Less: Cash based priorities 
allocated to loan repayments (190) (190) (190) 

Adjusted Operating Surplus / 
(Deficit) 61 (29) (29) 

 
 

The FFR shows figures close to breakeven throughout its timeframe. The College will 
continue to work to refine the income and costs reflected in their financial plans to meet or 
better these results. 

 
The figures above are based on the following 

• Income assumptions provided by the SFC; 

• Decrease in income and related staff costs in between 2022/23 and 2023/24 is due to the 
Children’s hearing Scotland contract coming to an end; 

• Salary increasing from 71% to 72% of total expenditure 

• Loan payments due to SFC have been suspended until July 2026, following the payment in 
2020/21. Amounts that would have been paid to the SFC are planned to be invested into 
College estates. 

 
The College, like so many in the sector, remain reliant on the SFC for funding decisions that 
will determine credit delivery going forward. We note that the College is largely on track for 
achievement of credits in 2021/22 following successful recruitment earlier in the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
Asset Management and Estates Strategy 
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During 2020-21 the College produced its 5-year Estates Plan which captures the estates 
developments required to deliver on curriculum plans and give students the best possible 
learning experience. The Estates Plan is designed to complement the College strategic and 
operational plans and its key aim is to ensure maintenance of high-quality fit for purpose 
facilities, minimum environmental impact and operational sustainability. The Board of 
Governors, through the Finance & General Purposes Committee, will monitor the strategy. 
 
National estates survey 
 
Gardiner & Theobald were appointed by the Scottish Funding Council in January 2017 to 
provide a summary of the conditions of the estates within the Scottish Further Education 
sector. Overall, across Scotland the total gross estimated backlog was £363 million.  
 
The West Lothian College survey showed an estimate of £2 million of costs over the 5-year 
period from 2018-19 to 2022-23, with only £17k being identified as urgent. The report states 
that expenditure of this level is to be expected with buildings approaching 20 years old. The 
work marked as urgent has already been completed, and the remaining works are currently 
being planned. During the year, £19k was spent on backlog maintenance. Further backlog 
maintenance expenditure has been factored into the 3-year plan. 
 
During the year, two significant estates projects were undertaken, both of which were 
funded by the College alongside additional funding from the Scottish Funding Council. The 
first of these was to create a mezzanine floor within the engineering and construction 
faculty, to extend the space available and upgrade the equipment to enhance the student 
experience. Additionally, a project to reconfigure the ground floor of the main campus 
building to increase individual and collaborative flexible learning spaces, and including a 
new, modern Learning Centre, Student Association hub and Information Point was 
completed in the summer of 2021. Through additional funding received from the SFC, the 
College will complete works on the main building during 2021-22 with an extension to the 
front entrance. 
 
 
We consider that appropriate attention is given to the estate and assets, and that their 
maintenance is factored into long term plans and discussions. 
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Governance and transparency 
 

Dimension 

Governance and transparency covers the effectiveness of scrutiny and governance 
arrangements, leadership and decision making and transparent reporting of financial and 
performance information. 

 
 

Our conclusion 

West Lothian College has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate 
scrutiny of decisions made by the Board of Governors . We consider the additional 
governance arrangements made by the College to deal with the impact of COVID-19 to be 
appropriate.  

 
 

Governance arrangements 

Our work in this area has considered the overall governance arrangements in place at the 
College, reviewed the financial and performance reporting to the Board of Governors , and 
reviewed the minutes of committees to inform our assessment of the appropriateness of 
the governance structure. We have also attended Audit Committees during the year. 

Financial papers submitted to committees are relevant and timely. Each paper has a 
summary setting out the purpose of the paper and the action required by the members. 
Minutes are understandable and contain detail of discussions and rationale for decision 
making. 

At 31 July 2021, the Board consisted of 18 members, 9 female (including the Principal) and 
9 male. In the current year the Board has continued to maintain a gender balance that 
meets with the objective of the Gender Representation on Public Boards (Scotland) Act 
2018. 

The key committees’ membership comprises of, and are chaired by Board members, with 
each also containing the Principal, with the exception of the Audit Committee. In addition, 
the Chair of the Board is also not permitted to be a member of the Audit Committee. 
Appropriate College officers attend committees and present reports as required. 
 

During the year, the College had a co-opted independent member on the Audit 
Committee, who was appointed for their specific skills and expertise. We have found this 
arrangement works well, and encourage the College to continue this, where the need 
arises in future years if possible.  
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Covid-19 Governance arrangements 

Following the Government announcement of the initial lockdown in 2020, the College’s main 
form of teaching was online during the year as the ongoing Coivd-19 pandemic. As the law 
and regulations changed and lockdowns occurred during the year, online teaching was used.  

As well as acting within government guidelines, student engagement was a main priority of 
the college throughout the pandemic as the remoteness of the new learning style had an 
impact on student experience. A Covid-19 committee meets every Friday within the college 
to discuss case numbers, government guidelines and ensuring that student interaction 
remains positive. Some of the ways student engagement was encouraged was through 
virtual industry talks, online student conferences and expert master classes. As a result the 
college has seen a very positive reaction to the blended learning approach.  

In September 2020, most students returned to a more campus-based learning, with some of 
the less practical subjects continuing to be accessed remotely.  

Board and Committees continued to meet on the same schedule during this period using 
appropriate virtual platforms. 

Lockdowns occurred throughout 2020/21 and the threat of imminent lockdowns remained 
throughout. The College was set up to deal with these effectively due to their blended 
learning approach being operational from the prior year.  

We have reviewed the College’s Covid-19 Governance arrangements and conclude that 
there is evidence of appropriate governance arrangements in this regard.  
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Governance Statement 

As part of our audit we have read the governance statement included in the annual report. 
The governance statement sets out the corporate governance framework in place throughout 
the reporting year, the internal controls in operation, the work of internal audit and the overall 
efficiency and effectiveness of the governance framework. 

The governance statement confirms the College’s compliance with the 2016 Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges. 

We are required to read and provide an opinion on the governance statement. In our opinion, 
the information contained within is consistent with the financial statements. We also consider 
that the governance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and further directions made by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
 

Internal audit 

An effective internal audit service is an important element of any organisation’s governance 
arrangements. Internal audit provide the College with independent assurance on internal 
control and corporate governance processes. The internal audit function at the College is 
provided by Azets. Internal Audit have attended Audit Committees throughout the year and 
have produced 8 reports to support the overall Annual Internal Audit Opinion.  

 
 

Transparency 

Transparency means that service users and the public have access to understandable 
information about how the College is making decisions and using its resources. There is a 
commitment to transparency, with the minutes and papers of the Board of Governors and  key 
committees being available on the website.
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Our fee 
 
 
 

Fees for work as the College’s appointed auditor 

We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum, presented to the Audit Committee on 24 June 2021. Having completed our 
work for the 2020/21 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows: 

 
 

Area of work 
Proposed fee 

2020/21 
Final fee 
2020/21 

Auditor remuneration £14,260 £14,260 

 
Pooled costs 

 
£900 

 
£900 

 
Contribution to Audit Scotland costs 

 
£590 

 
£590 

Total Fee £15,750 £15,750 
 
 

 
We confirm that these fees are in line with the scale fee set by Audit Scotland. We also 
confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the College in the year. 
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Draft Management Representation letter 
Dear Sirs 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations given to 
you in connection with your audit of the College’s accounts for the period ended 31 July 
2021. 
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for ensuring: 
a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions; 
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

College as at 31st July 2021; 
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the College have been properly reflected 
and recorded in the accounting records; 

d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management 
meetings, have been made available to you; 

e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are consistent 
with those adopted in the previous financial statements and are in accordance with the 
Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) under the terms of the 
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992; and 

f) compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum issued to the 
Board of Governors  by the SFC. 

  
Azets acted as Internal Auditors to the College during the year. All reports issued to the 
College and our responses to them have been made available to you. 
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control 
systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you the results of our risk 
assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud. There have 
been no irregularities (or allegations of irregularities) involving management, employees 
who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 
  
The College has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the 
accounts. 
  
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, received have 
been properly accrued for in the financial statements
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There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or which 
would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than those already disclosed or 
included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate 
revision of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we 
will advise you accordingly. 
 
The College has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or agreement 
to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or credit transactions) for the Board 
of Governors  nor to guarantee or provide security for such matters. 
  
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to the 
College and that we are not aware of any further related party matters that require 
disclosure in order to comply with the requirements of charities legislation, the Statement of 
Recommended Practice for Further and Higher Education accounts or accounting 
standards. 
 
The College has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in the 
accounts. 
  
The College has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on 
the College’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the financial statements. 
  
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing management or 
employees of the College, nor are we aware of any breaches or possible breaches of 
statute, regulations, contracts, agreements or College's Constitution and Articles of 
Government which might result in the College suffering significant penalties or other loss. 
No allegations of such irregularities, including fraud, or such breaches have come to our 
attention. 
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-compliance 
with those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework within which the College 
conducts its business. 
  
We confirm that, in our opinion, the College is a going concern on the grounds that current 
and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the College’s 
needs. We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the 
financial statements. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the College’s ability 
to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic on the College, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, 
and that the disclosure in the Performance Report fairly reflects that assessment. 
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We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the United 
Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the end of the 
Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Performance Report fairly reflects that 
assessment. 
 
We confirm that no unadjusted misstatements have been brought to our attention. 

 
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, of 
supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of 
the above representations to you. 
  
  
Yours faithfully 
  
  
  
.………………………………………….. Chair of Board  
  
  
…………………………………………….. Principal 
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Draft Audit Report  

Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors  of West Lothian 
College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West Lothian 
College for the year ended 31 July 2021 under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 
1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The 
financial statements comprise  the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, 
Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The  financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 

 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

 
• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) 

Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of 
the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of its deficit for the year then ended; 

 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; and 
 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further    and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding 
Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of 
The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code   of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for 
Scotland. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We were appointed by 
the Auditor General on 31 May 2016. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is five years. 
We are independent of the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial  Reporting Council’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. Non-audit services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the 
college. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
 

  

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
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Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 
We have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the college’s 
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve 
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Risks of material misstatement 
We report in a separate Annual Audit Report, available from the Audit Scotland website, the most 
significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we identified and our judgements thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors 's Responsibilities, the Board 
of Governors  is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the 
Board of Governors  determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors  is responsible for assessing the 
college’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users  taken on the basis of these financial statements irregularities, 
including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and    regulations. 
 
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities outlined above to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures include: 

 
• obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory framework and how the 

college is complying with that framework; 
 

• identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of    the College; 
 

• assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, 
including how fraud might occur; and 

 
• considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate competence and 

capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance  with laws and regulations. 
 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
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The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is 
affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the college’s 
controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed. 

 
Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that 
result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities 
depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, 
and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

 
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 
 
Reporting on regularity of expenditure and income 

Opinion on regularity 
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were 
incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the 
Scottish Ministers. 

 
Responsibilities for regularity 
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. In 
addition to our responsibilities to detect material misstatements in the financial statements in 
respect of irregularities, we are responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of 
expenditure and income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 
2000. 

 
 
Reporting on other requirements 

Opinion prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on audited part of the Remuneration 
and Staff Report 
We have audited the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report described as audited. In our 
opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made 
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
Statutory other information 
The Board of Governors is responsible for the statutory other information in the annual report and 
accounts. The statutory other information comprises the Performance Report and the 
Accountability Report excluding the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report. 

 
Our responsibility is to read all the statutory other information and, in doing so consider whether 
the statutory other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, 

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx
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based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this  
statutory other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the statutory other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the Performance Report and 
Governance Statement to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinions prescribed by the 
Auditor General for Scotland. 

 
Opinions prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on  Performance Report and 
Governance Statement 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council; and 

 
• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in    our opinion: 

 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not 
in agreement with the accounting records; or 

 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

 
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 
In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions on the wider 
scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in our Annual Audit Report. 
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Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with 
paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, we do not undertake to have responsibilities to 
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Lucy Nutley 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 
Mazars LLP 
Apex 2 
97 Haymarket Terrace 
Edinburgh 
EH12 5HD 
 
[Full date] 

 

Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance 
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 
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. 
 

Independence 
As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any 
new actual or perceived threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional 
requirements governing us as your auditors. 

We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the 
Audit Strategy Memorandum and therefore we remain independent. 
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Audit Committee 
 
COLLEGE AUDIT ROLLING ACTION PLAN 

The College Audit Action Plan shows progress in implementing previously 
agreed Internal Audit recommendations. The attached table shows the 
position as at November 2021. 
 
Action 
 
The committee is asked to note progress against plan. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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2020-21 – (1 August 2020 - 31 July 2021) 
 
Status November 2020 November 2021 
 Grade     

4-5 
Grade     

3 
Grade  

1-2 
Grade 

4-5 
Grade  

3 
Grade 

1-2 
Completed recommendations by original 
deadline (subject to Internal Audit Review) 
 

-  
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Completed recommendations by extended 
deadline (subject to Internal Audit Review) 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2 

Outstanding recommendations on target  
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1  

 
3 

Outstanding recommendations past agreed 
deadline 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Total 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1 

 
- 

 
1  

 
5 
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2020-21 
  No Audit Report Topic  

 
Report 
Date 

Background Recommendation College Response Responsibility  Deadline 
 

Status Update/ 
Comments 

Revised 
Deadline 
 

1 Cyber Security 
(1.1 Cyber risk governance 
framework) –  
A robust cyber risk 
management and 
governance framework has 
been established and 
implemented which 
considers risks to the 
college’s information assets.  
 

Jan 
2021 

Without risks being considered 
and managed at a strategic, 
tactical and operational level, 
there is a risk that senior 
management and the Board of 
Management will not have 
appropriate oversight of the 
college’s cyber security risks, nor 
will it be clear how IT projects, 
which include email security and 
firewall upgrades, are working to 
mitigate identified risks. This may 
result in actions and investments 
not being prioritised, increasing 
the risk that vulnerabilities are 
exploited. 

We recommend that cyber security 
risks are governed at a strategic, 
tactical and operational level, in line 
with the corporate risk management 
framework, and to allow appropriate 
identification, management, and 
monitoring of cyber security risks. A 
cyber security risk management policy 
should be developed, which 
determines and clearly expresses the 
college’s risk tolerance as quantifiable 
measures for acceptable risk. This 
standard should be used when 
performing risk assessments, which 
will ultimately inform policies.  
It would be beneficial to perform risk 
assessments of the college’s cyber 
security threat landscape using the 
National Cyber Security Centre 
(NCSC) risk management guidance to 
help make decisions about cyber 
security risk. This guidance includes 
information on risk assessment 
techniques, including aligning risk 
assessments to best practice 
frameworks. The college should 
consider using risk assessment 
guidance, such as the cyber / 
information risk assessment 
requirements within the Scottish Public 
Sector Cyber Resilience Framework. 
 

Grade 2 

Agreed. 
 
The college working in 
collaboration with an external 
supplier, JISC (Joint 
Information Systems 
Committee) and West 
Lothian Council, will develop 
and implement a cyber risk 
governance framework, 
cyber security risk 
management policy with 
accompanying risk register 
including a review cycle 
implemented quarterly.  
 

Head of 
Information 
Systems and 
Digital 
Infrastructure 

31 July 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 June 2021 update 
 
On track 
 
Cyber Risk Technical 
Assessment now 
complete, undertaken by 
external supplier and 
report due week 
commencing 17th May. 
Supplier will work in 
partnership to establish 
cyber risk governance 
framework, cyber security 
risk management policy 
with accompanying risk 
register. 
 
Cyber Essentials (CE) 
certification awarded on 
04 May 2021. 
 
Date for CE+ discussed 
with external supplier and 
details of pre-requisites 
received.  
 
September 2021 update 
 
CRTA roadmap document 
received late June, 
detailing a range of 
managed and 
collaborative services. 9 
days consultancy has 
been booked with a 
schedule of works due to 
be published late 
September. 
 
CE+ plus review took 
place on 1st July and a 
few remedial actions 
currently being worked on 
to obtain full accreditation. 
 
November 2021 update 
 
Cyber Essentials + 
accreditation awarded on 
1st November. Network 
Officer recruited and due 
to start mid-November. 
Penetration testing 
quarterly cycle being 
implemented. Chief 
Information Security 

31 
December 
2021 
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Officer (CISOaas) 
proposal approved and 
initial 3 day workshop 
agreed for late November. 
New server infrastructure 
with enhanced security 
features due by April 
2022. 
 
 

2 Cyber Security 
(2.1 Cyber risk management 
within projects) –  
Cyber-related risks to 
information assets which 
emanate from projects and 
changes to business as 
usual activities are identified, 
recorded and managed 
appropriately.  
 

Jan 
2021 

There is a risk that, if there is not 
a process in place to assess the 
security risks of all projects, cyber 
security risks will not be identified 
and managed appropriately, in 
line with the cyber risk 
governance framework 
development. 

A risk assessment of new systems 
should be completed for any project 
that will, or has the potential to, impact 
confidential information being 
processed within the college. This risk 
assessment should align with the 
college’s cyber risk governance 
framework (see MAP 1.1), with risks 
identified feeding into the cyber risk 
register and associated action plan. 
Cyber security responsibilities should 
be defined and allocated to specified 
roles defined in the project 
management methods, to ensure risks 
are managed throughout the lifecycle 
of the project. 
 

Grade 2 

Agreed.  
 
By March 2021 a Cyber Risk 
Technical Assessment 
(CRTA) will be 
commissioned which will be 
compliant with NIST 
(National Institute of 
Standards and Technology) 
Cyber Security Framework 
(CSF). The report will be 
used to assist the 
development of risk 
assessment procedures and 
documentation to be used in 
new system and project 
implementations.  
 

Head of 
Information 
Systems and 
Digital 
Infrastructure 

31 July 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 June 2021 update 
 
On track 
 
 
Cyber Risk Technical 
Assessment now 
complete, undertaken by 
external supplier and 
report due week 
commencing 17th May. 
 
September 2021 update 
 
CRTA report delivered on 
11June and meetings 
took place with supplier to 
agree professional service 
requirements, as per item 
1.  
 
November 2021 update 
 
A 20 point cyber risk 
register and roadmap has 
been developed following 
the CRTA report. A new 
software application for 
monitoring risks will be 
evaluated as part of the 3 
day CISOaas workshop. 
 
A new server added to the 
infrastructure for online 
payments was subject to 
college and supplier risk 
assessment and revised 
security certificate 
applied. 
 

 
31 October 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Complete 

3 Cyber Security 
(3.1 Extended vulnerability 
management) – 
There are adequate controls 
to detect and address new 
and emerging cyber-related 
threats/vulnerabilities to 
information assets from 
existing technologies.  
 

Jan 
2021 

If vulnerability management, 
including penetration testing, is 
not conducted across the entire 
college estate, attackers could 
exploit vulnerabilities to gain 
unauthorised access to college 
systems, disrupt business 
operations and steal or leak 
sensitive data. If this were to 
occur, it could result in significant 
financial penalties, as a result of 
data protection breaches, and a 

We recommend that the college 
extends their vulnerability 
management processes, to include 
end-user devices. Authenticated scans 
on both internal and external devices 
should be performed every month.  
Management should consider staff with 
security responsibilities as part of their 
roles meeting to conduct ‘vulnerability 
triage’. This group should meet once a 
vulnerability assessment has been 
performed, to triage all vulnerabilities 

Agreed. 
 
By end February 2021 the 
college will evaluate the use 
of F-secure and receive a 
quotation for services, 
providing scanning tools for 
end user devices connected 
to the College LAN (Local 
Area Network).  
By the end of February 2021, 
the college will have 

Digital 
Infrastructure 
Manager 

 
31 July 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2021 update 
 
On track 
 
An evaluation of the tools 
and services provided by 
F-secure undertaken, with 
the College pursuing 
other options. The CTRA 
report will be used to 
inform solution and award 
supplier. 

31 October 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AC/021221/iShare 
 

4 
 

lack of trust amongst service 
users. 

found. The triage process should 
divide the vulnerabilities identified into 
three categories: Remediate, 
Acknowledge and Investigate. 
Vulnerability remediation should be 
prioritised by concentrating on issues 
that are accessible to the largest 
number of potential attackers, and 
those issues that would have the 
largest impact if exploited. 
 

Grade 2 

discussed and agreed on a 
date for Cyber Essentials 
Plus accreditation.  
By end March 2021 an 
outcome of the CRTA (see 
2.1) – we will identify overall 
status of vulnerability 
management, penetration 
testing and other existing 
controls. Actions from CRTA 
will then be undertaken.  

 
Cyber Essentials (CE) 
certification awarded on 
04 May 2021. 
 
Date for CE+ discussed 
with external supplier and 
details of pre-requisites 
received.  
 
CRTA action plan to be 
agreed, with report due 
week commencing 17th 
May.  
 
September 2021 update 
 
As per and linked to item 
1 and 2. 
 
November 2021  
 
Qualsys vulnerability 
scanning software 
ordered, which provides 
an extension to the 
colleges vulnerability 
process, by including end 
to end scanning of user 
devices. SOPHOS and 
Windows updates running 
monthly.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Complete 

4 Business Continuity and 
Disaster Recovery 
(2.1 Defining business critical 
systems) 
 

March 
2021 

If the Business Continuity 
documentation does not 
demonstrate a comprehensive 
understanding of the college’s key 
information systems, the college 
cannot restore critical services 
identified in the BIAs. 

The framework should detail the 
following information for each key 
service: 
Critical services and key systems to 
the college identified through regular 
business impact assessments. 
Interdependencies of these services, 
including intra-departmental, inter-
departmental and external 
dependencies. 
The Recovery Time Objectives (RTOs) 
and Recovery Point Objectives (RPOs) 
for each service. 
Links to disaster recovery plans for 
these information systems. 
 

Grade 2 

Accepted. BCPs will be 
reviewed with functional 
application owners and 
updated to include the 
identification of the critical 
business services.  The 
college Disaster Recovery 
Policy to be refreshed and 
linked to functional BIAs. 

Head of 
Information 
Systems and 
Digital 
Infrastructure 

31 October 
2021 

 September 2021 update 
 
A Business Continuity 
Planning stress test took 
place on 18 June, led by 
Zurich Municipal. The 
report has been published 
which 7 learning and 
action points to follow up 
on. 
 
The College Disaster 
Recovery Policy is under 
review and scheduled to 
be published by 
31/10/2021. 
 
Reviews of functional 
business continuity plans 
to be scheduled between 
September and 
December 2021. 
 
November 2021  
 
Finance and Information 
Systems BCP’s under 
review. Suppliers to be 
contacted. Office365 for 

31 
December 
2021 
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staff and students now 
backed up to the cloud 
and an upgrade to 
Microsoft licencing to be 
included in revised BCP. 
 

5 Business Continuity and 
Disaster Recovery 
(3.1 Incident response plans) 
 

March 
2021 

If comprehensive and robust 
incident response plans have not 
been developed for the recovery 
of critical systems, the response 
to incidents will not be 
appropriately managed.  Also a 
risk that the college will be unable 
to recover technology 
infrastructure and systems in an 
effective manner if an IT disaster 
recovery plan is not in place. 

Recommend that the college develops 
effective recovery strategies for critical 
services for inclusion in incident 
response plans. Incident response 
plans, including responses to cyber 
security threats and attacks, should be 
agreed, documented and 
communicated.  
The college develops an IT disaster 
recovery plan that provides IT 
management with clear guidance and 
processes to follow. 
Incident response plans should be 
reviewed and updated on an annual 
basis. 
 

Grade 3 

Accepted. The college will 
complete the review and 
update of the IT Disaster 
Recovery plan by 30 June 
2021. 
The Disaster Recovery plan 
will be linked and cross 
referenced to the academic 
and support service areas 
and completed by 31 
October 2021. 
Cross referencing BIAs to the 
college strategic risk register 
will be undertaken on a 
quarterly basis and shared 
with the Audit Committee. 

Digital 
Infrastructure 
Manager 

31 October 
2021 

 September 2021 update 
 
A first review of the IT 
Disaster Recovery plan 
has been completed. 
Further revisions will be 
required to account for re-
location of offsite backup 
to the Whitehall site and 
as to reflect server 
infrastructure upgrades. 
 
November 2021  
 
Cyber incident policy 
revised and to be further 
reviewed as part of the 
CISOaas.  

31 
December 
2021 

6 Business Continuity and 
Disaster Recovery 
(4.1 Business continuity 
testing) 

March 
2021 

If there are not regular and planed 
business continuity tests 
completed with operational staff 
and recover team members 
present, relevant staff will not be 
aware of their responsibilities 
regarding the recovery of 
systems. 

Management should introduce a risk-
based programme of recovery testing 
for key systems including a range of 
tests, live testing and simulations of 
different scenarios. 
Outcomes of testing should be formally 
documented. 
 

Grade 2 

Accepted. A schedule of 
BCP testing and a scoping 
plan will be developed. 

Digital 
Infrastructure 
Manager 

31 October 
2021 

 September 2021 update 
 
Revised schedule to be 
published once Network 
Officer post filled and 
consultancy services are 
agreed with external 
supplier. 
 
November 2021  
 
Network Officer post has 
been recruited to and 
discussions ongoing to 
agree the testing 
schedule.  
 
College virtual server 
infrastructure hosted at 
the Civic Centre due for 
replacement by 2022 and 
discussions ongoing with 
West Lothian Council in 
terms of options 
appraisal. Migration to of 
upgrading of cloud 
services to MS Azure will 
enhance our BCP and 
DR. 
 

31 
December 
2021 
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Audit Committee 
 
GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR) AND  
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (FOI) UPDATE 2020-21 

GDPR 
 
There were no significant GDPR breaches during 2020-21 and none required 
to be reported to the information commissioner’s office. 
 
FOI 
 
The college responded to three FOI requests during the year and one data 
subject access request. 
 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is asked to note the position for 2020-21. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
2 December 2021 
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